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PETRONOVA INC. 
Cdn$65,400,000  

52,320,000 Common Shares 

This prospectus qualifies the distribution (the “Offering”) of 52,320,000 common shares (“Common 
Shares”) of PetroNova Inc. (the “Company”) at a price of Cdn$1.25 per Common Share (the “Offering Price”) for 
total gross proceeds of Cdn$65,400,000. The Common Shares sold pursuant to the Offering are referred to as the 
“Offered Shares”.  The Offering Price was determined by negotiation between the Company and Raymond James 
Ltd., on its own behalf and on behalf of Canaccord Genuity Corp., FirstEnergy Capital Corp., GMP Securities L.P. 
and TD Securities Inc. (collectively, the “Agents”).

There is currently no market through which the Common Shares may be sold and Subscribers (as 
hereinafter defined) may not be able to resell Offered Shares purchased under this prospectus. This may 
affect the pricing of the Offered Shares in the secondary market, the transparency and availability of trading 
prices, the liquidity of the Offered Shares and the extent of issuer regulation. See “Risk Factors”.  The TSX 
Venture Exchange (“TSX-V”) has conditionally approved the listing of the Common Shares, subject to the 
Company fulfilling all of the listing requirements of the TSX-V. 

Price:  Cdn$1.25 per Common Share 

Price to the Public Agents’ Commission(1) Net Proceeds to the Company(2)

Per Common Share .....  Cdn$1.25 Cdn$0.075 Cdn$1.175 
Total Offering .............  Cdn$65,400,000 Cdn$3,924,000 Cdn$61,476,000 

Notes:
(1) Pursuant to the terms of the Agency Agreement referred to under the heading “Plan of Distribution”, the Company has agreed to pay 

to the Agents a cash commission equal to 6% of the gross proceeds of the Offering, provided that the Agents will only receive a
commission of 3% in respect of subscriptions received from certain Subscribers (as hereinafter defined). See “Plan of Distribution”. 

(2) After deducting the Agents’ Commission, assuming a cash commission of 6% of the gross proceeds of the Offering is paid by the 
Company to the Agents, and before deducting expenses of the Offering, estimated to be approximately Cdn$750,000, which will, 
together with the Agents’ Commission, be paid by the Company from the proceeds of the Offering. 

The Offering is not underwritten or guaranteed by any person.  The Agents conditionally offer the Offered 
Shares on a “commercially reasonable efforts” basis if, as and when issued and sold by the Company and delivered 
to and accepted by the Agents in accordance with the conditions contained in the Agency Agreement referred to 
under the heading “Plan of Distribution”, subject to approval of certain legal matters relating to the Offering on 
behalf of the Company by Borden Ladner Gervais LLP and on behalf of the Agents by McCarthy Tétrault LLP. 



Subscriptions for Offered Shares will be received subject to rejection or allotment in whole or in part and 
the right is reserved to close the subscription books at any time without notice. Subscription funds received by the 
Agents will be held in trust by the Agents pending closing of the Offering and if the Offering has not been 
subscribed for or if the Offering does not occur within 90 days of the issuance of a receipt for the final prospectus, 
the funds will be returned to the persons that subscribed for Offered Shares (“Subscribers”) without interest or 
deduction unless the Subscribers have otherwise instructed the Agents. Provided that the Offering has been 
achieved, it is expected that the closing of the  Offering will occur on or about December 21, 2010, or such later date 
as the Company and the Agents may agree, but in any event, not later than January 15, 2011 (the “Closing Date”).  
See “Plan of Distribution”.

The certificates representing the Offered Shares (other than the certificates representing Offered Shares 
sold pursuant to Regulation D under the U.S. Securities Act, which will be issued in individually certificated form) 
will be issued in “book-entry only” form and registered to CDS Clearing and Depository Services Inc. (“CDS”) or 
its nominee and deposited with CDS on the same day. No certificates representing the Offered Shares will be issued 
to Subscribers (other than Subscribers who purchase Offered Shares pursuant to Regulation D under the U.S. 
Securities Act) and registration will be made through the depository services of CDS. Subject to the foregoing, 
holders of Offered Shares will receive only a customer confirmation from the Agents or other registered dealers who 
are CDS participants and from or through whom a beneficial interest in the Offered Shares is acquired. See “Plan of 
Distribution”. 

The Company, through its subsidiaries, is engaged in the exploration for, and the acquisition and 
development of, oil and natural gas in South America, specifically in Colombia. Substantially all of the assets of the 
Company are owned by subsidiaries of the Company and are located outside of Canada. In addition, the Company’s 
subsidiaries are incorporated and subsisting under jurisdictions outside of Canada and some of the directors and 
officers of the Company that have signed this prospectus reside outside of Canada. Although each of the officers and 
directors of the Company that have signed this prospectus and who reside outside of Canada has appointed Borden 
Ladner Gervais LLP, 1900, 520 – 3rd Avenue S.W., Calgary, Alberta  T2P 0R3, as his agent for service of process in 
Canada, it may not be possible for Subscribers to enforce judgements obtained in Canadian courts predicated upon 
civil liability provisions of applicable Canadian securities laws against the directors and officers referred to above. 
Moreover, it may not be possible for Subscribers to effect service of process within Canada upon the directors and 
officers referred to above. See “Risk Factors”. 

As at the date of this prospectus, the Company does not have any of its securities listed or quoted, has not 
applied to list or quote any of its securities, and does not intend to apply to list or quote any of its securities, on the 
Toronto Stock Exchange, a U.S. marketplace, or a marketplace outside Canada and the United States of America. 

An investment in the Offered Shares should be considered highly speculative due to the nature of the 
Company’s involvement in the exploration for, and the acquisition and development of, crude oil and natural 
gas resources in Colombia and given the Company’s early stage of development. The Company has no 
current production, no history of earnings and there are no known quantities of oil or natural gas on the 
Company’s properties.  An investment in the Offered Shares is suitable only for those Subscribers who are 
willing to risk a loss of some or all of their investment and who can afford to lose some or all of their 
investment. See “Risk Factors”. 
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NOTICE TO INVESTORS 

About this Prospectus 

A potential Subscriber should rely only on the information contained in this prospectus and is not entitled 
to rely on parts of the information contained in this prospectus to the exclusion of others.  The Company and the 
Agents have not authorized anyone to provide potential Subscribers with additional or different information.  The 
Company is not, and the Agents are not, offering to sell the Offered Shares in any jurisdictions where the offer or 
sale is not permitted.  The information contained in this prospectus is accurate only as of the date of this prospectus, 
regardless of the time of delivery of this prospectus or any sale of the Offered Shares.  The Company’s business, 
financial condition, results of operations and prospects may have changed since the date of this prospectus. 

For potential Subscribers outside Canada, neither the Company nor any of the Agents have done anything 
that would permit the Offering, or possession or distribution of this prospectus, in any jurisdiction where action for 
that purpose is required, other than in Canada. Potential Subscribers are required to inform themselves about and to 
observe any restrictions relating to the Offering and the distribution of this prospectus. 

Interpretation 

The Offering Price has been determined and priced in Canadian dollars. However, the Company 
presents its financial statements and resource estimates in U.S. dollars. In this prospectus, references to 
“Cdn$” and “Canadian dollars” are to Canadian dollars and references to “$” and “U.S. dollars” are to 
United States dollars. Amounts are stated in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated.   

Certain terms used in this prospectus are defined under the headings “Abbreviations” and “Glossary of 
Terms”.  

Exchange Rate Data 

United States Dollars 

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the high, low, average and period-end noon spot 
rates of exchange for one U.S. dollar, expressed in Canadian dollars, published by the Bank of Canada. 

Year Ended December 31, Nine Months 
Ended 

September 30, 
2010 2009 2008 2007

 Cdn$ Cdn$ Cdn$ Cdn$ 
Highest rate during the period 1.0778 1.3000 1.2969 1.1853 
Lowest rate during the period 0.9961 1.0292 0.9719 0.9170 
Average noon spot rate for period(1) 1.0356 1.1420 1.0660 1.0748 
Rate at the end of the period  1.0298 1.0466 1.2246 0.9881 

Note: 
(1) Determined by averaging the noon spot rates on the last business day of each month during the respective period. 

On November 30, 2010, the noon spot rate of exchange posted by the Bank of Canada for the conversion of 
U.S. dollars into Canadian dollars was $1.00 equals Cdn$1.0263. 

Colombian Pesos 

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the high, low, average and period-end closing spot 
rates of exchange for one Colombian peso (COL$), expressed in Canadian dollars, published by the Bank of 
Canada. 
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Year Ended December 31, Nine Months 
Ended 

September 
30, 2010 2009 2008 2007

 Cdn$ Cdn$ Cdn$ Cdn$ 
Highest rate during the period 0.000585 0.000567 0.000618 0.000565 
Lowest rate during the period 0.000510 0.000481 0.000477 0.000454 
Average closing spot rate for period(1) 0.000543 0.000531 0.000544 0.000518 
Rate at the end of the period 0.000571 0.000511 0.000545 0.0005480 

Note: 
(1) Determined by averaging the closing spot rates on the last business day of each month during the respective period. 

On November 30, 2010, the closing spot rate of exchange posted by the Bank of Canada for the conversion 
of Colombian pesos into Canadian dollars was COL$1.00 equals Cdn$0.000531. 

Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

Certain statements contained in this prospectus constitute forward-looking statements. These statements 
relate to future events or the Company’s future performance.  All statements other than statements of historical fact 
are forward-looking statements.  The use of any of the words “anticipate”, “plan”, “continue”, “estimate”, “expect”, 
“may”, “will”, “project”, “should”, “believe”, “predict” and “potential” and similar expressions are intended to 
identify forward-looking statements.  These statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other 
factors that may cause actual results or events to differ materially from those anticipated in such forward-looking 
statements.  No assurance can be given that these expectations will prove to be correct and such forward-looking 
statements included in this prospectus should not be unduly relied upon.  These statements speak only as of the date 
of this prospectus. In addition, this prospectus may contain forward-looking statements and forward-looking 
information attributed to third party industry sources. 

In particular, this prospectus contains forward-looking statements pertaining to the following: 

the anticipated Closing Date; 

the use of the Net Proceeds; 

the resource potential of the Colombian Assets and the estimated quantity and quality of the 
Company’s resources; 

the ultimate recovery of the Company’s resources; 

the Company’s business objectives and strategies; 

the Company’s intention to participate in future bid rounds in Colombia and elsewhere to acquire 
additional exploration acreage; 

the Company’s expected capital and exploration expenditures for the remainder of 2010 and 
thereafter; 

the Company’s seismic acquisition and drilling plans; 

the Company’s plans for, and results of, exploration and development activities; 

the timing of commencement of certain of the Company’s operations; 

the Company’s ability to raise capital; 

the anticipated compensation to be paid to the executive officers and directors of the Company; 

the Company’s dependence on personnel; 

the Company’s expectations regarding commodity prices and costs; 
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supply and demand fundamentals for crude oil and natural gas; 

the timing for receipt of regulatory, governmental and stock exchange approvals; and 

the Company’s treatment under governmental regulatory regimes and tax laws. 

With respect to forward-looking statements and forward-looking information contained in this prospectus, 
assumptions have been made regarding, among other things: 

future crude oil and natural gas prices; 

the Company’s ability to obtain and retain qualified staff and equipment in a timely and cost-
efficient manner; 

the regulatory framework governing royalties, taxes and environmental matters in Colombia and 
any other jurisdictions in which the Company may conduct its business in the future; 

the applicability of technologies for recovery and production of the Company’s oil and natural gas 
resources; 

the recoverability of the Company’s oil and gas resources; 

future capital and exploration expenditures to be made by the Company; 

future sources of funding for the Company’s exploration program; 

the Company’s future debt levels; 

geological and engineering classifications and estimates in respect of the Company’s oil and 
natural gas resources; 

the geography of the areas in which the Company is exploring; 

the intentions of the Company with respect to the compensation of executive officers and directors 
described herein; 

the impact of increasing competition on the Company; and 

the Company’s ability to obtain financing on acceptable terms. 

Actual results could differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking statements as a result 
of the risk factors outlined below and included elsewhere in this prospectus, including: 

general economic, market and business conditions; 

volatility in market prices for crude oil and natural gas and hedging activities related thereto; 

risks related to the exploration, development and production of oil and natural gas; 

risks inherent in the Company’s international operations, including security and legal risks in 
Colombia; 

risks related to the timing of completion of the Company’s projects; 

competition for, among other things, capital, the acquisition of resources and skilled personnel; 

actions by governmental authorities, including changes in government regulation and taxation; 

environmental risks and hazards; 

risks inherent in the exploration, development and production of oil and natural gas which may 
create liabilities to the Company in excess of the Company’s insurance coverage, if any; 

failure to accurately estimate and to establish adequate cash reserves for abandonment and 
reclamation costs; 

failure of third parties’ reviews, reports and projections to be accurate; 
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the availability of capital on acceptable terms; 

political risks; 

the failure of the Company or the holder of certain licenses or leases to meet specific requirements 
of such licenses or leases; 

adverse claims made in respect of the Company’s properties or assets; 

failure to engage or retain key personnel; 

potential losses which would stem from any disruptions in production, including work stoppages 
or other labour difficulties, or disruptions in the transportation network on which the Company is 
reliant; 

uncertainties inherent in estimating quantities of oil and natural gas reserves and resources; 

failure to acquire or develop oil and natural gas resources and reserves; 

geological, technical, drilling and processing problems, including the availability of equipment 
and access to properties; 

failure by counterparties to make payments or perform their operational or other obligations to the 
Company in compliance with the terms of contractual arrangements between the Company and 
such counterparties; 

current global financial conditions, including fluctuations in interest rates, foreign exchange rates 
and stock market volatility; 

discretion in the use of proceeds of the Offering; and 

the other factors discussed under “Risk Factors” in this prospectus. 

In addition, information and statements in this prospectus relating to “resources” and “reserves” are deemed 
to be forward-looking information and statements, as they involve the implied assessment, based on certain 
estimates and assumptions, that the resources and reserves described exist in the quantities predicted or estimated, 
and that the resources and reserves described can be profitably produced in the future. Readers are cautioned that the 
foregoing list of risk factors should not be construed as exhaustive. 

The forward-looking statements included in this prospectus are expressly qualified by this 
cautionary statement and are made as of the date of this prospectus. The Company does not undertake any 
obligation to publicly update or revise any forward-looking statements except as required by applicable 
securities laws. Subscribers should read this entire prospectus and consult their own professional advisors to 
assess the income tax, legal, risk factors and other aspects of their investment in the Offered Shares. 

IFRS and Non-IFRS Measures 

The financial statements of the Company included in this prospectus have been prepared in accordance 
with IFRS.  The Accounting Standards Board of Canada confirmed in February 2008 that IFRS will replace 
Canadian Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in 2011 for Canadian publicly accountable enterprises.  

Within this prospectus, references are made to terms commonly used in the oil and gas industry such 
as “working capital”, “funds flow from operations”, and “funds flow per share”, which are terms not 
recognized under IFRS.  The Company uses these measures to help evaluate its performance, leverage and 
liquidity. Working capital represents current assets less current liabilities. There is no IFRS measure that is 
reasonably comparable to working capital. Funds flow from operations and funds flow per share reflect cash 
generated from operating activities before changes in non-cash working capital. Funds flow from operations 
should not be considered an alternative to, or more meaningful than cash flow from operations as determined 
under IFRS as an indicator of the Company’s performance. Management considers funds flow from operations 
and funds flow per share important as they help evaluate the performance and demonstrate the Company’s 
ability to generate sufficient cash to fund future growth opportunities. Working capital, funds flow from 
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operations and funds flow per share may not be comparable to those reported by other companies nor should 
they be viewed as an alternative to cash flow from operations, net income or other measures of financial 
performance calculated in accordance with IFRS. 

Market and Industry Data 

This prospectus contains certain statistical, market, corporate and industry data that is based upon 
information from the Government of Colombia and certain industry publications and reports (including the Monthly 
Statistical Bulletin of ACIPET and statistical reports of the Colombian Central Bank (Banco de la Republica), the 
ANH and the Government of Colombia), published information released by third parties or is based on estimates 
derived from same and management’s knowledge of, and experience in, the markets in which the Company 
operates. Government and industry publications and reports generally indicate that they have obtained their 
information from sources believed to be reliable, but do not guarantee the accuracy and completeness of their 
information.  None of ACIPET, the Colombian Central Bank, the ANH, the Government of Colombia or any 
industry third party in respect of which published information has been referenced, has provided any form of 
consultation, advice or counsel regarding any aspect of, or is in any way whatsoever associated with, the Offering.  
Further, certain of these organizations are advisors to participants in the oil and natural gas industry, and they may 
present information in a manner that is more favourable to the industry than would be presented by an independent 
source.  Actual outcomes may vary materially from those forecast in such reports or publications, and the prospect 
for material variation can be expected to increase as the length of the forecast period increases.  While the Company 
believes this data to be reliable, market and industry data are subject to variations and cannot be verified with 
complete certainty due to limits on the availability and reliability of raw data, the voluntary nature of the data 
gathering process and other limitations and uncertainties inherent in any statistical survey.  Neither the Company nor 
the Agents have independently verified any of the data from third party sources referred to in this prospectus or 
ascertained the underlying assumptions relied upon by such sources.  In addition, the Agents have not independently 
verified any of the industry data prepared by management of the Company. 

ABBREVIATIONS 

In this prospectus, the abbreviations set forth below have the following meanings: 

API the American Petroleum Institute or a degree of gravity 
that provides a relative measure of crude oil density 

Mbbls thousand barrels of oil 

Bbls barrels of oil  Mbbls/d thousand barrels of oil per day 
Bbls/d barrels of oil per day MMbbls million barrels of oil 
BOE barrel of oil equivalent MMbbls/d million barrels of oil per day 
BOE/d barrel of oil equivalent per day MMBOE million barrels of oil equivalent 
ft feet MMBOE/d million barrels of oil equivalent per day 
km kilometres MMBTU million of British thermal units 
km2 square kilometres WTI West Texas Intermediate 
m metres $/Bbl U.S. Dollars per barrel 
m3 cubic metres 2D two dimensional 
Mcf thousand cubic feet 3D three dimensional 
    

The term BOE may be misleading, particularly if used in isolation. A BOE conversion ratio of 6 Mcf: 
1 Bbl is based on an energy equivalency method primarily applicable at the burner tip and does not represent 
a value equivalency at the wellhead. 
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CONVERSIONS 

To Convert From To Multiply By 
cubic metres cubic feet 35.494 
Bbls cubic metres 0.159 
cubic metres Bbls 6.290 
litre Bbls 0.0063 
miles km 1.609 
km miles 0.621 
feet metres 0.305 
metres feet 3.281 
acres hectares 0.405 
hectares acres 2.471 
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GLOSSARY OF TERMS 

In this prospectus, the capitalized terms set forth below have the following meanings: 

“ABCA” means the Business Corporations Act (Alberta) and the regulations thereunder, as amended; 

“ACIPET” means Asociación Colombiana de Ingenieros Petróleos, the Colombian Society of Petroleum Engineers; 

“ACP” means the Asociación Colombiana del Petróleo, the Colombian Oil Association, an association of certain 
private Colombian oil companies; 

“Advisory Committee” has the meaning set forth under the heading “Executive Officers and Directors – Advisory 
Committee”;

“Agents” means, collectively, the Lead Agent, Canaccord Genuity Corp., FirstEnergy Capital Corp., GMP 
Securities L.P. and TD Securities Inc.; 

“Agents’ Commission” means the cash commission equal to 6% of the aggregate gross proceeds of the Offering 
payable to the Agents pursuant to the Agency Agreement, provided that the Agents will only receive a commission 
of 3% in respect of subscriptions received from certain Subscribers; 

“Agency Agreement” means the Agency Agreement dated December 13, 2010 with respect to the Offering between 
the Company and the Agents, as more particularly described under the heading “Plan of Distribution”;

“allowable capital loss” has the meaning set forth under the heading “Certain Canadian Federal Income Tax 
Considerations – Holders Resident in Canada – Taxation of Capital Gains and Capital Losses”;

“Amended HPS Formula” has the meaning set forth under the heading “Industry Conditions – The ANH Contracts 
– Exploration and Production Contracts – High Price Share”;

“ANH” means the Agencia Nacional de Hidrocarburos, or the National Hydrocarbons Agency, an agency of the 
Colombian government and the Colombian hydrocarbons regulator; 

“Asset Purchase Agreement” means the Asset Purchase and Liability Assumption Agreement between 
VenezuelaCo, as vendor, and Cayman Opco, as purchaser, pursuant to which Cayman Opco CB acquired the 
Colombian Assets; 

“Audit Committee” has the meaning set forth under the heading “Corporate Governance and Audit Committee – 
Audit Committee – Audit Committee Mandate”;

“Board” or “Board of Directors” means the board of directors of the Company, as constituted from time to time; 

“Caguan-Putumayo Basin” means the Caguan-Putumayo Basin located in southern Colombia;  

“Cayman Credit Facility” has the meaning set forth under the heading “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of 
Financial Condition and Results of Operations – Subsequent Events”;

“Cayman Holdco” means PetroNova International Inc., a body corporate incorporated under the laws of the 
Cayman Islands and a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company; 

“Cayman Opco” means PetroNova Colombia Inc., a body corporate incorporated under the laws of the Cayman 
Islands and a wholly owned subsidiary of Cayman Holdco; 

“Cayman Opco CB” means the Colombian branch of Cayman Opco; 
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“CDS” means CDS Clearing and Depository Services Inc.; 

“CEO Executive Employment Contract” has the meaning set forth under the heading “Compensation of Executive 
Officers and Directors – Termination and Change of Control Benefits”;

“Closing” means the closing of the Offering; 

“Closing Date” means the date of Closing, which is anticipated to occur on or about December 21, 2010, or such 
later date as the Company and the Agents may agree, but in any event, not later than January 15, 2011; 

“COGE Handbook” means the Canadian Oil and Gas Evaluation Handbook prepared jointly by the Society of 
Petroleum Evaluation Engineers (Calgary Chapter) and the Canadian Institute of Mining, Metallurgy and Petroleum; 

“Colombia” means the Republic of Colombia; 

“Colombian Assets” means the various Participating Interests of the Company in the Colombian Blocks that were 
acquired by the Company pursuant to the Reorganization Transactions; 

“Colombian Blocks” means, collectively, the PUT 2 Block, the Tinigua Block and the Llanos Blocks as described 
under the heading “The Company’s Business – The Company’s Oil and Gas Properties”;

“Common Shares” means common shares in the capital of the Company as presently constituted; 

“Company” or “PetroNova” means PetroNova Inc., a corporation incorporated under the laws of Alberta and 
includes, except where the context otherwise requires, the Company’s subsidiaries; 

“Company Directors” has the meaning set forth under the heading “Options and Warrants to Purchase Securities – 
Options Outstanding”;

“Company Executives” has the meaning set forth under the heading “Options and Warrants to Purchase Securities 
– Options Outstanding”;

“Compensation Committee” has the meaning set forth under the heading “Compensation of Executive Officers and 
Directors”;

“Computershare” means Computershare Trust Company of Canada; 

“Contractor” has the meaning set forth under the heading “Industry Conditions – The ANH Contracts – 
Exploration and Production Contracts”;

“Convention” has the meaning set forth under the heading “Certain Canadian Federal Income Tax Considerations 
– Non-Resident Holders – Dividends on Common Shares”;

“CPO 6 Block” means the CPO 6 Block located in the Llanos Basin; 

“CPO 6 E&P Contract” means the E&P Contract relating to the CPO 6 Block dated January 14, 2009 between the 
ANH, Tecpecol and VenezuelaCo; 

“CPO 7 Block” means the CPO 7 Block located in the Llanos Basin; 

“CPO 7 E&P Contract” means the E&P Contract relating to the CPO 7 Block dated January 14, 2009 between the 
ANH, Tecpecol and VenezuelaCo; 

“CPO 13 Block” means the CPO 13 Block located in the Llanos Basin; 
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“CPO 13 E&P Contract” means the E&P Contract relating to the CPO 13 Block dated January 14, 2009 between 
the ANH, Tecpecol and VenezuelaCo; 

“Decree 1760” has the meaning set forth under the heading “Industry Conditions – The ANH”;

“E&P Contract” means an exploration and production contract used in Colombia established by the ANH, as more 
particularly described under the heading “Industry Conditions – The ANH Contracts – Exploration and Production 
Contracts”;

“Ecopetrol” means Ecopetrol S.A., formerly known as Empresa Colombiana de Petróleos S.A.; 

“EIA” means environmental impact assessment; 

“EMP” means environmental management plan; 

“Employer” means the Company or Cayman Opco, as the case may be, as the employer under the Executive 
Employment Contracts; 

“Evaluation Period” means the evaluation period prescribed under an E&P Contract; 

“Executive Employment Contracts” means, collectively, the CEO Executive Employment Contract and the NEO 
Executive Employment Contracts; 

“Exploration Period” means the exploration period prescribed under an E&P Contract; 

“exploratory well” means a well that is drilled for the purpose of discovering new reserves or oil or natural gas in 
unproven areas; 

“Exploratory A-2 Well” means an exploratory well that is drilled in a structural or stratigraphic feature where oil or 
natural gas have been previously discovered (new reservoir exploratory well); 

“Exploratory A-3 Well” means an exploratory well that is drilled in a structural or stratigraphic feature where no 
oil or natural gas have been previously discovered (new field wildcat); 

“GOPEOC” means Gulf of Paria East Operating Company; 

“gross” means: 

(a) in relation to the Company’s interest in resources, the Company’s working interest (operating and 
non-operating) share before deduction of royalties and without including any royalty interest of 
the Company; 

(b) in relation to wells, the total number of wells in which the Company has an interest; and 

(c) in relation to properties, the total area of properties in which the Company has an interest; 

“Holder” has the meaning set forth under the heading “Certain Canadian Federal Income Tax Considerations”;

“IASB” means the International Accounting Standards Board; 

“IFRIC” means International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee; 

“IFRS” means International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards 
Board; 



xi 

“IIL” means Inepetrol Investments Ltd., a corporation incorporated under the laws of the British Virgin Islands; 

“Inelectra” means Inelectra S.A.C.A., a body corporate incorporated under the laws of Venezuela, and where the 
context requires, its affiliates; 

“Lead Agent” means Raymond James Ltd.; 

“Llanos Basin” means the Llanos Basin located in the eastern region of Colombia;  

 “Llanos Blocks” means, collectively, the CPO 6 Block, the CPO 7 Block and the CPO 13 Block; 

“Llanos Contractors” has the meaning set forth under the heading “The Company’s Business – The Company’s Oil 
and Gas Properties – Llanos Basin – CPO 6 Block”;

“MAVDT” means the Ministry of Environment, Housing and Territorial Development of Colombia; 

“MD&A” means management’s discussion and analysis; 

“MEHD” means the Colombian Ministry of Environment, Housing and Development; 

“Named Executive Officers” or “NEOs” has the meaning set forth under the heading “Compensation of Executive 
Officers and Directors”;

“NEO Executive Employment Contracts” has the meaning set forth under the heading “Compensation of 
Executive Officers and Directors – Termination and Change of Control Benefits”;

“net” means: 

(a) in relation to the Company’s interest in resources, the Company’s working interest (operating and 
non-operating) share after deduction of royalty obligations; 

(b) in relation to wells, the number of wells obtained by aggregating the Company’s current working 
interest in each of its gross wells; and 

(c) in relation to the Company’s interest in a property, the total area in which the Company has an 
interest multiplied by the working interest owned by the Company; 

“Net Proceeds” means the proceeds of the Offering after deducting the Agents’ Commission and, where indicated, 
the expenses of the Offering; 

“NI 51-101” means National Instrument 51-101 – Standards of Disclosure for Oil and Gas Activities of the 
Canadian Securities Administrators; 

“NI 51-102” means National Instrument 51-102 – Continuous Disclosure Obligations of the Canadian Securities 
Administrators; 

“NI 52-110” means National Instrument 52-110 – Audit Committees of the Canadian Securities Administrators; 

“NI 58-101” means National Instrument 58-101 – Disclosure of Corporate Governance Practices of the Canadian 
Securities Administrators; 

“Non-Resident Holder” has the meaning set forth under the heading “Certain Canadian Federal Income Tax 
Considerations – Non-Resident Holders”;
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“NP 58-201” means National Policy 58-201 – Corporate Governance Guidelines of the Canadian Securities 
Administrators; 

“OCENSA” means Oleoducto Central S.A.; 

“Offered Share” means a Common Share offered pursuant to this prospectus;  

“Offering” means the offering of Offered Shares pursuant to this prospectus;  

“Offering Price” means Cdn$1.25 per Offered Share; 

“OPEC” means the Organization of the Petroleum Exporting Countries; 

“Option Plan” means the Company’s stock option plan for its directors, officers, employees and other eligible 
service providers; 

“Options” means stock options to purchase Common Shares to be granted pursuant to the Option Plan;  

“Pacific Rubiales” means Pacific Rubiales Energy Corp.; 

“Participating Interest” means with respect to any party to an E&P Contract or a TEA, the undivided ownership 
interest of such party (expressed as a percentage of the total ownership interests of all parties in such contract) in the 
rights and obligations derived from such contract, which ownership interest has been recognized by the ANH and 
the Colombian Ministry of Energy and Mines; 

“Petrotech” means Petrotech Engineering Ltd., an independent petroleum engineering firm; 

“Petrotech Resource Report” means the independent engineering evaluation of the prospective resources of the 
Company attributable to the Colombian Assets prepared by Petrotech entitled “Evaluation of the Interests of 
PetroNova Inc. in PUT 2 and Tinigua Blocks in Caguan-Putumayo Basin and in CPO 6, 7 and 13 Blocks in Llanos 
Basin, Colombia” dated June 8, 2010, with an effective date of March 31, 2010; 

“Predecessor Subsidiaries” has the meaning set forth under the heading “Summary – Selected Financial 
Information”;  

“Private Placement” means the brokered private placement of 10,000,000 Units completed on June 29, 2010, as 
more particularly described under the heading “The Company – General Development of the Business – Recent 
Developments”;

“Private Working Interest” means with respect to any person, the undivided interest of such person (expressed as a 
percentage of the total interests of all parties) in the rights and obligations derived from an E&P Contract or from a 
TEA pursuant to a private agreement, which interest has not been recognized as a Participating Interest by the ANH; 

“Production Period” means the production period prescribed under an E&P Contract; 

“Promissory Notes” means, collectively, the VenezuelaCo Promissory Note and the Shareholders’ Promissory 
Notes;

“PUT 2 Block” means the PUT 2 Block located in the Caguan-Putumayo Basin; 

“PUT 2 E&P Contract” means the E&P Contract relating to the PUT 2 Block dated February 18, 2009 between the 
ANH and VenezuelaCo; 

“Reorganization Transactions” has the meaning set forth under the heading “The Company – General 
Development of the Business – The Reorganization Transactions”;
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“Reserves Committee” has the meaning set forth under the heading “Corporate Governance and Audit Committee 
– Corporate Governance – Other Board Committees”;

“Resident Holders” has the meaning set forth under the heading “Certain Canadian Federal Income Tax 
Considerations – Holders Resident in Canada”;

“Resignation Notice” has the meaning set forth under the heading “Compensation of Executive Officers and 
Directors – Termination and Change of Control Benefits”;

“Shareholders’ Promissory Notes” means the $15,232,008 of promissory notes issued by VenezuelaCo to the 
shareholders of SwedenCo, as more particularly described under the heading “The Company – General 
Development of the Business – The Reorganization Transactions”;

“Share Purchase Agreement” means the Share Purchase Agreement dated June 28, 2010 between SwedenCo, as 
vendor, and Cayman Holdco, as purchaser; 

“Subscribers” means persons that subscribe for and purchase Offered Shares; 

“SwedenCo” means Inepetrol Corporation A.B., a body corporate incorporated under the laws of Sweden; 

“Tax Act” means the Income Tax Act (Canada) and the regulations thereunder, as amended; 

“Tax Proposals” has the meaning set forth under the heading “Certain Canadian Federal Income Tax 
Considerations”;

“taxable capital gain” has the meaning set forth under the heading “Certain Canadian Federal Income Tax 
Considerations – Holders Resident in Canada – Taxation of Capital Gains and Capital Losses”;

“Technical Evaluation Agreement” or “TEA” means a short-term contract between an exploration company and 
the ANH to analyze existing data and acquire new information to evaluate an area of interest, as more particularly 
described under the heading “Industry Conditions – The ANH Contracts – Technical Evaluation Agreements”;

“Technical Services Agreement” means the technical services agreement dated June 1, 2010 between VenezuelaCo 
and Cayman Opco;  

“Tecpecol” means Tecpecol S.A., a body corporate incorporated under the laws of Colombia, and an affiliate of 
Tecpetrol S.A.; 

“Termination Payment” has the meaning set forth under the heading “Compensation of Executive Officers and 
Directors – Termination and Change of Control Benefits”;

“Tinigua Block” means the Tinigua Block located in the Caguan-Putumayo Basin; 

“Tinigua E&P Contract” means the E&P Contract relating to the Tinigua Block dated January 23, 2009 between 
the ANH and VenezuelaCo; 

“Tinigua Participation Agreement” means the agreement dated May 10, 2010 between Cayman Opco and an 
independent third party, pursuant to which Cayman Opco has agreed to assign 10% of its Participating Interest in the 
Tinigua E&P Contract, as more particularly described under the heading “The Company’s Business – The 
Company’s Oil and Gas Properties – Caguan Putumayo Basin – Tinigua Block”;

“TOC” means total organic content; 

“TSX” means the Toronto Stock Exchange; 
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“TSX-V” means the TSX Venture Exchange; 

“United States” or “U.S.” means the United States of America, its territories and possessions, any state of the 
United States and the District of Columbia; 

“Units” means the units of the Company issued at a price of Cdn$1.00 per unit, each unit being comprised of one 
Common Share and one Warrant; 

“U.S. Securities Act” means the United States Securities Act of 1933, as amended;  

“Venezuela CB” means the Colombian branch of VenezuelaCo;  

“VenezuelaCo” means Inepetrol S.A., a body corporate incorporated under the laws of Venezuela and a wholly 
owned subsidiary of SwedenCo; 

“VenezuelaCo Promissory Note” means the $4,500,000 promissory note issued by VenezuelaCo to SwedenCo, as 
more particularly described under the heading “The Company – General Development of the Business – The 
Reorganization Transactions”;

“Warrant Indenture” means the warrant indenture dated June 29, 2010, as amended October 12, 2010, between the 
Company and Computershare; and 

“Warrants” means the Common Share purchase warrants of the Company issued and created pursuant to the 
Warrant Indenture. 

Certain other terms used in this prospectus but not defined herein are defined in NI 51-101 and, unless the 
context otherwise requires, shall have the same meanings herein as in NI 51-101. 



1

SUMMARY 

The following is a summary of the principal features of the Offering and is qualified by and should be read 
in conjunction with the more detailed information, resource data and financial data and statements appearing 
elsewhere in this prospectus.  

The Company 

The Company, through its subsidiaries, is engaged in the exploration for, and the acquisition and 
development of, oil and natural gas resources in South America, specifically in Colombia. The Company holds 
Participating Interests in five onshore exploration blocks located in Colombia, namely the PUT 2 and the Tinigua 
Blocks located in the Caguan-Putumayo Basin, both of which are operated by the Company, and the non-operated 
Llanos Blocks located in the Llanos Basin. The Company’s strategy is to develop its existing portfolio of assets and 
to pursue further exploration opportunities in areas with proven hydrocarbon systems that the Company considers to 
be cost-effective and of low to moderate risk.  See “The Company – Overview” and “The Company’s Business”.

Investment Highlights 

Management believes that the following key attributes contribute to the strength of the Company’s business 
and future prospects.  

1. PetroNova has a diversified portfolio of Colombian Blocks with growth potential. PetroNova owns and 
operates two blocks in the Caguan-Putumayo Basin and has a 20% Participating Interest in three blocks in 
the Llanos Basin, which cover approximately 1,840,174 gross (519,196 net) acres combined.  As at March 
31, 2010, the Petrotech Resource Report has estimated the gross best estimate prospective resources 
attributable to the Colombian Assets to be 62.1 (57.1 net) MMbbls of light and medium oil and 184.7 
(167.7 net) MMbbls of heavy oil.  See “Independent Resource Evaluation” and “Risk Factors – Estimate 
of Resources”. 

2. The Colombian Blocks are located on a trend with existing major oil discoveries and fields. 
PetroNova’s PUT 2 Block is located in the same vicinity as Gran Tierra Energy Inc.’s Costayaco field and  
the Tinigua Block is on trend with Sinochem Corp.’s Capella field in the Ombu block.  Recent exploratory 
and outpost drilling in Pacific Rubiales’ Quifa block and in the CPE 6 block indicate a heavy oil belt trend 
that may extend over PetroNova’s bordering CPO 7 Block and CPO 13 Block located in the Llanos Basin. 
Additionally, preliminary information from the recently acquired 2D seismic survey in respect of the 
Llanos Blocks suggests the extension of the Quifa structural trend in line with the heavy oil belt postulated 
by Pacific Rubiales.  See “The Company’s Business – The Company’s Oil and Gas Properties”. 

3. Exploration drilling is expected to commence in 2011. The Company has undertaken EIAs in respect of 
several surface locations which will be required to obtain the necessary drilling permits. It is expected that 
exploratory drilling in the PUT 2 Block will commence in the second quarter of 2011 and a nine well 
exploratory drilling program in respect of the Llanos Blocks is expected to be launched in the first quarter 
of 2011. With respect to the Tinigua Block, field data which is required for the application of the necessary 
environmental permits is expected to be collected during the upcoming 3D seismic campaign to allow for 
the drilling of an exploratory well, expected to commence in the third quarter of 2011. 

4. Colombia continues to present an attractive fiscal regime and manageable geopolitical risk for oil 
and gas exploration and production. Due to Colombia’s combination of proven, under-developed 
hydrocarbon basins, competitive and stable contractual and fiscal terms and its improved security situation, 
management considers Colombia to be a very attractive country for oil and gas exploration and production. 
See “Risk Factors – Risks Related to the Company’s Business – Political and Regulatory”, “ – 
International Operations”, “– Legal Systems” and “– Security and Guerrilla Activity in Colombia”. 

5. The Company has a proven and experienced management team. The Company’s management team has 
experience growing oil and gas companies in South America, in addition to local Colombian business 
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experience. PetroNova’s senior management team has been working together for more than 10 years, 
exploring and developing oil and gas fields in South America, and takes a multi-disciplinary approach to 
value creation. In addition, the Company’s Advisory Committee consists of individuals with wide ranging 
oil and gas exploration and development experience and a track record of successful discoveries in South 
America.  See “Executive Officers and Directors”.

6. Strategic relationship with Tecpecol.  Tecpecol is the operator and the holder of an 80% Participating 
Interest in each of the Llanos Blocks.  The Company has developed a working relationship with Tecpecol 
which has been and is expected to continue to be a beneficial relationship for the Company.  Tecpecol, the 
affiliates of which have a combined annual production capacity of approximately 31.7 MMBOE, is a 
member of a Latin American group of companies with oil and gas exploration and production experience.  
See “The Company’s Business – The Company’s Oil and Gas Properties – Llanos Basin”. 

Summary of the Company’s Properties 

The following table summarizes the Company’s principal properties in Colombia: 

Basin Block
Participating 

Interest 

ANH
Participation 

Factor(1)
Net

Acres(2) Gross Acres 
Designated
Operator

Caguan-Putumayo PUT 2 100% 1% 96,665 96,665 PetroNova 
Caguan-Putumayo Tinigua     100%(3) –     94,924(2) 105,471 PetroNova 
Llanos CPO 6 20% 39% 108,670 543,350 Tecpecol 
Llanos CPO 7 20% 47% 125,558 627,792 Tecpecol 
Llanos CPO 13 20% 32%   93,379 466,896 Tecpecol 
Total    519,196 1,840,174 

Notes:
(1) In addition to the participation factor payable to the ANH, all properties are subject to the sliding scale royalty. See “The Company’s 

Business – The Company’s Oil and Gas Properties” and “Industry Conditions – The ANH Contracts – Royalties”.  
(2) Net acres consists of the gross acres multiplied by the Company’s Participating Interest and excludes adjustments for royalties and the 

participation factor payable to the ANH. With respect to the Tinigua Block, net acres has been calculated on the basis of the 
Company’s Participating Interest after giving effect to the 10% Private Working Interest which has been granted to a third party and 
excludes adjustments for royalties.  See “The Company’s Business – The Company’s Oil and Gas Properties – Tinigua Block”.

(3) The Company has a 100% Participating Interest in the Tinigua Block which is subject to a 10% Private Working Interest granted to a 
third party. See “The Company’s Business – The Company’s Oil and Gas Properties – The Caguan-Putumayo Basin – Tinigua 
Block”.

See “The Company – Summary of the Company’s Properties” and “The Company’s Business – The 
Company’s Oil and Gas Properties”.   

Summary Resources Information 

As at March 31, 2010, the Petrotech Resource Report has estimated the gross best estimate prospective 
resources to be 62.1 (57.1 net) MMbbls of light and medium oil and 184.7 (167.7 net) MMbbls of heavy oil.

Prospective Resources for Light and Medium Oil as at March 31, 2010(1)(2)(3)

Gross (Mbbls) Net (Mbbls) 

Low 
Estimate 

Best
Estimate 

High 
Estimate 

Low 
Estimate 

Best
Estimate 

High 
Estimate 

       
PUT 2 Block 14,181 53,203  131,477  13,047 48,931 120,558 
CPO 6 Block uneconomic  2,039 6,735  uneconomic 1,875      6,182 
CPO 7 Block uneconomic  6,876 30,404  uneconomic 6,318    27,470 
Total Company 14,181        62,118       168,616  13,047 57,125  154,210 
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Prospective Resources for Heavy Oil as at March 31, 2010(1)(2)(3)

Gross (Mbbls) Net (Mbbls) 

Low 
Estimate 

Best
Estimate 

High 
Estimate 

Low 
Estimate 

Best
Estimate 

High 
Estimate 

       
Tinigua Block 49,637 177,097 349,363 46,281 160,811 306,415 
CPO 13 Block   2,916     7,585   17,357   2,683     6,960   15,805 
Total Company 52,553 184,682 366,721 48,964 167,711 322,220 

Notes:
(1) Based on an arithmetic aggregation of the individual prospects. 
(2) Each prospect has its own estimated probability of geological success. 
(3) Low, best and high estimates follow the COGE Handbook Section 5 resources definitions and guidelines for prospective resources.

The resource estimates provided herein are estimates only. There is no certainty that any portion of the 
prospective resources will be discovered. If discovered, there is no certainty that it will be commercially viable to 
produce any portion of the prospective resources.  See “Independent Resource Evaluation” and “Risk Factors”.

Selected Financial Information 

The following table sets out selected financial information for the Company: (i) as at and for the nine 
months ended September 30, 2010; (ii) as at December 31, 2009 and 2008; and (iii) for the years ended 
December  31, 2009, 2008 and 2007. This information has been derived from the following financial statements of 
the Company which appear elsewhere in this prospectus: (i) the audited consolidated statement of financial position 
of the Company as at December 31, 2009 and 2008 and the consolidated statements of comprehensive income (loss), 
changes in equity and cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007; and (ii) the unaudited 
consolidated statement of financial position of the Company as at September 30, 2010 and December 31, 2009 and 
the consolidated statements of comprehensive loss, changes in equity and cash flows for the nine months ended 
September 30, 2010 and 2009. These results should also be read in conjunction with the disclosure under the 
heading “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations”. The  results 
for these periods should not be relied upon as any indication of results for any future period.  

For the Years Ended 
December 31, 

Financial ($) 

For the Nine Months Ended 
September 30, 2010 

(unaudited) 
2009

(audited) 
2008

(audited) 
2007

(audited) 
     
Working Capital  (326,207) (873,005)     978 N/A
Total comprehensive income 
(loss)

(1,635,029)      49,517 (11,001) (619,715) 

Statement of Financial Position Data: 

As at December 31, 

Financial ($) 
As at September 30, 2010 

(unaudited) 
2009

(audited) 
2008

(audited) 
    
Current Assets 2,133,257      294,632 3,487,624 
Total Assets 29,340,984 11,795,379 3,487,624 
Total Liabilities 1,981,978 12,375,578 4,118,340 

The Company was incorporated on September 17, 2009. Prior to incorporation, the Company’s business 
was carried on by other direct and indirect wholly owned subsidiaries of SwedenCo (the “Predecessor 
Subsidiaries”). Effective June 28, 2010, the Company completed the Reorganization Transactions, pursuant to 
which the Company indirectly acquired the Colombian Assets. For all periods presented, the consolidated financial 
statements include the historical financial position, results of operations and cash flows of the Colombian Assets and 
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liabilities acquired based on the Predecessor Subsidiaries’ historical costs.  See Note 1 to the audited consolidated 
statement of financial position of the Company as at December 31, 2009 and 2008 and the consolidated statements 
of comprehensive income (loss), changes in equity and cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 
2007 and the unaudited consolidated statement of financial position of the Company as at September 30, 2010 and 
December 31, 2009 and the consolidated statements of comprehensive loss, changes in equity and cash flows for the 
nine months ended September 30, 2010 and 2009. See “Selected Financial Information” and “Management’s 
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” as well as the financial statements of 
the Company included in this prospectus. 
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The Offering 

Issuer: PetroNova Inc. 

Offering: 52,320,000 Offered Shares (Cdn$65,400,000). 

Offering Price: Cdn$1.25 per Offered Share. 

Closing: It is expected that the Closing Date will occur on or about December 21, 2010, or such later date 
as the Company and the Agents may agree, but in any event not later than January 15, 2011.  See 
“Plan of Distribution”.

Prior to Completion of 
the Offering 

After Completion of 
the Offering 

Common Shares 
Outstanding 
Following 
Completion of 
the Offering: 

Common Shares 
(basic) 

112,981,302 165,301,302 

Use of Proceeds: The Company expects to receive approximately Cdn$60,726,000 ($59,170,000) of Net Proceeds 
from the Offering.  The Net Proceeds will be used by the Company to accomplish the Company’s 
stated business objectives.  See “The Company’s Business – Business Objectives and Strategy”.
Based upon management’s current intentions, the Company expects to use the Net Proceeds to: 
(i) fund its exploration program, which includes the drilling of an Exploratory A-3 Well on the 
PUT 2 Block, the acquisition of 3D seismic data over the Tinigua prospect and the drilling of an 
Exploratory A-3 Well on the Tinigua prospect in the Tinigua Block and the drilling of three 
Exploratory A-3 Wells on the prospects in each of the Llanos Blocks; (ii) additional exploratory 
activities to further describe or delineate initial results; and (iii) general and administrative 
expenses.  See “The Company’s Business – Exploration Program” and “Use of Proceeds”.

The Company’s actual expenditures may vary depending on a variety of factors, including the 
availability of equipment and personnel, the assessment of seismic data, unexpected expenses, 
delays in the receipt of necessary regulatory approvals, permits and licences and the success of 
the Company’s business development activities. While it is currently intended by management of 
the Company that the Net Proceeds will be expended as set forth in this prospectus, actual 
expenditures may in fact differ from the amounts and allocations set forth in this prospectus.   
See “Use of Proceeds” and “Risk Factors – Risks Related to the Offering – Discretion in the Use 
of Proceeds”.

The following sets forth the officers and directors of the Company: 

 Antonio Vincentelli President, Chief Executive Officer and Director 
 Stelvio Di Cecco  Chief Financial Officer and Director 
 Ricardo Halfen Director 
 Anthony Lambert Director 
 Judith Stripling Director 
 José Paz Vice President, Operations 
 Eugenio Ochoa Vice President, Exploration and Production 
 Melinda Park Corporate Secretary 

Directors and 
Officers: 

See “Executive Officers and Directors”.
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Eligibility for 
Investment: 

In the opinion of Borden Ladner Gervais LLP, counsel to the Company, and McCarthy Tétrault 
LLP, counsel to the Agents, on the Closing Date, provided that the Common Shares are listed on 
a designated stock exchange (which includes the TSX-V), and subject to the more detailed 
discussion under “Eligibility for Investment”, the Common Shares will on that date be a qualified 
investment under the Tax Act for trusts governed by registered retirement savings plans, 
registered retirement income funds, registered disability savings plans, deferred profit sharing 
plans, registered education savings plans and tax-free savings accounts as defined in the Tax Act. 
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Risk Factors 

An investment in the Offered Shares should be considered highly speculative due to the nature of the 
Company’s involvement in the exploration for, and the acquisition and development of, crude oil and natural gas 
resources in Colombia and given the Company’s early stage of development. The Company has no current 
production, no history of earnings and there are no known quantities of oil or natural gas on the Company’s 
properties. The Company’s business is subject to the risks normally encountered in the oil and natural gas industry 
such as: competition for prospective properties with other companies having greater resources; the marketability of, 
and prices for, crude oil and natural gas; fluctuation in the market price and demand for crude oil and natural gas; 
current global financial conditions; foreign currency risks; political, regulatory and legal issues in Colombia; failure 
to realize anticipated benefits of acquisitions and dispositions; the availability of equipment and access restrictions, 
including operating hazards and environmental risks and hazards; risks inherent in the exploration and development 
of oil and natural gas which may create liabilities to the Company in excess of the Company’s insurance coverage; 
reliance on third party operators and key personnel; the potential losses which would stem from any disruptions in 
production, including work stoppages or disruptions in the transportation network on which the Company is reliant; 
issuance of debt; and management of growth related risks. The resource estimates provided herein are estimates 
only. If discovered, there is no certainty that it will be commercially viable to produce any portion of the resources. 
The success of further exploration or development projects cannot be assured. Subscribers must rely upon the 
ability, expertise, judgment, discretion, integrity and good faith of management. There is currently no market 
through which the Common Shares may be sold and Subscribers may not be able to resell the Offered Shares 
qualified for distribution under this prospectus. These risk factors and those discussed in greater detail in “Risk
Factors” are not an exhaustive list of all risks associated with an investment in the Common Shares and should be 
read in conjunction with the information set forth elsewhere in this prospectus. See “Market for Securities” and 
“Risk Factors”.
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INVESTMENT HIGHLIGHTS 

Management believes that the following key attributes contribute to the strength of the Company’s business and 
future prospects. 

1. PetroNova has a diversified portfolio of Colombian Blocks with growth potential. PetroNova owns and 
operates two blocks in the Caguan-Putumayo Basin and has a 20% Participating Interest in three blocks in 
the Llanos Basin, which cover approximately 1,840,174 gross (519,196 net) acres combined.  As at March 
31, 2010, the Petrotech Resource Report has estimated the gross best estimate prospective resources 
attributable to the Colombian Assets to be 62.1 (57.1 net) MMbbls of light and medium oil and 184.7 
(167.7 net) MMbbls of heavy oil.  See “Independent Resource Evaluation” and “Risk Factors – Estimate 
of Resources”. 

2. The Colombian Blocks are located on a trend with existing major oil discoveries and fields. 
PetroNova’s PUT 2 Block is located in the same vicinity as Gran Tierra Energy Inc.’s Costayaco field and  
the Tinigua Block is on trend with Sinochem Corp.’s Capella field in the Ombu block.  Recent exploratory 
and outpost drilling in Pacific Rubiales’ Quifa block and in the CPE 6 block indicate a heavy oil belt trend 
that may extend over PetroNova’s bordering CPO 7 Block and CPO 13 Block located in the Llanos Basin. 
Additionally, preliminary information from the recently acquired 2D seismic survey in respect of the 
Llanos Blocks suggests the extension of the Quifa structural trend in line with the heavy oil belt postulated 
by Pacific Rubiales.  See “The Company’s Business – The Company’s Oil and Gas Properties”. 

3. Exploration drilling is expected to commence in 2011. The Company has undertaken EIAs in respect of 
several surface locations which will be required to obtain the necessary drilling permits. It is expected that 
exploratory drilling in the PUT 2 Block will commence in the second quarter of 2011 and a nine well 
exploratory drilling program in respect of the Llanos Blocks is expected to be launched in the first quarter 
of 2011. With respect to the Tinigua Block, field data which is required for the application of the necessary 
environmental permits is expected to be collected during the upcoming 3D seismic campaign to allow for 
the drilling of an exploratory well, expected to commence in the third quarter of 2011. 

4. Colombia continues to present an attractive fiscal regime and manageable geopolitical risk for oil 
and gas exploration and production. Due to Colombia’s combination of proven, under-developed 
hydrocarbon basins, competitive and stable contractual and fiscal terms and its improved security situation, 
management considers Colombia to be a very attractive country for oil and gas exploration and production. 
See “Risk Factors – Risks Related to the Company’s Business – Political and Regulatory”, “ – 
International Operations”, “– Legal Systems” and     “– Security and Guerrilla Activity in Colombia”.  

5. The Company has a proven and experienced management team. The Company’s management team has 
experience growing oil and gas companies in South America, in addition to local Colombian business 
experience. PetroNova’s senior management team has been working together for more than 10 years, 
exploring and developing oil and gas fields in South America, and takes a multi-disciplinary approach to 
value creation. In addition, the Company’s Advisory Committee consists of individuals with wide ranging 
oil and gas exploration and development experience and a track record of successful discoveries in South 
America.  See “Executive Officers and Directors”.

6. Strategic relationship with Tecpecol.  Tecpecol is the operator and the holder of an 80% Participating 
Interest in each of the Llanos Blocks.  The Company has developed a working relationship with Tecpecol 
which has been and is expected to continue to be a beneficial relationship for the Company.  Tecpecol, the 
affiliates of which have a combined annual production capacity of approximately 31.7 MMBOE, is a 
member of a Latin American group of companies with oil and gas exploration and production experience.  
See “The Company’s Business – The Company’s Oil and Gas Properties – Llanos Basin”. 
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THE COMPANY 

Overview 

The Company, through its subsidiaries, is engaged in the exploration for, and the acquisition and 
development of, oil and natural gas resources in South America, specifically in Colombia. The Company’s assets 
currently include the Colombian Assets, which consist of the Company’s various Participating Interests in the 
Colombian Blocks, two of which are operated by the Company.  The Colombian Blocks consist of the PUT 2 and 
the Tinigua Blocks located in the Caguan-Putumayo Basin, both of which are operated by the Company, and the 
non-operated Llanos Blocks located in the Llanos Basin. 

The Company’s strategy is to develop its existing portfolio of assets and to pursue further exploration 
opportunities in areas with proven hydrocarbon systems that the Company considers to be cost-effective and of low 
to moderate risk. 
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Summary of the Company’s Properties 

The following table summarizes the Company’s principal properties in Colombia: 

Basin Block
Participating 

Interest 

ANH
Participation 

Factor(1)
Net

Acres(2) Gross Acres 
Designated
Operator

Caguan-Putumayo PUT 2 100% 1% 96,665 96,665 PetroNova 
Caguan-Putumayo Tinigua 100%(3) – 94,924(2) 105,471 PetroNova 
Llanos CPO 6 20% 39% 108,670 543,350 Tecpecol 
Llanos CPO 7 20% 47% 125,558 627,792 Tecpecol 
Llanos CPO 13 20% 32% 93,379 466,896 Tecpecol 
Total    519,196 1,840,174 

Notes:
(1) In addition to the participation factor payable to the ANH, all properties are subject to the sliding scale royalty. See “The Company’s 

Business – The Company’s Oil and Gas Properties” and “Industry Conditions – The ANH Contracts – Royalties”.  
(2) Net acres consists of the gross acres multiplied by the Company’s Participating Interest and excludes adjustments for royalties and the 

participation factor payable to the ANH. With respect to the Tinigua Block, net acres has been calculated on the basis of the 
Company’s Participating Interest after giving effect to the 10% Private Working Interest which has been granted to a third party and 
excludes adjustments for royalties.  See “The Company’s Business – The Company’s Oil and Gas Properties – Tinigua Block”.

(3) The Company has a 100% Participating Interest in the Tinigua Block which is subject to a 10% Private Working Interest granted to a 
third party. See “The Company’s Business – The Company’s Oil and Gas Properties – The Caguan-Putumayo Basin – Tinigua 
Block”.

The principal features of each of the Company’s properties are described below under the heading “The 
Company’s Business — The Company’s Oil and Gas Properties”. 

Company Structure 

The Company was incorporated as “Inepetrol Inc.” under the ABCA on September 17, 2009 as a wholly 
owned subsidiary of SwedenCo. On May 12, 2010, the Company amended its articles to change its name to 
“PetroNova Inc.”.  On June 22, 2010, the Company amended its articles to: (i) change the authorized share capital of 
the Company from an unlimited number of Class “A” common voting shares, Class “B” common voting shares, 
Class “C” common non-voting shares and preferred shares to an unlimited number of Common Shares and preferred 
shares; (ii) convert the issued and outstanding Class “A” common voting shares into Common Shares; and (iii) to 
change the minimum number of directors from one (1) to three (3). On June 28, 2010, the Company amended its 
articles to remove the restrictions on share transfers. 

The Company’s registered office is located at 1900, 520 – 3rd Avenue S.W., Calgary, Alberta T2P 0R3. The 
Company conducts substantially all of its operations through the Cayman Opco CB office located at Carrera 10, 97A 
– 13, Offc. 505A, Bogotá, Colombia. 

The corporate ownership structure of the Company and its subsidiaries is set forth in the diagram below. 
The jurisdiction of incorporation of each of the Company and its subsidiaries is indicated below its name: 
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General Development of the Business  

Company History 

PetroNova was incorporated in September 2009 as a wholly owned subsidiary of SwedenCo, formerly a 
member of the Inelectra group of companies. Inelectra, one of the largest engineering and construction group of 
companies in Latin America, is focused on providing integrated engineering, construction and technical services 
principally to the petroleum, natural gas and energy sectors. Founded in 1968, Inelectra has managed energy projects 
in the Caribbean, North, Central and South America and Europe. In Colombia, Inelectra has managed energy 
projects for numerous companies including Ecopetrol, British Petroleum, Occidental Petroleum Corporation, Pacific 
Rubiales and Petrobras (Petrolio Brasileiro S.A.). 

In the early 1990’s, management of Inelectra decided to expand its activities into the oil and gas sector and 
successfully participated in several bidding rounds in Venezuela in the mid-1990’s. In 1997, Inelectra established 
VenezuelaCo, a small independent operator with oil and gas exploration and production activities in both onshore 
and offshore Venezuela. By the early 2000’s, VenezuelaCo had achieved considerable exploration and development 
success in Venezuela, having proved reserves of approximately 76 MMBOE in 2006, as reported to and approved by 
the Ministry of Mines and Hydrocarbons of Venezuela.

In 2007, VenezuelaCo became a wholly owned subsidiary of SwedenCo. One of SwedenCo’s key strategic 
objectives was to expand its oil and gas exploration and production activities internationally with particular interest 
in Colombia. Management of SwedenCo considered Colombia to be a country with under-developed, highly 
prospective, proven hydrocarbon basins with a business climate favourable to petroleum exploration companies. In 
2004, changes were implemented to the regulatory framework and the royalty structure of the oil industry in 
Colombia, which, together with a significantly improved security situation in Colombia, resulted in an improved 
business climate. 
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Commencing in 2007, SwedenCo, through VenezuelaCo, participated in a number of bidding rounds in 
Colombia and in 2008 and 2009, was allocated and awarded various Participating Interests in the Colombian Blocks. 
In early 2009, VenezuelaCo entered into the following E&P Contracts with the ANH with respect to the Colombian 
Blocks, which collectively cover approximately 1,840,174 gross (519,196 net) acres: 

a twenty (20%) percent Participating Interest in each of the Llanos Blocks located in the Llanos 
Basin. The remaining eighty (80%) percent Participating Interest is held by Tecpecol, who is also 
the operator of the Llanos Blocks; 

a one-hundred (100%) percent Participating Interest in the PUT 2 Block in the Caguan-Putumayo 
Basin. VenezuelaCo was named as the initial operator of the PUT 2 Block; and 

a one-hundred (100%) percent Participating Interest in the Tinigua Block in the Caguan-Putumayo 
Basin. VenezuelaCo was named as the initial operator of the Tinigua Block. A 10% Private 
Working Interest was subsequently assigned to an independent third party. 

In March 2010, the ANH approved the transfer of the Colombian Blocks to Cayman Opco CB. Cayman 
Opco CB and the Colombian Assets were subsequently indirectly acquired by the Company pursuant to the 
Reorganization Transactions.  Cayman Opco CB was subsequently named the operator of the PUT 2 Block and the 
Tinigua Block.  See “ – The Reorganization Transactions” and “The Company’s Business – The Company’s Oil 
and Gas Properties”. 

The costs associated with the identification, evaluation, assessment and acquisition of the Colombian 
Assets was initially funded through $15.2 million of loans advanced to VenezuelaCo by approximately 160 
SwedenCo shareholders and $4.5 million of VenezuelaCo’s own internal funds.  These combined amounts were also 
used, in part, by VenezuelaCo to provide the cash collateral to certain banks necessary for the issuance of $8.7 
million of performance guarantees required by the ANH as a condition of the allocation of the Colombian Blocks.

The Reorganization Transactions 

On June 28, 2010, the Company completed a series of transactions (the “Reorganization Transactions”)
pursuant to which PetroNova indirectly acquired the Colombian Assets, the rights to approximately $8.7 million of 
performance guarantees (including the cash collateral of approximately $7.7 million posted therefor) issued in 
favour of the ANH, assumed approximately $2.3 million in liabilities associated with the Colombian Assets and 
issued 98,660,044 Common Shares at a deemed price of Cdn$0.2067 per Common Share for aggregate 
consideration of $19,732,009, as more particularly described below.   

In November 2009, VenezuelaCo borrowed $15,232,008 from approximately 160 SwedenCo shareholders. 
This indebtedness was evidenced by the issuance of the Shareholders’ Promissory Notes. Pursuant to individual debt 
purchase and sale agreements between the Company and the SwedenCo shareholders dated June 28, 2010, the 
Company acquired the Shareholders’ Promissory Notes in exchange for an aggregate of 76,160,044 Common 
Shares. 

On June 3, 2010, VenezuelaCo authorized a dividend of $4,500,000 to SwedenCo. The dividend was 
satisfied through the issuance by VenezuelaCo of the VenezuelaCo Promissory Note. Pursuant to a debt purchase 
and sale agreement between the Company and SwedenCo dated June 28, 2010, the Company acquired the 
VenezuelaCo Promissory Note from SwedenCo in exchange for the issuance of 22,500,000 Common Shares to 
SwedenCo. 

Pursuant to the Asset Purchase Agreement, Cayman Opco acquired the Colombian Assets from 
VenezuelaCo for a purchase price of approximately $14.8 million.  The purchase price was satisfied through the 
payment of approximately $0.5 million in cash, the assumption by Cayman Opco of approximately $2.3 million in 
liabilities associated with the Colombian Assets and the issuance by Cayman Opco to VenezuelaCo of a demand 
promissory note of approximately $12.0 million. 
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Following the acquisition of the Promissory Notes by the Company, the Company assigned the Promissory 
Notes to Cayman Holdco for Cayman Holdco shares.  

Subsequent to the acquisition of the Colombian Assets by Cayman Opco for the consideration set out 
above, the shares of Cayman Opco were acquired by Cayman Holdco pursuant to the terms of the Share Purchase 
Agreement for consideration of $100, being the difference between the value of the Cayman Opco assets and 
amount of the outstanding Cayman Opco liabilities. 

Subsequent to the acquisition of the shares of Cayman Opco by Cayman Holdco, Cayman Holdco assigned 
the Promissory Notes to Cayman Opco for Cayman Opco shares. Pursuant to a set off agreement dated June 28, 
2010, Cayman Opco fully satisfied its obligations to VenezuelaCo under the $12.0 million demand promissory notes 
issued for the Colombian Assets and acquired the rights to approximately $8.7 million of performance guarantees 
(including the cash collateral of approximately $7.7 million posted therefor) in exchange for the surrender of the 
Promissory Notes. 

See “Prior Sales”.

Recent Developments 

On June 29, 2010, the Company completed the Private Placement pursuant to which an aggregate of 
10,000,000 Units were issued at a price of Cdn$1.00 per Unit for gross proceeds of Cdn$10,000,000. The net 
proceeds of the Private Placement have been and continue to be used by the Company to fund its exploration 
program in respect of the Colombian Assets acquired pursuant to the Reorganization Transactions and for general 
corporate purposes. See “Prior Sales”.   

On October 12, 2010, the Company issued an aggregate of 200,000 Units to certain newly appointed 
directors of the Company at a price of Cdn$1.00 per Unit for gross proceeds of Cdn$200,000, which was added to 
the working capital of the Company. See “Prior Sales”.  

Trends

There are a number of developing trends which are shaping the future of the oil and gas industry. 

The first trend is the volatility of commodity prices. Crude oil prices are influenced by the world economy 
and OPEC’s ability to adjust supply to world demand. Crude oil prices rose significantly during the mid-part of the 
past decade, peaking in 2008 as a result of: (i) growing world demand for oil; (ii) increasing costs of supply; and (iii) 
political and weather-related uncertainty in oil producing regions, resulting in an increased concern over potential 
supply disruptions. Crude oil prices dropped dramatically in the second half of 2008 and the first quarter of 2009 
after the financial crisis and the ensuing world-wide recession resulted in a reduced demand for oil, expanding oil 
inventories and concern about an oversupply of oil. Crude oil prices recovered in the second half of 2009 as a result 
of increasing oil demand and as concern over the world economic recession eased. 

A second trend, affecting the Colombian oil and gas industry in particular, is the increased activity levels in 
Colombia resulting from the country’s recently implemented regulatory regime. The regulatory regime in Colombia 
underwent a significant change in 2004. The ANH took over the role of regulating the Colombian oil and gas 
industry and significantly increased the amount of new exploration and production in the country. The ANH 
developed new forms of production sharing contracts for the development of exploration and production activities in 
Colombia, being the TEA and the E&P Contracts. Since the introduction of new contract terms, the ANH has 
announced the signing of numerous TEAs and E&P Contracts. See “Industry Conditions – The ANH”. 

A third trend, related to Colombia in general, is increased political, security and economic stability that has 
resulted in a 240% increase in foreign direct investment in the country from 2002 to 2009, according to yearly 
foreign direct investment statistics published by the Colombian Central Bank (Banco de la Republica). 
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A fourth trend affecting the Colombian oil and gas industry, which reflects increased activity in the 
country’s oil and gas sector and the Colombian economy generally, is increasing costs, including third party costs 
for seismic, drilling, completion, tie in and service activities. These increasing costs reflect the increased activity 
levels in the industry and have the effect of lengthening the payout on most capital investments. Although some 
costs have decreased since the 2008 peak in commodity prices, certain costs remain high, particularly costs related 
to seismic acquisition. 

THE COMPANY’S BUSINESS 

Overview 

The Company, through its subsidiaries, is engaged in the exploration for, and the acquisition and 
development of, oil and natural gas resources in South America, specifically in Colombia. The Company’s assets 
currently include the Colombian Assets, which consist of the Company’s various Participating Interests in the 
Colombian Blocks, two of which are operated by the Company.  The Colombian Blocks consist of the PUT 2 and 
the Tinigua Blocks located in the Caguan-Putumayo Basin, both of which are operated by the Company, and the 
non-operated Llanos Blocks located in the Llanos Basin.  See “– The Company’s Oil and Gas Properties”.

Business Objectives and Strategy 

PetroNova’s business objective is to build a diversified oil and gas exploration and production company in 
South America, initially focused on Colombia, with a view to expanding into additional countries in the future. The 
Company’s strategy is to develop its existing portfolio of assets and to pursue further exploration opportunities in 
areas with proven hydrocarbon systems that the Company considers to be cost-effective and of low to moderate risk. 
In addition, the Company will continue to evaluate strategic acquisition or business combination opportunities of oil 
and natural gas companies or properties from time to time where it views further exploration and development 
opportunities exist. To this effect, the Company may participate in future bid rounds in Colombia and elsewhere to 
acquire additional exploration acreage. The Company hopes to generate returns for its shareholders principally 
through capital growth and intends to take advantage of opportunities to acquire acreage and prospects suitable for 
exploration and development.  

The Company has established the following fundamental guidelines pursuant to which the Company 
evaluates the selection and participation in new areas in an attempt to mitigate the geological risk inherent to high 
potential exploration: 

the presence of a proven hydrocarbon system in the area is known; 

the existence and availability of technical information allows preliminary evaluations; 

the proximity to existing or underdeveloped infrastructure will allow the shipment of oil; and 

the economics are attractive under conservative price forecasts. 

The Company’s Oil and Gas Properties 

PetroNova has Participating Interests in two different geological basins in Colombia, each offering their 
own risk and reward profile with significant resource potential. All of the Company’s assets are located nearby or on 
trend with existing major oil fields or discoveries. The properties are located in the Caguan-Putumayo and Llanos 
Basins and cover approximately 1,840,174 gross (519,196 net) acres of exploration and production acreage on a 
combined basis. As at March 31, 2010, the Petrotech Resource Report has estimated the gross best estimate 
prospective resources attributable to the Colombian Assets to be 62.1 (57.1 net) MMbbls of light and medium oil 
and 184.7 (167.7 net) MMbbls of heavy oil. See “Independent Resource Evaluation”.  Certain information 
contained herein regarding the Company’s oil and gas properties has been derived from the Petrotech Resource 
Report. 
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Caguan-Putumayo Basin 

The Caguan-Putumayo Basin is located in southern Colombia and is the northern extension of the Oriente 
basin of Ecuador. The limit of the Caguan-Putumayo Basin to the northeast is the Caguan sub-basin. To the north 
and west are the Upper Magdalena Valley and the Eastern Cordillera. To the south is the continuation of the basin 
into Ecuador. The basin is approximately 104,000 km² and proved reserves of more than 365 MMbbls have been 
found to date in 19 oil fields. Texaco began exploration in the basin in 1948. In 1963, Texaco discovered the major 
Orito oil field, with estimated proved reserves of approximately 250 MMbbls. Several oil fields discovered in the 
basin document the existence of a petroliferous system at work. The evidence of the exploration potential of the 
Caguan-Putumayo Basin includes significant production in the 19 oil fields and the presence of giant oil fields in the 
nearby Oriente basin.  

The best source rocks in the Caguan-Putumayo Basin are cretaceous limestone and shale from the Villeta 
formation and the Macarena group organic shales with marine organic matter Type II, high petroliferous potential 
and average TOC of 0.5 - 1.0%. Cretaceous sandstones of the Caballos and Villeta formations are the best reservoir 
rocks toward the southern portion of the Caguan-Putumayo Basin, whereas in the northern portion of the basin, 
Eocene sandstones from the Mirador formation are the primary objective proved in the Capella field (Ombu block) 
and the Cretaceous sandstones of the Macarena group provide the secondary objective.  In the Caguan-Putumayo 
Basin, Cretaceous and paleogene shales provide excellent top and lateral seal units.  The main targets are structural 
traps associated with compressive regimes related with the episode of the Andean Orogenesis.  Oil fields in the basin 
are associated to structural traps, mainly fault-related folds and reverse faulting.  

The Company currently participates in two exploration blocks in the Caguan-Putumayo Basin: the PUT 2 
Block and the Tinigua Block. 

PUT 2 Block

The Company, through Cayman Opco, has a 100% Participating Interest in the PUT 2 Block which is 
96,665 gross (96,665 net) acres in size. The Participating Interest was granted by the ANH on February 18, 2009 and 
Cayman Opco CB has been designated by the ANH as operator of the block. The PUT 2 E&P Contract sets out the 
terms of the Company’s Participating Interest in the PUT 2 Block and provides for a sliding scale royalty rate on oil 
and gas production plus an additional 1% participation factor payable to the ANH.  See “Industry Conditions – The 
ANH Contracts”. 

There are more than 20 developed and/or discovered fields in the nearby area of the PUT 2 Block. The 
main reservoirs are the “T”, “U”, “M” and “N” sandstones of the Villeta formation from the Upper Cretaceous and 
the Caballos formation sandstones from Lower Cretaceous (Aptian–Albian). The Cretaceous shales of the Villeta 
formation are excellent top and lateral seal units; interbedded Cretaceous limestones and shales from the Villeta 
formation are excellent Type II source rocks. The Paleocene shales and claystones from Rumiyaco formation 
provide the regional seal of the basin.  

The main trapping mechanisms in the Putumayo Foreland near the PUT 2 Block are reverse faults, whereas 
in the Putumayo Foothill area, structural traps associated with thrusts and sub-thrusts provide the main targets. 
Additional traps are Cretaceous pinch-outs over basement or Palezoic Highs. 

Interpretation of reprocessed 2D seismic lines (over 1,500 km) within the PUT 2 Block defined three initial 
prospects (North Canelo, South Canelo and Nogal 01) and, more recently, two additional prospects (North Cedrillo 
and South Cedrillo). The North Canelo and South Canelo prospects are located towards the northern portion of the 
Block and are structurally related to the transition to the Foothill area. The Nogal 01, North Cedrillo and South 
Cedrillo prospects are structurally related to the Foreland area. 

As at March 31, 2010, the Petrotech Resource Report estimates the Company’s Participating Interest in the 
PUT 2 Block to have gross best estimate prospective resources of 53.2 MMbbls of light and medium oil. See 
“Independent Resource Evaluation”. 
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The Company’s exploration program commitments under the PUT 2 E&P Contract are as follows: 

Phase Duration(1) Minimum Exploration Program Commitments(2) Amount $(2)(3) 

1 36 months Acquire, process and interpret 79 km of 2D seismic    1,975,000 

  Drill one (1) Exploratory A-3 Well  4,000,000 

2 36 months Drill two (2) Exploratory A-3 Wells   8,000,000 

  Total Minimum Exploration Program   13,975,000 

Additional Exploration Program 
1 13 months Acquire, process and interpret 12 km of 2D seismic      300,000 

2 13 months Acquire, process and interpret 10 km2 of 3D seismic      400,000 

   Total Exploration Program 14,675,000 

Notes:
(1) Indicates the duration in months following the expiry of the 6 month pre-exploration phase.
(2) Represents the Company’s minimum financial obligation in respect of the work to be completed under the PUT 2 E&P Contract and is

based on management’s cost estimate for such work at the time the PUT 2 E&P Contract was granted.  The actual cost of such work
may be more or less than the amounts prescribed in the PUT 2 E&P Contract and such variances could be material.  See 
“Management‘s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations – Commitments”. 

(3) As at September 30, 2010, the Company has incurred expenditures in the amount of approximately $5,270,000 in respect of the 
Company’s obligations under Phase 1 of the minimum exploration program required under the PUT 2 E&P Contract.  See “– 
Exploration Program”. 

The Company is currently in Phase 1 of the minimum exploration program required under the PUT 2 E&P 
Contract.  To date, the Company has completed the reprocessing and reinterpretation of 2D seismic data, which 
resulted in the identification of five prospects. A seismic information exchange with the neighbouring ALEA 1947-
C block indicates the possible extension of a structure in that block into the southeast portion of the PUT 2 Block 
near the Nogal prospect. In addition, the Company has completed the acquisition of 2D seismic data.  The Company 
currently intends to drill the first Exploratory A-3 Well on the PUT 2 Block, which drilling is expected to commence 
in 2011. The preliminary planning necessary to drill the Exploratory A-3 Well, including obtaining the necessary 
licenses and permits, is currently underway.  See “– Exploration Program” and “Industry Conditions – The ANH 
Contracts”. 

Tinigua Block

The Company, through Cayman Opco, has a 100% Participating Interest (which is subject to a 10% Private 
Working Interest) in the Tinigua Block which is 105,471 gross (94,924 net) acres in size. The Participating Interest 
was granted by the ANH on January 23, 2009 and Cayman Opco CB has been designated  by the ANH as operator 
of the block.   The Tinigua E&P Contract sets out the terms of the Company’s Participating Interest in the Tinigua 
Block and provides for a sliding scale royalty rate on oil and gas production. There is no additional participation 
factor payable to the ANH under the Tinigua E&P Contract.  See “Industry Conditions – The ANH Contracts”.

Pursuant to the terms of the Tinigua Participation Agreement, Cayman Opco has agreed, subject to the 
fulfillment of certain conditions, including the approval of ANH, to assign 10% of its rights to the Tinigua E&P 
Contract to an independent third party. Under the terms of the Tinigua Participation Agreement, Cayman Opco is 
required to pay all costs and expenses associated with the completion of perforation and testing of the first 
Exploratory A-3 Well as prescribed in the Tinigua Phase 2 exploration program. After such time, the third party may 
elect to participate further in the Tinigua Block. Should the third party elect to participate, it: (i) is responsible for 
10% of all future costs; (ii) is obligated to repay Cayman Opco its share of incurred costs and expenses; and (iii) is 
entitled, subject to receipt of ANH approval, to the formal assignment to it of a 10% Participating Interest in the 
Tinigua E&P Contract. Should the third party elect not to participate, Cayman Opco will retain the 10% 
Participating Interest without further obligation to or from the third party. 
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 The Tinigua Block is located in the northern portion of the Caguan-Putumayo Basin. In this area, the 
Upper Cretaceous section (Macarena group) contains excellent Type II kerogen source rock as well as sandstone 
reservoirs with good petrophysical properties and representing objectives of potential oil accumulations. The Upper 
Eocene Mirador formation is the primary objective because of its excellent reservoir properties. The Uppermost part 
of the Lower Cretaceous (Albian) and Upper Cretaceous (Cenomanian–Campanian) sediments covers the entire 
Tinigua Block. In addition, the Upper Eocene Mirador formation is the oil producer in the Ombu block and is also 
the primary objective in the Tinigua prospect. 

As at March 31, 2010, the Petrotech Resource Report estimates the Company’s Participating Interest 
(excluding the 10% Private Working Interest) in the Tinigua Block to have gross best estimate prospective resources 
of 177.1 MMbbls of heavy oil. See “Independent Resource Evaluation”.

The Company’s exploration program commitments under the Tinigua E&P Contract are as follows: 

Phase Duration(1) Minimum Exploration Program Commitments Estimated Amount ($)(2) (3) 

1 24 months Conduct surface geological study in 50 km2 area of interest 
including sampling of stratigraphic column and structure data 

     150,000 

  Conduct bio-stratigraphy from samples of surface geology of pre-
existing wells 

       50,000 

  Conduct satellital image of the area of environmental interests 
relating to facilities and areas to be conducted by seismic 

       62,000 

  Reprocess 2D seismic data      100,000 

  Conduct surface geochemical survey of 100 sample points for rock 
and fluid analyses and identify geochemical anomalies of interest  

     150,000 

  Acquire, process and interpret 55.4 km2 3D seismic   3,000,000 

  Study interpretation of geological and geophysical data      200,000 

2 12 months Drill one (1) Exploratory A-3 Well   4,500,000 

3 12 months Drill one (1) Exploratory A-2 Well   4,500,000 

4 8 months Re-interpretation and study      350,000 

5 12 months Acquire, process and interpret 25 km2 3D seismic   2,500,000 

6 10 months Drill one (1) Exploratory A-2 Well   4,500,000 

Total Minimum Exploration Program 20,062,000 

Notes:
(1) Indicates the duration in months following the expiry of the 6 month pre-exploration phase.  The duration of Phase 1 was extended

from 18 months to 24 months on November 25, 2010. 
(2) The commitment in respect of the Tinigua E&P Contract relates to the exploration program to be completed.  The estimated dollar

amount represents management’s cost estimate for such work at the time at the time the Tinigua E&P Contract was granted.  The 
actual cost of such work may  be more or less than the amounts prescribed in the Tinigua E&P Contract and such variances could be
material.  See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations – Commitments”. 

(3) As at September 30, 2010, the Company has incurred expenditures in the amount of approximately $2,092,000 in respect of the 
Company’s obligations under  Phase 1 of the minimum exploration program required under the Tinigua E&P Contract.  See “– 
Exploration Program”

 The Company is currently in Phase 1 of the minimum exploration program required under the Tinigua E&P 
Contract.  To date, the Company has completed the reprocessing and reinterpretation of 2D seismic data, which 
resulted in the identification of the Tinigua prospect.  The Company has contracted for the completion of a 3D 
seismic survey which will commence once the Company has obtained the necessary licenses and permits.  Pending 
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the commencement of the 3D seismic survey, the Company has contracted for the completion of a surface 
geochemical study of the Tinigua prospect.  See “– Exploration Program” and “Industry Conditions – The ANH 
Contracts”. 

Llanos Basin 

The Llanos Basin is located in the Eastern region of Colombia. Geomorphologic boundaries are the 
Colombian-Venezuela border to the north, Macarena High and Vaupés Arch to the south, Guaicaramo fault system 
to the west and Guyana Shield to the east.  More than 1,500 MMbbls of recoverable oil has been officially 
documented. Two giants (Caño-Limón and Castilla), three major (Rubiales, Apiay and Tame Complex) and more 
than fifty minor fields have been discovered to date in the basin. 

Source rocks for the Llanos Basin are in fact located beneath the east flank of the Eastern Cordillera. Mixed 
marine-continental shales of the Gachetá formation with kerogen type II and III, TOC ranging from 1 - 3% and 150 
to 300 ft of effective thickness are the main source. 

Two pulses of migration have been documented. The first one was during the Upper Eocene-Oligocene. 
The second pulse of migration started in Miocene time and continues today. 

The Palaeogene Carbonera (C-3, C-5 and C-7) and Mirador sandstones are excellent reservoir units. Within 
the Cretaceous sequence, several sandstone intervals are also excellent reservoirs. Without exceptions, sedimentary 
thickness increases in an east to west direction. Porosity decreases in the same direction from 30% to near 10%. Pay 
thickness varies from a few ft up to 180 ft, depending on the location of the well within the basin. API gravity 
ranges from 12 º to 42º. 

The C-8 unit of the Carbonera formation has been traditionally considered the regional seal of the basin, 
but because of its extension, the best seal is the Carbonera C-2 Unit. The Carbonera even-numbered units are 
recognized as local seals as well as the Cretaceous Gachetá and Guadalupe formations that may be self-sealant. 

Exploration drilling has been concentrated in normal, up-to-the basin (antithetic) faults. Poorly tested 
reverse fault anticlines, low-relief anticlines and stratigraphic traps (pinchouts, paleohighs, channels, etc.) are all 
high potential exploration targets. In relation to this, a seismic data exchange between the Company and Pacific 
Rubiales is currently being negotiated in respect of Pacific Rubiales’ Quifa, CPO 12 and CPE 6 blocks and 
PetroNova’s CPO 7 and CPO 13 Blocks. Management of the Company hopes that such data exchange will provide 
the Company with a better understanding of the possible regional extension of the heavy oil belt recently postulated 
by Pacific Rubiales. 

This basin has been moderately drilled and subtle stratigraphic traps have not been deeply studied. Potential 
areas for hydrocarbon accumulation are located in the southern and eastern portion of the basin. The south-western 
portion, south of the Castilla field, is also a highly prospective area. 

The Company currently participates in three exploration blocks in the Llanos Basin: the CPO 6 Block, the 
CPO 7 Block and the CPO 13 Block. 

CPO 6 Block

The Company, through Cayman Opco, has a 20% Participating Interest in the CPO 6 Block which is 
543,350 gross (108,670 net) acres in size. The Participating Interest was granted by the ANH on January 14, 2009 
and Tecpecol, the owner of the remaining 80% Participating Interest, has been designated by the ANH as operator of 
the block.  The CPO 6 E&P Contract sets out the terms of the Company’s Participating Interest in the CPO 6 Block 
and provides for a sliding scale royalty rate on oil and gas production plus an additional 39% participation factor 
payable to the ANH.  See “Industry Conditions – The ANH Contracts”. 

The CPO 6 Block is in the southern portion of the Llanos Basin. The main structural trapping mechanism in 
this area is related to northeast to southwest oriented normal antithetic faults. Small throw fault closure of 20 to 50 ft 
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can provide an effective trap when massive reservoir rocks of Carbonera formation sands in the upthrown side are in 
contact with sealing Carbonera formation shales in the downthrown side of the fault. The migration of the source 
rocks generally occurs from the structurally low area to a higher area in the subsurface. It can be local and can occur 
along distances of hundreds of miles in large sedimentary basins. 

The entire CPO 6 Block is related to the Caracara fields geological trend which consists of Caracara, 
Caracara Sur, Rancho Quemado, Toro Sentado, Manacacias Norte and Manacacias Sur fields. The trapping 
mechanism in this geological trend is structural closure related to antithetic normal fault and can be identified by 2-
D and 3-D seismic surveys. The target formation is the Carbonera C7 sand. 

Prospective resources have been assigned to the three identified prospects in the C7 formation. As at March 
31, 2010, the Petrotech Resource Report estimates the Company’s Participating Interest in the CPO 6 Block to have 
gross best estimate prospective resources of 2.0 MMbbls of light and medium oil. See “Independent Resource 
Evaluation”.

The exploration program commitments of the Company and Tecpecol (collectively, the “Llanos 
Contractors”) under the CPO 6 E&P Contract are as follows: 

Phase Duration(1) Minimum Exploration Program Commitments(2) Amount $(2)
PetroNova’s
Obligation(3)

1 36 months Acquire, process and interpret 600 km of 2D seismic 12,000,000 2,400,000 

  Drill two (2) Exploratory A-3 Wells to 1,800 m 2,760,000 552,000 

2 36 months Drill three (3) Exploratory A-3 Wells to 1,800 m 4,140,000 828,000

  Total Minimum Exploration Program 18,900,000 3,780,000 

Additional Exploratory Program 
1 36 months Drill one (1) Exploratory A-3 Well to 2,100 m 1,600,000 320,000
     
  Total Exploration Program 20,500,000 4,100,000 

Notes:
(1) Indicates the duration in months following the expiry of the 6 month pre-exploration phase.
(2) Represents the Llanos Contractors’ minimum financial obligation in respect of the work to be completed under the CPO 6 E&P 

Contract and is based on the Llanos Contractors’ cost estimate for such work at the time the CPO 6 E&P Contract was granted.  The
actual cost of such work may be more or less than the amounts prescribed in the CPO 6 E&P Contract and such variances could be 
material.  See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations – Commitments”. 

(3) The Company has a 20% Participating Interest in the CPO 6 E&P Contract.  Accordingly, PetroNova is responsible for 20% of the 
financial obligation associated with the minimum exploration commitment.  As at September 30, 2010, the Company has incurred 
expenditures in the amount of approximately $3,134,000 in respect of the Company’s obligations under Phase 1 of the minimum 
exploration program required under the CPO 6 E&P Contract.  See “–Exploration Program”. 

The Llanos Contractors are currently in Phase 1 of the minimum exploration program required under the 
CPO 6 E&P Contract.  To date, the Llanos Contractors have completed the reprocessing and reinterpretation of 2D 
seismic data, which resulted in the identification of three prospects.  Reinterpretation of all seismic information 
available on the block and preliminary planning necessary to drill the Exploratory A-3 Wells is currently underway.  
See “– Exploration Program” and “Industry Conditions – The ANH Contracts”. 

CPO 7 Block

The Company, through Cayman Opco, has a 20% Participating Interest in the CPO 7 Block which is 
627,792 gross (125,558 net) acres in size. The Participating Interest was granted by the ANH on January 14, 2009 
and Tecpecol, the owner of the remaining 80% Participating Interest, has been designated by the ANH as operator of 
the block.  The CPO 7 E&P Contract sets out the terms of the Company’s Participating Interest in the CPO 7 Block 
and provides for a sliding scale royalty rate on oil and gas production plus an additional 47% participation factor 
payable to the ANH.  See “Industry Conditions – The ANH Contracts”.
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The CPO 7 Block is in the southern portion of the Llanos Basin. The main structural trapping mechanism in 
this area is related to northeast to southwest oriented normal antithetic faults. Small throw fault closure of 20 to 50 ft 
can provide an effective trap when massive reservoir rocks of Carbonera formation sands in the upthrown side are in 
contact with sealing Carbonera formation shales in the downthrown side of the fault. The migration of the source 
rocks generally occurs from the structurally low area to a higher area in the subsurface. It can be local and can occur 
along distances of hundred of miles in large sedimentary basins. 

The north-western portion of the CPO 7 Block is related to the Caracara fields geological trend which 
consists of Caracara, Caracara Sur, Rancho Quemado, Toro Sentado, Manacacias Norte and Manacacias Sur fields. 
The trapping mechanism in this geological trend is structural closure related to antithetic normal fault and can be 
identified by 2-D and 3-D seismic surveys. The target units are the Carbonera C5 and C7 sands. 

Prospective resources have been assigned to the three identified prospects in the C5 and C7 sands. All three 
prospects are located in the north-western portion of the block which is adjacent to the Caracara Geological Trend. 
As at March 31, 2010, the Petrotech Resource Report estimates the Company’s Participating Interest in the CPO 7 
Block to have gross best estimate prospective resources of 6.9 MMbbls of light and medium oil. See “Independent 
Resource Evaluation”.

The Llanos Contractors’ exploration program commitments under the CPO 7 E&P Contract are as follows: 

Phase Duration(1) Minimum Exploration Program Commitments(2) Amount $(2)
PetroNova’s
Obligation(3)

1 36 months Acquire, process and interpret 650 km of 2D seismic 13,000,000 2,600,000 

  Drill two (2) Exploratory A-3 Wells to 1,700 m   2,560,000 512,000 

2 36 months Drill three (3) Exploratory A-3 Wells to 1,700 m   3,840,000 768,000

  Total Minimum Exploration Program 19,400,000 3,880,000 

Additional Exploratory Program 
1 36 months Drill one (1) Exploratory A-3 Well to 2,100 m   1,600,000 320,000

  Total Exploration Program 21,000,000 4,200,000 

Notes:
(1) Indicates the duration in months following the expiry of the 6 month pre-exploration phase.
(2) Represents the Llanos Contractors’ minimum financial obligation in respect of the work to be completed under the CPO 7 E&P 

Contract and is based on the Llanos Contractors’ cost estimate for such work at the time the CPO 7 E&P Contract was granted.  The
actual cost of such work may be more or less than the amounts prescribed in the CPO 7 E&P Contract and such variances could be 
material.  See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations – Commitments”. 

(3) The Company has a 20% Participating Interest in the CPO 7 E&P Contract.  Accordingly , PetroNova is responsible for 20% of the 
financial obligation associated with the minimum exploration commitment.  As at September 30, 2010, the Company has incurred 
expenditures in the amount of approximately $3,729,000 in respect of the Company’s obligations under Phase 1 of the minimum 
exploration program required under the CPO 7 E&P Contract. See “– Exploration Program”.

The Llanos Contractors are currently in Phase 1 of the minimum exploration program required under the 
CPO 7 E&P Contract.  To date, the Llanos Contractors have completed the reprocessing and reinterpretation of 2D 
seismic data, which resulted in the identification of three prospects.  In addition, the Company completed the 
acquisition of 2D seismic data, the results of which are currently being reprocessed and reinterpreted by the 
Company. Reinterpretation of all seismic information available on the block and preliminary planning necessary to 
drill the Exploratory A-3 Wells is currently underway.  See “– Exploration Program” and “Industry Conditions – 
The ANH Contracts”. 

CPO 13 Block

The Company, through Cayman Opco, has a 20% Participating Interest in the CPO 13 Block which is 
466,896 gross (93,379 net) acres in size. The Participating Interest was granted by the ANH on January 14, 2009 and 
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Tecpecol, the owner of the remaining 80% Participating Interest, has been designated by the ANH as operator of the 
block.  The CPO 13 E&P Contract sets out the terms of the Company’s Participating Interest in the CPO 13 Block 
and provides for a sliding scale royalty rate on oil and gas production plus an additional 32% participation factor 
payable to the ANH.  See “Industry Conditions – The ANH Contracts”. 

The CPO 13 Block is located immediately south-west of the Quifa block and Rubiales field. Oil 
accumulation is concentrated in the sandstones of the Lower Tertiary Basal Carbonera formation (Eocene – 
Oligocene) within a general depth of 2,400 ft to 2,900 ft measured depth (732 to 884 m). These reservoirs lie 
unconformably on the Palaeozoic basement. They underlie an Oligocene-Lower Miocene sequence of inter-bedded 
fluvial to marginal marine sandstone, shale, limestone and coal.  

The antithetic down to the shield faulted blocks are the most common play in the Llanos Basin. These 
normal faults propagate throughout the basin during foreland tectonic loading. The trap for updip migrating oil 
forms as the stratigraphic units dipping toward the basin get involved in down to the shield faulting. 

Previous studies of the Rubiales field indicate a possible stratigraphic trap for the oil accumulation, but the 
seismic and well data point to other trapping options. In addition, the stratigraphy also plays an important role for 
the trapping mechanism as the sand-rich fluvial deposits of Basal Carbonera encounter the antithetic faults. 

The objective formation is the Basal Carbonera sandstone. The Basal Carbonera sandstones are highly 
porous and exhibit low water saturation above the oil/water contact.  

Prospective resources have been assigned to the three identified prospects in the Basal Carbonera sands 
which are in trend with, and adjacent to, the Quifa block and the Rubiales field. As at March 31, 2010, the Petrotech 
Resource Report estimates the Company’s Participating Interest in the CPO 13 Block to have gross best estimate 
prospective resources of 7.6 MMbbls of heavy oil. See “Independent Resource Evaluation”.  

The Llanos Contactors’ exploration program commitments under the CPO 13 E&P Contract are as follows: 

Phase Duration(1) Minimum Exploration Program Commitments(2)
Estimated

Amount $(2)
PetroNova’s
Obligation(3)

1 36 months Acquire, process and interpret 775 km of 2D seismic 15,500,000 3,100,000 

  Drill three (3) Exploratory A-3 Wells to 900 m 2,880,000    576,000 

2 36 months Drill three (3) Exploratory A-3 Wells to 900 m 2,880,000    576,000 

  Total Minimum Exploration Program 21,260,000 4,252,000 

Additional Exploratory Program 
1 36 months Acquire, process and interpret 15 km of 2D seismic     300,000      60,000 

   Total Exploration Program 21,560,000 4,312,000 

Notes:
(1) Indicates the duration in months following the expiry of the 6 month pre-exploration phase.
(2) Represents the Llanos Contractors’ minimum financial obligation in respect of the work to be completed under the CPO 13 E&P 

Contract and is based on the Llanos Contractors’ cost estimate for such work at the time the CPO 13 E&P Contract was granted.  The 
actual cost of such work may be more or less than the amounts prescribed in the CPO 13 E&P Contract and such variances could be
material.  See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations – Commitments”. 

(3) The Company has a 20% Participating Interest in the CPO 13 E&P Contract.  Accordingly, PetroNova is responsible for 20% of the 
financial obligation associated with the minimum exploration commitment.  As at September 30, 2010, the Company has incurred 
expenditures in the amount of approximately $3,538,000 in respect of the Company’s obligations under Phase 1 of the minimum 
exploration program required under the CPO 13 E&P Contract. See “– Exploration Program”.    

The Llanos Contractors are currently in Phase 1 of the minimum exploration program required under the 
CPO 13 E&P Contract. To date, the Llanos Contractors have completed the reprocessing and reinterpretation of 2D 
seismic data. In addition, the Llanos Contractors have completed the acquisition of 2D seismic data, the results of 
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which are currently being reprocessed and reinterpreted, and which have resulted in the identification of three 
prospects. Preliminary planning necessary to drill the first Exploratory A-3 Well of Phase 1 is currently underway.  
See “– Exploration Program” and “Industry Conditions – The ANH Contracts”. 

Exploration Program 

The Company and, in the case of the Llanos Blocks, the Llanos Contractors, have developed a four year 
$76.7 million exploration program for the Colombian Blocks.  The exploration program, which commenced in 2009 
and extends to 2012, consists primarily of exploratory drilling and testing of wells and acquisition, processing and 
interpretation of 2D and 3D seismic data on the Colombian Blocks.  The exploration program will satisfy and 
exceed the minimum exploration commitments prescribed by the E&P Contracts for each of the Colombian Blocks 
described under the heading “ – The Company’s Oil and Gas Properties”.  In addition, the exploration program 
includes provisions for additional exploration works to be completed by the Company on the Colombian Blocks. 
The exploration program for the Colombian Blocks is set forth in the table below: 

Planned Expenditures Estimated Amount(1)(2) Amount Expended(3) Remaining Expenditures(4)

   
Exploration Program    

   
PUT 2 Block (Phase 1)  $14,070,424 $5,270,424 $8,800,000 
    
Tinigua Block (Phase 1) $11,092,184 $2,092,184 $9,000,000 
    
Tinigua Block (Phase 2) $7,700,000 – $7,700,000 
    
CPO 6 Block (Phase 1) $5,234,383 $3,134,383 $2,100,000 
    
CPO 7 Block (Phase 1) $6,429,175 $3,729,175 $2,700,000 
    
CPO 13 Block (Phase 1) $5,737,678 $3,537,678 $2,200,000 
    

Additional Exploration Program(5)    
   

Seismic Acquisition $8,500,000 – $8,500,000 
    
 Additional Wells $13,100,000 – $13,100,000 
    
General and Administrative    
 G&A (after Sept 30, 2010) $4,800,000 – $4,800,000 

Total $76,663,844 $17,763,844 $58,900,000 

Notes:
(1) The “Estimated Amount” consists of the Company’s Participating Interest share of exploration program expenditures on the 

designated Colombian Blocks.
(2) Excludes general and administrative expenses.
(3) Reflects exploration expenditures incurred by the Company to September 30, 2010.
(4) Reflects the Company’s estimated share of remaining exploration program expenditures on the designated Colombian Blocks.
(5) Reflects combined additional exploration program expenditures on all of the Colombian Blocks.

The Company plans to fund its remaining exploration program expenditures with the Net Proceeds of the 
Offering, being approximately Cdn$60,726,000. See “Use of Proceeds”.

The estimates above represent forward-looking information and reflects management’s current expectations 
regarding its business plans. The Company’s actual expenditures may vary depending on a variety of factors, 
including the availability of equipment and personnel and the success of the Company’s business development 
activities.  See “Notice to Investors – Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements” and “Risk Factors”.  
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Employees and Specialized Skill and Knowledge 

As at November 30, 2010, the Company, including its subsidiaries, had 19 employees.   

PetroNova’s oil and gas exploration and development activities in Colombia require specialized skills and 
knowledge in the areas of petroleum engineering, geology, geophysics and drilling. In addition, specific knowledge 
and expertise relating to local laws in Colombia (including regulations relating to land tenure, exploration, 
development, production, marketing, transportation, the environment, royalties and taxation) and market conditions 
required to compete with other oil and gas entities operating in Colombia.  In order to source the specialized skills 
and knowledge required to successfully carry out the Company’s operations, the Company has entered into the 
Technical Services Agreement.  Pursuant to the Technical Services Agreement, VenezuelaCo has agreed to provide 
geological, geophysical and engineering services to the Company in Colombia. The fees to be paid to VenezuelaCo 
for the provision of such services are approximately $25,000/month. 

Royalties and Taxes 

All of the properties described above are subject to the standard ANH royalties, high price sharing and 
corporate taxes. See “Industry Conditions – The ANH Contracts – Exploration and Production Contracts”. 

Environment

The Company is committed to high environmental standards. The MAVDT requires environmental licences 
for all new activities in accordance with strict national standards and closely monitors activities by reviewing reports 
and making onsite inspections. The environmental licences are very detailed plans, including contingency plans 
which the Company complies with. In addition, the Company may be required to obtain from time to time, the 
approvals of regional authorities that are autonomous from the MAVDT in respect of environmental matters such as 
waste disposal and water pollution. See “Industry Conditions – Environmental Regulatory Framework”.

The Company has an environmental team based in Bogotá, Colombia who is responsible for obtaining 
environmental licences and filing environmental reports. This team works closely with field-based operating 
personnel and sub-contractors who are responsible for implementing the environmental plans. 

The Company carries out its activities and operations in compliance with all relevant and applicable 
environmental regulations and best industry practices. At present, the Company believes that it meets all applicable 
environmental standards and regulations and has included appropriate amounts in its capital expenditure budget to 
continue to meet its continuing environmental obligations. The costs incurred by the Company in respect of 
continued environmental compliance amounted to less than 1% of the total capital expenditures incurred by the 
Company to date. See “Risk Factors – Risks Related to the Company’s Business – Environmental”. 

Community Relations 

The Company has an internal commitment to community relationships in the areas where the Company has 
operations. This commitment is demonstrated by making community relationships a key responsibility in each area 
in which the Company operates and assigning staff to ensure the community’s needs and the Company’s impact on 
the community are addressed. Local employment is promoted by identifying, providing and supporting job 
opportunities.  

If the oil and gas exploration or exploitation activities of the Company will directly affect indigenous 
communities, the Company is required to undergo an extensive consultation process with such communities and 
prepare a plan which seeks to mitigate the impact of such activities. The Company is also required to compensate 
affected indigenous communities in respect of the impact of the Company’s exploration and exploitation activities. 
The Company has undertaken an extensive consultation process with the indigenous communities that reside within 
the Colombian Blocks over the past year, which process is ongoing.  See “Industry Conditions – Environmental 
Regulatory Framework”.
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Security

Although there are certain security risks associated with operating in Colombia, the security environment in 
Colombia has improved since the 2002 presidential election and the Company believes many of the risks can be 
effectively managed. Working with local communities promotes an atmosphere of mutual respect, benefit and trust, 
and thereby decreases the risk of serious security issues. Within Bogotá and in field operating areas, the Company 
maintains contact with appropriate local, regional and national bodies to monitor any local security situations and 
mitigate risk. Although the Company has experienced some minor disruptions on its properties, no significant 
security incidents in Colombia have affected the Company’s operations since inception. See “Risk Factors – Risks 
Related to the Company’s Business – Security and Guerrilla Activity in Colombia”. 

Competitive Conditions  

There is considerable competition in the world-wide oil and natural gas industry, including in Colombia 
where the Company’ assets and activities are located. Operators more established than the Company, with access to 
broader technical skills, larger amounts of capital and other resources, are active in the industry in Colombia. This 
represents a significant risk for the Company, which must rely on modest resources and access to capital markets for 
funding of its activities. See “Risk Factors – Risks Related to the Company’s Business – Competition”. 

Foreign Operations 

The Company’s assets are currently located in Colombia. Consequently, the Company is subject to certain 
risks, including currency fluctuations and possible political or economic instability. See “Risk Factors” in this 
prospectus for a further description of the risk factors affecting the Company’s operations. 

INDUSTRY CONDITIONS 

Colombian Market 

Oil is currently Colombia’s leading export and source of foreign trade, constituting just over one-third of 
the country’s total foreign trade (Source: International Trade Centre, http://www.trademap.com). Historically, all oil 
production was undertaken directly and through Ecopetrol in contracts of association with foreign companies. 
Ecopetrol is the majority state-owned company responsible for the exploration, extraction, production, transportation 
and marketing of oil for export. At the start of the 21st century, Colombia was considered to be at risk of becoming a 
net oil importer and, as a result, the regulatory regime in Colombia underwent a significant change effective January 
1, 2004, with the formation of the ANH. Under these new policies, the ANH has taken over the role of regulating the 
Colombian oil industry and Ecopetrol has taken on a new role as a domestic producer that competes directly with 
foreign and domestic companies. The new policies and structure also resulted in a significant increase in Colombian 
exploration activity and competition. Management of the Company believes that these changes, along with increased 
commodity prices, makes Colombia an attractive environment for the Company to do business. 

Oil was first commercially produced in Colombia in 1918 at the La Cira-Infantas field. From that date 
onward, oil fields in Colombia have produced a total of 6.3 billion Bbls. Other significant oil fields in the country 
include Caño Limon (est. 1983) in the northeast Llanos Basin near the Venezuelan border, which has produced in 
excess of 950 MMbbls and averaged slightly more than 49,000 Bbls/d during 2009, the Cusiana-Cupiagua complex 
(est. 1988) which has produced in excess of 1.384 billion Bbls and is currently producing approximately 50,700 
Bbls/d and the Rubiales field located in the Llanos Basin with average daily production of approximately 116,000 
Bbls/d. Since the completion of the initial development of the Cusiana-Cupiagua complex, oil production in the 
country dropped from approximately 816,000 Bbls/d in 1999 to 526,000 Bbls/d in 2005.   

There are seven commercial oil producing basins in Colombia – the Upper, Middle and Lower Magdalena 
Valley; Llanos; Caguan-Putumayo; Catatumbo; and the Guajira basins. Oil extracted from fields in these basins is 
transported through Colombia’s five oil pipelines, four of which (the OCENSA Pipeline, which transports oil from 
the Cusiana-Cupiagua complex, the 490 mile Caño Limon pipeline, and the Alto Magdalena and Colombia Oil 
pipelines) connect production fields to the Caribbean port town of Coveñas through the Caño Limon – Coveñas 
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pipeline. The fifth pipeline, the Transandino or Trans Andean pipeline, transports crude oil from the Orito field in 
the Caguan-Putumayo Basin to Colombia’s Pacific port of Tumaco. Infrastructure throughout Colombia is well 
developed, however, expansion is required to accommodate the expected increases in production. 

Most of Colombia’s oil exports are to the United States. Colombia is among the ten largest suppliers of 
foreign crude oil to the United States. Colombia could become a larger oil supplier to the United States in the years 
ahead given that Colombia’s known oil reserves amount to an estimated 2.6 billion Bbls in the current seven basins, 
according to the ANH website. Venezuela, Colombia and parts of Ecuador share the “La Luna” oil source rock, 
which is believed to be one of the most prolific in the world and includes the Venezuela Orinoco belt, one of the 
world’s largest accumulations of hydrocarbons. 

The ANH 

The regulatory regime in Colombia underwent a significant change in 2004 with the creation of the ANH 
by Decree 1760 of 2003 (“Decree 1760”). The ANH has taken over the role of regulating the Colombian oil 
industry and significantly increased the amount of new exploration and production in the country. According to 
Decree 1760, the ANH’s role is: (i) to act as the administrator of hydrocarbon resources; (ii) to award exploration 
and production areas; and (iii) to design, promote, execute and act as administrator of new exploration and 
production contracts. 

Ecopetrol was formerly a wholly-owned state oil company and became a publicly-held company in 2004. 
Ecopetrol maintains its exploration and production activities throughout Colombia and enters as a competitor in 
exploration bid rounds. 

The ANH considers exploration acreage proposals on a first-come, first-served basis and, once the ANH is 
satisfied that an exploration and production company has the requisite technical, legal, operational and financial 
capacities, a definitive work program is negotiated which typically includes technical studies, reprocessing or 
completing a new seismic program and/or drilling exploratory wells. The ANH began offering exploration areas 
under E&P Contracts via bid rounds in 2007. Three bid rounds were conducted in 2008 and the most recent bid 
round occurred in June 2010.  

The ANH developed two different contracts for the development of exploration and production activities in 
Colombia: (i) E&P Contracts, which replaced the former association contracts; and (ii) TEAs. Under the association 
contracts, the then wholly state-owned Ecopetrol had an immediate right to back into production. The current TEAs 
and E&P Contracts provide full risk/reward benefits for exploration and production companies. 

Since the introduction of these new contracts, the ANH has executed more than 300 E&P Contracts and 
TEAs, covering more than 42,000,000 hectares. 

The ANH Contracts 

Exploration and Production Contracts 

An E&P Contract is the principal contract used by the ANH to grant exploration and production rights. 
Under the terms of an E&P Contract, an exploration and production company (known as the “Contractor”) retains 
the exclusive: (i) rights from the ANH to explore and produce conventional hydrocarbons within a delineated 
contract area; (ii) rights to the income from any production area or commercial field discovered within the contract 
area, subject to royalties and other fees payable to the ANH; and (iii) rights for the use of subsoil to conduct 
exploration and development operations. E&P Contracts also include a provision for a “high price share” if a 
cumulative production from a field of 5 MMbbls is reached. An E&P Contract is a long-term contract divided into 
the following stages: Exploration Period, Evaluation Period and Production Period, each as described below. 
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Exploration Period

An Exploration Period generally has a six month pre-exploration phase followed by a six year exploration 
term comprised of a number of  exploration phases ranging from between one and three years each.  Each 
exploration phase may be extended for six additional months if the Contractor complies with the conditions 
contained in the E&P Contract to obtain such extensions. 

During the Exploration Period, the Contractor is required to carry out a mandatory exploration program for 
each phase as prescribed in the specific E&P Contract. During the first phase of the Exploration Period, the 
mandatory exploration program typically consists of the completion of a prescribed seismic acquisition program and 
the drilling of an Exploratory A-3 Well. Each subsequent phase of the Exploration Period also contains specific 
seismic acquisition and drilling obligations. The Contractor is required to submit to the ANH an exploration plan for 
each phase setting out its plan for fulfilling the required exploration operations. The E&P Contract allows for 
amendments to the exploration plan and the substitution of an exploratory well for seismic acquisition obligations, 
all with the prior approval of the ANH. Prior to the commencement of operations for each phase within the 
Exploration Period, the Contractor is required to deliver to the ANH a performance guarantee from an acceptable 
banking institution for a specified amount (typically 50%) of the budgeted value of the operations to be performed. 
Provided the Company has satisfied its obligations, the Company has the right at the end of each phase to withdraw 
and not to proceed to the next phase of the Exploration Period.  In those circumstances, the Company forfeits its 
Participating Interest but is not obligated to make any further payments.  The Company may also terminate its 
obligations under the E&P Contract during a phase.  In those circumstances, the Company is obligated to pay the 
ANH 50% of the uncompleted commitments for the terminated phase plus the entire amount of the additional 
exploration program of such phase set out in the E&P Contract. 

If, during any phase of the Exploration Period, the Contractor makes a discovery that it considers to have 
commercial potential, it is required to notify the ANH in writing of the discovery and shall thereupon be entitled to 
undertake an evaluation program as described below.  

Provided that there is a discovery and the Contractor undertakes an evaluation program, the Contractor is 
entitled, upon the expiry of the Exploration Period, to withhold fifty (50%) percent of the contract area prescribed in 
the E&P Contract (excluding the areas set out in the evaluation program or any production areas) to conduct a 
subsequent exploration program. Notification of the Contractor’s intention to conduct a subsequent or additional 
exploration program must be provided to the ANH prior to the expiry of the last phase of the Exploration Period. 
The subsequent exploration program shall be for a maximum of two phases, eighteen (18) months each, and must 
include, at a minimum, the drilling of one (1) exploratory well in each of the two phases. Provided that the 
Contractor meets its contractual work obligations in the first phase of the subsequent exploration period, it may elect 
to continue to the second phase. In such case, the Contractor is entitled to retain fifty (50%) percent of the contract 
area for second phase operations, with the balance of the contract area (excluding the areas set out in the evaluation 
program or any production areas) being relinquished to the ANH. Should the Contractor elect not to proceed to the 
second phase of a subsequent exploration program, the Contractor must relinquish the entirety of the remaining 
contract area (excluding the areas set out in the evaluation program or any production areas) to the ANH. 

At any time during the Exploration Period, a contractor may voluntarily relinquish part of the contract area 
by demonstrating to the ANH that, despite the relinquishment, the Contractor will be able to comply with its 
mandatory exploration program obligations on the remaining part of the contract area.  

Nothing in the E&P Contract limits the right of the Contractor to perform exploration and seismic 
operations in excess of the minimum obligations set out in the mandatory exploration program, provided that all 
operations require the ANH to provide its approval in advance. Excess operations conducted in one phase may be 
credited towards work obligations in future phases with prior approval from the ANH. 

Evaluation Period

In the event a Contractor makes a discovery which it considers to have commercial potential, it has the 
right, upon the submission of an application to the ANH, to determine the commercial viability of the discovery by 
conducting an evaluation program for a period of up to two years duration on a defined evaluation area 
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encompassing the discovery. The evaluation program submitted to the ANH must set forth the operations to be 
conducted and may be extended for one additional year (two years in the case of heavy oil or gas) where certain 
criteria are met, including notification of additional time necessary to drill an additional well or wells.

Upon the completion of the evaluation program and prior to the expiry of the Evaluation Period, the 
Contractor is required to declare whether or not the discovery is a commercial discovery. Where the discovery is 
declared to be a commercial discovery, the discovery is considered a commercial field on the date of such 
declaration at which time the Production Period is deemed to commence. If the Contractor does not declare the 
discovery to be a commercial discovery, in the manner or within the time specified in the E&P Contract, the 
discovery is deemed not to be a commercial discovery. In that case, the Contractor will lose any and all rights to the 
discovery and the evaluation area must be returned to the ANH without further compensation.  

Production Period

Upon the declaration of field commerciality during an Evaluation Period, the Contractor is required to 
submit to the ANH, for its approval, the proposed areal extent of the discovered field plus a surrounding area of not 
more than one (1) kilometre, which area is designated as the production area. The production area may be extended 
at a later date in certain limited circumstances with the approval of the ANH.  In addition, within ninety (90) days of 
the declaration of field commerciality, the Contractor is required to submit to the ANH, for its approval, a detailed 
development plan which includes a description of the drilling program for development wells, the required facilities 
and infrastructure and the proposed delivery point for future production. The Contractor is also obligated to establish 
an appropriate abandonment fund in accordance with the formulas established in the E&P Contract. 

The production period has a duration of twenty-four (24) years per productive field commencing from the 
declaration of field commerciality and can be extended in successive periods of up to ten (10) years each until the 
end of the economic life of the field, subject to certain requirements established in the E&P Contract, including: (i) 
continuous production in the field during the five (5) years preceding the extension request; (ii) demonstration by the 
Contractor that during the previous four (4) years it has drilled one exploratory well in each calendar year; and (iii) 
payment of 5% to 10% of the remaining projected field value to the ANH. 

ANH Participation in Production

Pursuant to the terms of the E&P Contracts, the ANH is entitled to a participation factor, after royalties, in 
all future production from a commercial field. The high price sharing formula and the fees for use of subsoil, 
described in more detail below, do not apply to the ANH participation factor. The ANH participating share of 
production for each of the Company’s properties is set out below: 

Block ANH Participation Factor Contractor Share 
Tinigua Nil 100% 
PUT 2 1% 99% 
CPO 6 39% 61% 
CPO 7 47% 53% 
CPO 13 32% 68% 
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Royalties

Royalties payable during the production period are calculated on a field-by-field basis using a sliding scale 
(s/s) that ranges from a minimum of 8% (for incremental production up to 5,000 Bbls/d) up to a maximum of 25% 
(for incremental production above 600,000 Bbls/d) as illustrated below: 

Royalty Rate (%) 
Production Rate (BOE/d) per field Light Crude Gas Onshore Heavy Crude Gas Offshore 
     
0 to 5,000 8 6.4 6 4.8 
5,001 to 125,000 s/s 8 – 20 s/s 6.4 – 16 s/s 6 – 15 s/s 4.8 – 12 
125,001 to 400,000 20 16 15 12 
400,001 to 600,000 s/s 20 – 25 s/s 16 – 20 s/s 15 – 18.75 s/s 12 – 15 
> 600,000 25 20 18.75 15 

Production of oil with gravity equal to or less than 15° API attract 75% of the royalties applicable to light 
crude. For the purposes of royalty calculations for natural gas, the conversion factor of 1 Bbl = 5.700 cubic ft is 
utilized. 

High Price Share 

The high price sharing formula is applicable in circumstances where aggregate production from an oil field 
exceeds a prescribed minimum number of barrels and where the price per barrel received is in excess of a prescribed 
reference price.  Prior to 2008, E&P Contracts included a high price sharing formula which fixed the government’s 
participation percentage at 30%. In 2008, the high price sharing formula was amended so that the government’s 
participation percentage increases as oil prices increase (the “Amended HPS Formula”). The Amended HPS 
Formula only applies to E&P Contracts signed in 2008 or later and accordingly, all of the Company’s E&P 
Contracts are subject to the Amended HPS Formula. 

High price sharing for liquids is triggered when gross cumulative production per field exceeds 5 MMbbls 
and oil sales price (WTI) exceeds prescribed benchmarks, according to the following formula: 

ANH Payment = Price of Hydrocarbons at Delivery Point x Contractor Net Volume x Q, where: 

Q = [(P - Po) / P] x S 
P = WTI price 
Po = Reference price 
S = Participation percentage 

Reference base price (Po) 

API gravity of the liquid hydrocarbons 
Po ($/bbl) 

(Year 2010)
> 29° API ........................................................................................................................................ 32.13 
> 22° API and  29° API ................................................................................................................ 33.37 
> 15° API and  22° API ................................................................................................................ 34.61 
Discoveries located in water depths > 300 m.................................................................................. 39.55
> 10° API and  15° API ................................................................................................................ 49.43 

Exported Natural Gas Distance in straight line from the delivery point and receipt point 
in country of destination 

Po
$/MMBTU

Lower than or equal to 500 km ....................................................................................................... $6.98 
Higher than 500 km and lower than or equal to 1,000 km .............................................................. $8.13 
More than 1,000 km or LNG Plan................................................................................................... $9.30 
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S Factor: 

WTI price (P) 
Participation 

Percentage (S)
Po  P < 2Po .................................................................................................................................... 30%
2Po  P < 3Po .................................................................................................................................. 35%
3Po  P < 4Po .................................................................................................................................. 40%
4Po  P < 5Po .................................................................................................................................. 45%
5Po  P............................................................................................................................................. 50%

Economic rights for the use of subsoil 

Fees for subsoil access and use are determined based upon whether the Contractor is in an Exploration 
Period, an Evaluation or Production Period. 

Exploration Areas 

For each phase during an Exploration Period, the Contractor is required to pay a fee to the ANH for access 
to the subsoil. No fee is payable for the first phase of an Exploration Period where the first phase is less than one (1) 
year in duration. The fee is payable per hectare on a sliding scale basis depending upon the duration of the phase of 
the Exploration Period and the size of the contract area. The fee is indexed on an annual basis using the U.S. 
inflation index. The following table sets out the subsoil access fee payable by the Contractor for the contract area 
(excluding evaluation and production areas) in 2010:  

Size of Area First 100,000 hectares Additional hectares (above 100,000 hectares) 
Phase duration 18 months >18 months 18 months >18 months 
Fee Range (2010)         $1.62 - $2.44         $2.44 - $3.25         $2.44 - $3.25         $3.25 - $4.88 

With respect to off-shore areas, a flat fee of $0.76 per hectare (2009) is applicable.

Evaluation and Production Areas 

A separate subsoil access fee is applicable to evaluation and production areas and is tied to production.  For 
liquid hydrocarbons, the fee (2009) is $0.1162/bbl. For natural gas, the fee (2009) is $0.1162/Mcf of the 
Contractor’s share of production.  The fee is indexed annually using the U.S. inflation index. 

Technical Evaluation Agreements (TEAs) 

A TEA is a short-term contract between an exploration company and the ANH, the objective of which is to 
analyze existing data and acquire new information to evaluate the prospects of an area of interest. Under a TEA, the 
contracting party must prepare an evaluation program that may consist of surface exploration activities, geological, 
geophysical and geochemical studies, and the drilling of stratigraphic wells among others. 

A TEA has an 18 month term in continental areas and a 24 month term in offshore areas. A TEA may be 
converted into an E&P Contract subject to certain conditions imposed by the ANH. To enter into a TEA, a guarantee 
for 10% of the value of the evaluation program must be posted by the Contractor. 

A third party may propose an E&P Contract over an area subject to a TEA but the holder of the TEA will 
be given a preference over a third party to enter into an E&P Contract if it matches the third party’s proposal. 

Environmental Regulatory Framework 

The environmental regulatory framework in Colombia, including occupational health, industrial safety, 
environmental protection and social responsibility, which governs the oil and gas industry is divided into two parts: 
planning and compliance. 
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Planning 

The MEHD requires that EIAs and EMPs be submitted as the principal planning tools for all new projects, 
ensuring local and specific environmental and social variables are included in project planning. Exploratory drilling 
projects require the submission of an EIA and EMP at least five months prior to beginning project activities. 
Following approval, the MEHD awards an environmental license. When a discovery is made, the environmental 
license typically allows for a maximum one year of production testing while the company prepares a new EIA and 
EMP for the development of a permanent oil and gas production field and development drilling. 

Field pipeline design and construction is subject to a two part environmental licensing process. First, the 
company and the government environmental authority review options to agree on an environmentally friendly 
pipeline design and layout. Once an agreement is reached, the company can apply for the pipeline environmental 
license through a comprehensive EIA and EMP. 

Once a production field’s environmental license is in place, development drilling, flowlines, batteries and 
other production infrastructure can be added by preparing specific EMPs. 

Social responsibility in project planning includes consultation with local communities through regulatory 
procedures, which procedures depend upon the type of community to be consulted (i.e.: settlers, farmers, 
indigenous, Afro-Colombians). In addition, each EIA and EMP should include a comprehensive plan with respect to 
occupational health and industrial safety, based on national regulations and international standards with respect to 
health and safety. 

Compliance 

The second essential area in occupational health, industrial safety, environmental protection and social 
responsibility is maintaining optimal regulation compliance standards. In Colombia, these regulations include 
specific standards for water and air quality, wastewater and solid waste treatment and disposal, air emission control 
and industrial hygiene. 

The Company’s operations are subject to strict monitoring by MAVDT as well as the regional 
environmental corporations (Corpoamazonia in Putumayo, Cormacarena in Meta and Corpocauca in Cauca). These 
regional authorities belong to the Colombian National Environmental System. 

PetroNova has contracted third party health, safety, environment and community specialists in all of the 
Company’s areas of operations. The ANH ensures that both the Company’s employees and contractors comply with 
environmental legislation, the requirements set by the regional environmental corporations and adhere to approved 
environmental management plans.  

At the end of each operation, an environmental compliance report is prepared, against which the 
environmental authorities do their final evaluation.  A yearly follow-up to this report is also completed. 

Taxes 

The Company’s pre-tax income from Colombian sources, as defined under Colombian law, is subject to 
Colombian income tax at a statutory rate of 33%, although a “presumptive” minimum income tax based on net 
assets may apply in years of little or no net income which may be carried forward as a deduction for five years and 
recovered against future cash taxes otherwise payable. Tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely without 
limitation. 
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INDEPENDENT RESOURCE EVALUATION  

Disclosure of Prospective Resources 

The Company engaged Petrotech to evaluate the prospective resources of the Company attributable to the 
Colombian Assets. In connection therewith, Petrotech prepared the Petrotech Resource Report dated June 8, 2010, 
with an effective date of March 31, 2010. The resource estimates presented in the Petrotech Resource Report were 
prepared in accordance with the standards set out in the COGE Handbook, NI 51-101 and Canadian Securities 
Administrators Staff Notice 51-327 – Oil and Gas Disclosure: Resources Other than Reserves Data.

Prospective resources are those quantities of petroleum estimated, as of a given date, to be potentially 
recoverable from undiscovered accumulations by application of future development projects.  Prospective resources 
have two risk components, the chance of discovery and the chance of development.  The resource estimates 
provided herein are estimates only.  There is no certainty that any portion of the prospective resources will be 
discovered.  If discovered, there is no certainty that it will be commercially viable to produce any portion of 
the prospective resources.  Readers are cautioned that the volumes presented are estimates only and should 
not be construed as being exact quantities.  

Estimates of resources always involve uncertainty, and the degree of uncertainty can vary widely between 
accumulations and projects and over the life of a project. Consequently, estimates of resources should generally be 
quoted as a range according to the level of confidence associated with the estimates. The range of uncertainty of 
estimated recoverable volumes may be represented by either deterministic scenarios or by a probability distribution. 
Resources should be provided as low, best and high estimates as follows: 

Low Estimate: This is considered to be a conservative estimate of the quantity that will actually be 
recovered. It is likely that the actual remaining quantities recovered will exceed the low estimate. If 
probabilistic methods are used, there should be at least a 90% probability (P90) that the quantities actually 
recovered will equal or exceed the low estimate. 

Best Estimate: This is considered to be the best estimate of the quantity that will actually be recovered. It 
is equally likely that the actual remaining quantities recovered will be greater or less than the best estimate. 
If probabilistic methods are used, there should be at least a 50% probability (P50) that the quantities actually 
recovered will equal or exceed the best estimate. 

High Estimate: This is considered to be an optimistic estimate of the quantity that will actually be 
recovered. It is unlikely the actual remaining quantities recovered will exceed the high estimate. If 
probabilistic methods are used, there should be at least a 10% probability (P10) that the quantities actually 
recovered will equal or exceed the high estimate. 

In preparing the Petrotech Resource Report, basic information was obtained from the Company, which 
included land data, well information, geological information, reservoir studies, estimates of on stream dates, contract 
information, current hydrocarbon product prices, operating cost data, capital budget forecasts, financial data and 
future operating plans.  Other engineering, geological or economic data required to conduct the evaluations and 
upon which the Petrotech Resource Report was based was obtained from public records, other operators and from 
non-confidential files.  The extent and character of ownership and the accuracy of all factual data supplied for the 
independent evaluation, from all sources, was accepted by Petrotech as represented. 

As at March 31, 2010, the Petrotech Resource Report has estimated the gross best estimate prospective 
resources to be 62.1 (57.1 net) MMbbls of light and medium oil and 184.7 (167.7 net) MMbbls of heavy oil.
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Prospective Resources for Light and Medium Oil as at March 31, 2010(1)(2)(3)

Gross (Mbbls) Net (Mbbls) 

Low 
Estimate 

Best
Estimate 

High 
Estimate 

Low 
Estimate 

Best
Estimate 

High 
Estimate 

       
PUT 2 Block 14,181 53,203 131,477  13,047 48,931 120,558 
CPO 6 Block uneconomic   2,039     6,735  uneconomic   1,875     6,182 
CPO 7 Block uneconomic   6,876   30,404  uneconomic   6,318   27,470 
Total Company 14,181 62,118 168,616  13,047 57,125 154,210 

Prospective Resources for Heavy Oil as at March 31, 2010(1)(2)(3)

Gross (Mbbls) Net (Mbbls) 

Low 
Estimate 

Best
Estimate 

High 
Estimate 

Low 
Estimate 

Best
Estimate 

High 
Estimate 

    
Tinigua Block 49,637     177,097     349,363      46,281      160,811  306,415 
CPO 13 Block   2,916         7,585       17,357        2,683    6,960    15,805 
Total Company 52,553     184,682     366,721      48,964      167,711  322,220 

Notes:
(1) Based on an arithmetic aggregation of the individual prospects. 
(2) Each prospect has its own estimated probability of geological success. 
(3) Low, best and high estimates follow the COGE Handbook Section 5 resources definitions and guidelines for prospective resources.

The Petrotech Resource Report has also assessed the probability of success based on the play chance 
relating to reservoir, source and regional seal and prospect chance relating to trap, reservoir, seal, migration and 
timing resulting in the chance of geological success. The estimations of the chance of geological success in each of 
these prospects are summarized below: 

Chance of Geological Success – Colombian Blocks(1)(2)(3)(4) 

Prospect Name Formation 
Low Estimate 
Recoverable

Best Estimate 
Recoverable

High Estimate 
Recoverable

Chance of 
Geological 

PUT 2 Block  (Mbbls) (Mbbls) (Mbbls) Success (%) 
 North Canelo Villeta N              294               1,234               3,370             32.3  
 Villeta U           1,979               6,857             18,613             32.3  
 Villeta T           1,131               4,000             10,341             32.3  
 South Canelo Villeta N              438               1,992               4,972             32.3  
 Villeta U           2,951             11,069             27,457             32.3  
 Villeta T           1,686               6,457             15,254             32.3  
 Nogal 01 Villeta N              507               1,545               3,397             27.7  
 Villeta U           3,420               8,585             18,762             27.7  
 Villeta T           1,954               5,008             10,423             27.7  
 North Cedrillo Villeta N                50                  392               1,133             27.7  
 Villeta U              337               2,177               6,258             27.7  
 Villeta T              192               1,270               3,476             27.7  
 South Cedrillo Villeta N                51                  283                  840             27.7  
 Villeta U              344               1,574               4,640             27.7  
 Villeta T              196                  918               2,578             27.7  
Tinigua Block      
 Tinigua  Mirador         20,531           100,195           189,716             41.6  
 Macarena         34,621             96,580           198,466             30.6  
CPO 6 Block      
 A C7           1,093               5,081             15,974             32.8  
 B C7              616               2,194               6,560             32.8  
 O4 C7              797               2,960               9,902             23.1  
CPO 7 Block      
 A C7           1,556               5,337             15,601             21.5  
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Prospect Name Formation 
Low Estimate 
Recoverable

Best Estimate 
Recoverable

High Estimate 
Recoverable

Chance of 
Geological 

 C C5              531               9,658             63,450             34.2  
 C7              958             12,989             53,186             30.8  
 D C5              534               2,777               9,348             30.8  
 C7              797               3,709             10,476             30.8  
CPO 13 Block      
 III C7           5,542             14,105             31,269             22.3  
 IV-A C7           5,650             14,384             31,899             22.3  
 V C7           3,586               9,487             23,820             18.3  

Notes:
(1) The recoverable is prospective resource and may not be economical.  The prospective resource is based on the volumetric estimation

at 100% working interest without consideration to geological chance of success. 
(2) The chance of geological success is based on the product of play chance and prospect chance.  Details of the input data are contained 

in the Petrotech Resource Report. 
(3) The play chance consists of the estimation of success in encountering reservoir, source and regional seal. 
(4) The prospect chance consists of estimation of success in encountering trap, reservoir, seal, migration and timing. 

There are numerous uncertainties inherent in estimated resources, including many factors beyond the 
Company’s control, and no assurance can be given that the indicated level of resources or recovery of crude oil will 
be realized. In general, estimates of recoverable crude oil resources are based upon a number of factors and 
assumptions made as of the date on which the resource estimates were determined, such as geological and 
engineering estimates which have inherent uncertainties and the assumed effect of regulation by governmental 
agencies and estimates of future commodity prices and operating costs, all of which may vary considerably from 
actual results. All such estimates are, to some degree, uncertain and classifications of resources are only attempts to 
define the degree of uncertainty involved. For these reasons, estimates of the recoverable crude oil, the classification 
of such resources based on risk of recovery, prepared by different engineers or by the same engineers at different 
times, may vary substantially. 

STATEMENT OF RESERVES DATA AND OTHER OIL AND GAS INFORMATION 

The Company does not have any reserves (as such term is defined in NI 51-101). The Company has not 
drilled on any of its properties and is in the process of exploring and exploiting its current undeveloped land base. 
See “The Company’s Business – The Company’s Oil and Gas Properties”.  

Oil and Gas Properties 

All of the Company’s properties are located in Colombia and are on-shore. For a description of the 
Company’s principal properties and the relinquishments, surrenders, back-ins and changes in ownership applicable 
to the Company’s E&P Contracts, see “The Company’s Business – The Company’s Oil and Gas Properties” and 
“Industry Conditions – The ANH Contracts – Exploration and Production Contracts”. 

Undeveloped Land Holdings 

The undeveloped land holdings of the Company as of March 31, 2010 are 1,840,174 acres (gross) and 
519,196 (net), all of which are located in Colombia. See “The Company – Summary of the Company’s Properties”.
Undeveloped acreage includes rights granted pursuant to the Company’s E&P Contracts, which require certain work 
commitments. If the Company elects not to proceed with additional work commitments, all or a portion of this 
acreage may revert back to the ANH. 

The Company does not anticipate that any rights to explore, develop or exploit any unproved properties 
will expire within one year. 

See “The Company’s Business – The Company’s Oil and Gas Properties” and “Industry Conditions – The 
ANH Contracts”.  
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Forward Contracts 

The Company does not have any forward contracts. 

Tax Horizon 

In Colombia, the Company’s tax pools have sheltered it to date from paying current cash income taxes. The 
Company is subject to presumptive income tax and equity tax in Colombia. See “Industry Conditions - Taxes”.
Based on the Company’s current exploration and development plans, the Company does not expect to pay income 
tax in Colombia until 2012. 

Capital Expenditures 

For a description of the expenditures incurred in respect of the Colombian Assets for the year ended 
December 31, 2009, see “The Company’s Business – Exploration Program” and “Management’s Discussion and 
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations”. 

Exploration Activities 

The Company’s exploration plans with respect to each of its properties are discussed in the descriptions of 
each of the properties under the heading “The Company’s Business – The Company’s Oil and Gas Properties” and 
“– Exploration Program”. 

SELECTED FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

The following table sets out selected financial information for the Company: (i) as at and for the nine 
months ended September 30, 2010; (ii) as at December 31, 2009 and 2008; and (iii) for the years ended 
December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007. This information has been derived from the following financial statements of 
the Company which appear elsewhere in this prospectus: (i) the audited consolidated statement of financial position 
of the Company as at December 31, 2009 and 2008 and the consolidated statements of comprehensive income (loss), 
changes in equity and cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007; and (ii) the unaudited 
consolidated statement of financial position of the Company as at September 30, 2010 and December 31, 2009 and 
the consolidated statements of comprehensive loss, changes in equity and cash flows for the nine months ended 
September 30, 2010 and 2009. These results should also be read in conjunction with the disclosure under the 
heading “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations”. The  results 
for these periods should not be relied upon as any indication of results for any future period.  

For the Years Ended 
December 31, 

Financial ($) 

For the Nine Months Ended 
September 30, 2010 

(unaudited) 
2009

(audited) 
2008

(audited) 
2007

(audited) 
     
Working Capital  (326,207) (873,005)     978 N/A
Total comprehensive income 
(loss)

(1,635,029)      49,517 (11,001) (619,715) 

Statement of Financial Position Data: 

As at December 31, 

Financial ($) 
As at September 30, 2010 

(unaudited) 
2009

(audited) 
2008

(audited) 
    
Current Assets 2,133,257      294,632 3,487,624 
Total Assets 29,340,984 11,795,379 3,487,624 
Total Liabilities 1,981,978 12,375,578 4,118,340 
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The Company was incorporated on September 17, 2009. Prior to incorporation, the Company’s business 
was carried on by the Predecessor Subsidiaries. Effective June 28, 2010, the Company completed the 
Reorganization Transactions, pursuant to which the Company indirectly acquired the Colombian Assets. For all 
periods presented, the consolidated financial statements include the historical financial position, results of operations 
and cash flows of the Colombian Assets and liabilities acquired based on the Predecessor Subsidiaries’ historical 
costs.  See Note 1 to the audited consolidated statement of financial position of the Company as at December 31, 
2009 and 2008 and the consolidated statements of comprehensive income (loss), changes in equity and cash flows 
for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 and the unaudited consolidated statement of financial 
position of the Company as at September 30, 2010 and December 31, 2009 and the consolidated statements of 
comprehensive loss, changes in equity and cash flows for the nine months ended September 30, 2010 and 2009. 

See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” as well as 
the financial statements of the Company included in this prospectus. 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF 
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

The following discussion and analysis is a review of PetroNova’s financial condition and results of 
operations for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008 and the consolidated statements of comprehensive 
loss for the year ended December 31, 2007, and as at and for the three and nine month periods ended 
September 30, 2010 and 2009. This management’s discussion and analysis (“MD&A”) has been prepared as at 
the date of this prospectus and should be read in conjunction with the audited and unaudited consolidated 
financial statements of the Company included in this prospectus.  The audited and unaudited consolidated 
financial statements of the Company included in the Prospectus have been prepared in accordance with IFRS.  

Business Profile  

See “The Company”.

Business Strategy and E&P Contracts in Colombia 

See “The Company’s Business” . 

Commitments 

As at September 30, 2010 and December 31, 2009, the Company has estimated the following 
disbursements for phase 1 of the exploratory programs relating to its interests in the Colombian Blocks outlined in 
Note 7 to the consolidated financial statements of the Company as at and for the nine months ended September 30, 
2010. 

Capital and Expenses (including those related to joint ventures)

Block
Actual 2009

($)

2010
(Actual September 
30 plus estimated)

($)
2011

($)
2012

($)
Total

($)
Tinigua Block (Phase 1) 239,120 2,636,000 8,217,064 – 11,092,184
PUT 2 Block (Phase 1) 226,655 5,720,769 8,123,000 – 14,070,424
Llanos Blocks (Phase 1) 2,981,576 8,390,000 3,804,660 2,225,000 17,401,236
Total 3,447,351 16,746,769 20,144,724 2,225,000 42,563,844 

As at September 30, 2010, $17,763,844 of commitments have been executed since the beginning of the 
Company’s exploration program. 
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The E&P Contracts with the ANH are subject to a sliding scale royalty rate on oil and gas production 
ranging from a minimum of 8% to a maximum of 25%. E&P Contracts for the PUT 2 and the Llanos Blocks are also 
subject to additional rights payable to the ANH of 1%, 39%, 47%, and 32%, respectively. See “Industry Conditions 
– The ANH Contracts – Exploration and Production Contracts”.

The expenditures provided in the tables above represent the estimated costs to complete contracted 
requirements and no capital commitments extend beyond 2012. Actual expenditures to satisfy these commitments 
may differ significantly from management’s estimates. See “Notice to Investors – Special Note Regarding Forward-
Looking Statements” and “Risk Factors”.  

The Company estimates that additional costs (including general and administrative) of $34,100,000 will be 
required above the minimum commitments summarized above in order to complete the planned exploration 
programs.  This amount represents the total estimated amount of planned expenditures less the Phase 1 total capital 
and expenses commitment indicated above. 

Provided that the Company has satisfied its obligations, the Company has the right at the end of each phase 
to withdraw and not to proceed to the next phase of the Exploration Period.  In those circumstances, the Company 
forfeits its Participating Interest but is not obligated to make further payments. 

The Company has the following rental and professional service commitments over the next five years, 
including the office lease disclosed in Note 19 to the consolidated financial statements of the Company as at and for 
the nine months ended September 30, 2010: 

2010 - $73,082 
2011 - $354,958  
2012 - $314,120 
2013 - $298,728 
2014 - $90,816 

 The Company has additional commitments of $80,040 relating to its new office lease for 2015. 

Capital Spending 

The following table summarizes the aggregated consolidated capital investment of the Company at the 
dates indicated and are net to the Company’s working interests in the Colombian Blocks: 

Block
September 30, 2010 

($)
December 31, 2009 

($)
Tinigua 2,092,184 239,120 
PUT 2 5,270,424 226,655 
Llanos:
 CPO 6 3,134,383 1,070,770 
 CPO 7 3,729,175 903,150 
 CPO 13 3,537,678 1,007,656

17,763,844 3,447,351 

There were no capital expenditures incurred by the Company for any periods prior to 2009. 

Nine Month Period Ended September 30, 2010 

During the nine month period ended September 30, 2010, the bulk of the capital investment was related to 
the continuation of the 2D seismic acquisition program in the Llanos Blocks and the acquisition of 100 km of 2D 
seismic in the PUT 2 Block. Surface geology and biostratigraphical work has also commenced in the area 
surrounding the Tinigua Block. 
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Year Ended December 31, 2009 

For the year ended December 31, 2009, the Company’s capital expenditures related to the acquisition of the 
2D seismic program in the Llanos Blocks. In addition, expenditures were made relating to contract work in the 
Tinigua and PUT 2 Blocks.

Liquidity and Capital Resources 

On June 29, 2010, the Company closed the Private Placement issuing 10,000,000 Units at a price of 
Cdn$1.00 ($0.94) per Unit for gross proceeds of Cdn$10,000,000 ($9,498,000), less issuance costs of $639,564 
(using an exchange rate of Cdn$1.00 = $0.9498, being the noon spot rate of exchange posted by the Bank of Canada 
on June 29, 2010). Each Unit was comprised of one Common Share and one Warrant.  Each Warrant entitles the 
holder to purchase one Common Share at a price of Cdn$1.50 per share for a period of thirty-six months following 
the closing date of the Private Placement.  The funds from the Private Placement have been and continue to be used 
to fund the Company’s exploration program in respect of the Colombian Assets and for general corporate purposes. 

The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure a balance between capital expenditure 
requirements and working capital. As at September 30, 2010, PetroNova had a working capital deficit of $326,207
(December 31, 2009 – working capital deficit of $873,005 comprised primarily of trade and other payables, 
including a bank overdraft balance of $13,094). As at September 30, 2010, the Company had a bank loan outstanding 
through the Banco de Occidente in the amount of $262,158 and Banco de Bogotá in the amount of $193,612.  The 
loan with the Banco de Occidente bears interest on a weekly basis at a variable rate (at the fixed term deposit rate plus 
2%), is secured by a promissory note issued by SwedenCo and Cayman Opco CB and has remaining credit available 
of $182,314.  The term of the loan is 180 days.  The loan with Banco de Bogotá bears interest at a fixed term deposit 
rate plus 4%, is secured by a promissory note issued by Cayman Opco CB and has a remaining credit available of 
$361,977.  The term of the loan is 90 days.  The interest rate on these loans are fixed at the time the funds are 
drawn upon. 

The Company’s oil and gas interests are in the exploration and evaluation stage and the Company has 
not yet determined whether its petroleum and natural gas properties contain reserves that are economically 
recoverable.  Accordingly, the recoverability of amounts recorded as petroleum and natural gas properties is 
dependent upon the existence and discovery of economically recoverable oil and gas reserves, the political 
stability of Colombia, and the ability of the Company to secure adequate sources of financing to fund the 
development of its assets and put them into production and then achieving future profitable production.  The outcome 
of these matters cannot be predicted with certainty at this time which raises doubts about the continuance of the 
Company’s going concern assumption. 

Cash Flows 

The consolidated annual and interim financial statements include the historical financial position, results of 
operations and cash flows of the Colombian oil assets and liabilities acquired based on the Predecessor Subsidiaries’ 
historical costs in accordance with continuity of interest accounting.  

Pre-incorporation receipts and expenditures and changes in non-cash working capital, pertaining to the 
accumulation of the assets and liabilities acquired, as conducted by the Predecessor Subsidiaries are reflected in the 
consolidated financial statements as amounts due to and from affiliates of SwedenCo. Accordingly, these activities 
are not reported in the statement of cash flows.   

Operating Activities 

The Company’s operating cash flow activities have been related primarily to the jointly controlled 
assets for the nine and three month periods ended September 30, 2010 and 2009 and for the years ended 
December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007.  The Company’s cash flows from operations have been limited to interest 
income on block deposits and expenditures relating to professional fees, salaries and wages.   
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Investing Activities 

The net cash used for investing activities was directed towards the work commitments in the Tinigua, 
PUT 2 and Llanos Blocks in Colombia. See “ – Commitments”.

Financing Activities 

Cash provided by financing activities primarily consisted of proceeds from the Private Placement in 
June 2010.  The Company has had minimal financing activities during periods prior to 2010. 

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements 

The Company does not have any off-balance sheet arrangements.

Outlook 

See “The Company’s Business” . 

Selected Quarterly Information 

 The following table sets out selected unaudited quarterly financial information of PetroNova since its 
inception and is derived from unaudited quarterly financial data prepared by management in accordance with IFRS. 

2010 2009
Nine month

period ended
September 30, 

2010
($)

Three month 
period ended

September 30, 
2010

($)

Nine month 
period ended 

September 30, 
2009

($)

Three month 
period ended

September 30, 
2009

($)
Revenues 144,832 56,032  – –
Net loss (1,595,966) (635,918)  (840) (840)
Loss per share – basic and diluted (0.04) (0.01) – –
Weighted average shares 
outstanding – basic and diluted 38,655,556 112,781,302 – –

Selected Annual Information 

The following table sets out selected annual financial information of PetroNova and is derived from the 
audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2009 prepared in accordance with 
IFRS.

December 31, 2009 
($)

December 31, 2008 
($)

December 31, 2007 
($)

Revenues 55,900 – – 
Net income (loss) 49,517 (11,001) (619,715) 
Loss per share – basic and diluted 171.93 – – 
Total assets 11,795,379 3,487,624 N/A 
Weighted average shares outstanding – basic 
and diluted 288 – – 
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Results of Operations 

Three and Nine Month Periods Ended September 30, 2010 Compared to the Three and Nine Month Periods 
Ended September 30, 2009 

Revenue

The Company’s revenue relates primarily to interest revenue earned on cash deposits made in respect of 
the Colombian Blocks. For the nine month period ended September 30, 2010, the Company earned interest 
revenue of $144,832 (nine month period ended September 30, 2009 - $nil). For the three month period ended 
September 30, 2010, the Company earned interest revenue of $56,032 (three month period ended September 30, 
2009 – $nil). The interest revenue relates primarily to the cash deposits made to two Colombian banks as collateral 
for the issuance to the ANH of guarantees on each of the Colombian Blocks. The Company had no other sources 
of revenue for the three and nine month periods ended September 30, 2010. 

Professional Fees

Professional fees for the three and nine month periods ended September 30, 2010 were $313,712 and 
$466,415, respectively (three and nine month periods ended September 30, 2009 – $nil).  Professional fees are 
comprised primarily of legal, accounting and audit fees. 

Administrative Expenses and Amortization

Administrative expenses for the three and nine month periods ended September 30, 2010 were $53,248 
(three and nine month periods ended September 30, 2009 – $nil).  Administrative expenses are comprised primarily 
of fees and other administrative costs for the Company.  Amortization expense for the three and nine month 
periods ended September 30, 2010 was $594 and $4,191, respectively (three and nine month periods ended 
September 30, 2009 – $840). 

Salaries and Wages

Salaries and wages for the nine month period ended September 30, 2010 were $1,168,732 (nine month 
period ended September 30, 2009 – $nil).  Salaries and wages for the three month period ended September 30, 2010 
were $209,309 (three month period ended September 30, 2009 – $nil).   Included in the balance at the nine month 
period ended September 30, 2010 is $823,797 recognized as a result of 4,120,258 remuneration shares being issued 
to individuals as consideration for services received.  The remuneration shares were valued at $0.20 per Common 
Share which was the deemed fair value of the shares at the time of grant.  

Foreign Exchange Gain and Loss

Foreign exchange gain and loss for the three and nine month periods ended September 30, 2010 was 
$105,152 and $37,585, respectively (three and nine month period ended September 30, 2009 – $nil).  The foreign 
exchange loss arose primarily as a result of translating assets and liabilities denominated in Colombian pesos and 
Venezuelan bolivar to U.S. dollars. 

Other Items

On September 20, 2010, the Company was forgiven debt owed to VenezuelaCo of $320,571.  The debt was 
a part of the assets and liabilities of GOPEOC, a Predecessor Subsidiary from which all assets and liabilities were 
acquired by the Company.  The debt owed by the Company was forgiven by VenezuelaCo as part of the winding up 
of GOPEOC, and recorded as an adjustment to equity as both the Company and VenezuelaCo are under common 
control.  GOPEOC was an inactive Venezuelan entity with residual balances, predating its acquisition by the 
Company.
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Net Loss and Funds from Operations

The Company generated a net loss of $1,595,966 ($0.04 loss per share) for the nine month period ended 
September 30, 2010 (nine month period ended September 30, 2009 net loss of $840) and a net loss of $635,918 
($0.01 per share) for the three month period ended September 30, 2010 (three month period ended September 30, 
2009 net loss of $840). 

Years Ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 

Revenue

The Company had $55,900 of interest revenue earned on cash deposits for the year ended December 31, 
2009 (December 31, 2008 – $nil, December 31, 2007 – $nil).  The interest revenue relates to the cash deposits 
made to two Colombian banks as collateral for the issuance to the ANH of guarantees on each of the Colombian 
Blocks.  The Company had no other sources of revenue for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007. 

Administrative Expenses and Amortization

Administrative expenses and amortization costs for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 
were minimal. The Company incurred administrative expenses of $10,295 in 2008 and of $129 in 2007, with $6,383 
of amortization costs being incurred in 2009.  Administrative expenses are comprised primarily of fees incurred by 
the Company.  

Net Loss and Funds from Operations

The Company generated net income of $49,517 ($171.93 per share) for the year ended December 31, 
2009, comprehensive net loss of $11,001 ($nil per share) for the year ended December 31, 2008, and a net loss of 
$619,715 ($nil per share) for the year ended December 31, 2007. The net loss in 2007 was the result of a write-off 
of value added tax of $613,222 and a write off of withholding tax of $6,364 as a result of the Company’s inability 
to utilize these tax credits going forward. 

Related Party Transactions 

For the Nine Month Period Ended September 30, 2010 and Years Ended December 31, 2009 and 2008 

Transactions with Related Parties

The financial statements of the Company describe the following transactions with related parties listed in 
the table below: 

Name Country of Incorporation Relationship
PetroNova International  Inc. (Cayman Holdco) Cayman Islands 100% owned subsidiary 
PetroNova Colombia Inc. (Cayman Opco) Cayman Islands 100% owned subsidiary 
Inepetrol Corporation A.B. (SwedenCo) Sweden Subject to common control 
Inepetrol  S.A. (VenezuelaCo) Venezuela Subject to common control 
Ineparia Inc. Cayman Islands Subject to common control 
Inelectra S.A.C.A. Venezuela Common shareholders 
Newton Investments Company Cayman Islands Common shareholders 
Inepetrol Investments, Ltd. (IIL) British Virgin Islands Common shareholders 
   



41

The following table provides the total amount of transactions that have been entered into with related 
parties including the outstanding balances as at September 30, 2010 and December 31, 2009: 

Amounts due from related parties: 

As at 
September 30, 

2010
($)

As at 
December 31, 

2009
($)

As at 
December 31, 

2008
($)

Inepetrol Corporation A.B. (SwedenCo)  – 1,000 –
Ineparia Inc.  – 140,947 3,449,301 
Inepetrol S.A. (VenezuelaCo)  514,378 37,345 37,345
  514,378 179,292 3,486,646 
     
Amounts owed to related parties: 
     
Inepetrol Corporation A.B. (SwedenCo)  – – –
Inepetrol S.A. (VenezuelaCo)  36,892 11,357,497 4,088,705 
Inelectra S.A.C.A.  – 29,736 29,635

 36,892 11,387,233 4,118,340 

Amounts owed to management 
personnel of the Company – – –
     

During the quarter, the Company advanced $500,000 to VenezuelaCo bearing interest at the 12 month 
LIBOR rate of 1.14% plus EMBI 1198 (Emerging Market Bond Index) annually and which is repayable on July 12, 
2013.  The funds were advanced to allow VenezuelaCo to repay an outstanding operating loan to Newton 
Investments Company, a company under common control with Inelectra S.A.C.A.  At September 30, 2010, $14,378 
of interest receivable is included in the balance owing from VenezuelaCo. The remaining related party transactions 
are non-interest bearing and due on demand.  These transactions occurred in the normal course of operations and are 
recorded at the exchange amount. 

Compensation of management personnel

September 30,  
2010

($)
December 31, 2009 

($)

Salary 188,760 –
Remuneration Shares 823,797 –
Total compensation paid to key management personnel 1,012,557 –

The Reorganization Transactions

On June 28, 2010, the Company completed a series of transactions pursuant to which PetroNova indirectly 
acquired the Colombian Assets, the rights to approximately $8.7 million of performance guarantees (including the 
cash collateral of approximately $7.7 million posted therefor) issued in favour of the ANH, assumed approximately 
$2.3 million in liabilities associated with the Colombian Assets and issued 98,660,044 Common Shares at a deemed 
price of Cdn$0.2067 per Common Share for aggregate consideration of $19,732,009, as more particularly described 
below. 

In November 2009, VenezuelaCo borrowed $15,232,008 from approximately 160 SwedenCo shareholders. 
This indebtedness was evidenced by the issuance of the Shareholders’ Promissory Notes. Pursuant to individual debt 
purchase and sale agreements between the Company and the SwedenCo shareholders dated June 28, 2010, the 
Company acquired the Shareholders’ Promissory Notes in exchange for an aggregate of 76,160,044 Common 
Shares. 
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On June 3, 2010, VenezuelaCo authorized a dividend of $4,500,000 to SwedenCo. The dividend was 
satisfied through the issuance by VenezuelaCo of the VenezuelaCo Promissory Note. Pursuant to a debt purchase 
and sale agreement between the Company and SwedenCo dated June 28, 2010, the Company acquired the 
VenezuelaCo Promissory Note from SwedenCo in exchange for the issuance of 22,500,000 Common Shares to 
SwedenCo. 

Pursuant to the Asset Purchase Agreement, Cayman Opco acquired the Colombian Assets from 
VenezuelaCo for a purchase price of approximately $14.8 million.  The purchase price was satisfied through the 
payment of approximately $0.5 million in cash, the assumption by Cayman Opco of approximately $2.3 million in 
liabilities associated with the Colombian Assets and the issuance by Cayman Opco to VenezuelaCo of a demand 
promissory note of approximately $12.0 million. 

Following the acquisition of the Promissory Notes by the Company, the Company assigned the Promissory 
Notes to Cayman Holdco for Cayman Holdco shares.  

Subsequent to the acquisition of the Colombian Assets by Cayman Opco for the consideration set out 
above, the shares of Cayman Opco were acquired by Cayman Holdco pursuant to the terms of the Share Purchase 
Agreement for consideration of $100, being the difference between the value of the Cayman Opco assets and 
amount of the outstanding Cayman Opco liabilities. 

Subsequent to the acquisition of the shares of Cayman Opco by Cayman Holdco, Cayman Holdco assigned 
the Promissory Notes to Cayman Opco for Cayman Opco shares. Pursuant to a set off agreement dated June 28, 
2010, Cayman Opco fully satisfied its obligations to VenezuelaCo under the $12.0 million demand promissory notes 
issued for the Colombian Assets and acquired the rights to approximately $8.7 million of performance guarantees 
(including the cash collateral of approximately $7.7 million posted therefor) in exchange for the surrender of the 
Promissory Notes. 

Debt Forgiveness

On September 20, 2010, the Company was forgiven debt owed to VenezuelaCo of $320,571.  The debt owed by the 
Company was forgiven by VenezuelaCo as part of the winding up of GOPEOC, and was recorded as an adjustment 
to equity as both the Company and VenezuelaCo are under common control. 

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates 

The Company’s critical accounting estimates are those estimates having a significant impact on the 
Company’s financial position and operations and that require management to make judgments, estimates and 
assumptions in the application of IFRS.  Judgments, estimates and assumptions are based on management’s 
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the 
circumstances.  As events occur and additional information is obtained, these judgements, estimates and 
assumptions may be subject to change.  The following are the critical accounting estimates used in the preparation of 
the Company’s consolidated financial statements. 

Assessment of Commercial Reserves 

Management is required to assess the level of the Company’s commercial reserves together with the future 
expenditures to access those reserves, which are utilized in determining the amortization and depletion charge for 
the period and assessing whether any impairment charge is required. The Company employs independent reserve 
specialists who periodically assess the Company’s level of commercial reserves by reference to data sets including 
geological, geophysical and engineering data together with reports, presentation and financial information pertaining 
to the contractual and fiscal terms applicable to the Company’s assets. In addition, the Company undertakes its own 
assessment of commercial reserves and related future capital expenditures by reference to the same datasets using its 
own internal expertise.  As the Company is in the exploration phase of its development, there are presently no 
identifiable commercial reserves. 
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Impairment

At each reporting date, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its facilities and equipment and 
exploration and evaluation assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an 
impairment loss. Individual assets are grouped together as a cash generating unit for impairment assessment 
purposes at the lowest level at which there are identifiable cash inflows that are independent from other group assets. 
In the case of exploration and evaluation assets, this will normally be at the Company’s field level. If any such 
indication of impairment exists, the Company makes an estimate of its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount 
is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. Where the carrying amount of a cash generating unit 
exceeds its recoverable amount, the cash generating unit is considered impaired and is written down to its 
recoverable amount. In assessing the value in use, the estimated future cash flows are adjusted for the risks specific 
to the cash generating unit and are discounted to their present value with a discount rate that reflects the current 
market indicators. Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset cash generating 
unit is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not 
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the cash 
generating unit in prior periods. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.  

Decommissioning Provisions 

Management of the Company has determined, based on its understanding of the contractual agreements in 
Colombia to which the Company is a party to, that the Company at its present stage of development, does not have 
any legal or constructive obligation for future decommissioning costs as at December 31, 2009.  However, these 
assumptions involve judgment, which may be subject to change, and therefore the position will be reviewed on an 
ongoing basis.  A change in circumstances may also result in a liability being recorded in future periods. 

Income Taxes 

The Company recognises the net future tax benefit related to deferred income tax assets to the extent that it 
is probable that the deductible temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future.  Assessing the 
recoverability of deferred income tax assets requires the Company to make significant estimates related to 
expectations of future taxable income.  Estimates of future taxable income are based on forecast cash flows from 
operations and the application of existing tax laws in each jurisdiction.  To the extent that future cash flows and 
taxable income differ significantly from estimates, the ability of the Company to realize the net deferred tax assets 
recorded at the consolidated statement of financial position date could be impacted. 

In addition, future changes in tax laws in the jurisdictions in which the Company operates could limit the 
ability of the Company to obtain tax deductions in future periods. 

Contingencies 

By their nature, contingencies will only be resolved when one or more future events occur or fail to occur.  
The assessment of contingencies inherently involves the exercise of significant judgement and estimates of the 
outcome of future events. 

Fair Value of Financial Instruments 

The estimated fair value of financial assets and liabilities, by their very nature, are subject to measurement 
uncertainty. Trade receivables are stated after evaluation as to their collectability and an appropriate allowance for 
doubtful accounts is provided where considered necessary. 

Future Accounting Policies 

Certain new standards, interpretations, amendments and improvements to existing standards were issued by 
the IASB or IFRIC that are mandatory for accounting periods beginning after January 1, 2011 or later periods. The 
standards impacted that are applicable to the Company are as follows: 
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Financial Instruments 

IFRS 9 Financial instruments (“IFRS 9”) was issued by the IASB on November 12, 2009 and will replace 
IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement (“IAS 39”). IFRS 9 uses a single approach to 
determine whether a financial asset is measured at amortized cost or fair value, replacing the multiple rules in IAS 
39. The approach in IFRS 9 is based on how an entity manages its financial instruments in the context of its business 
model and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets. 

The new standard also requires a single impairment method to be used, replacing the multiple impairment 
methods in IAS 39. IFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013. The Company is 
currently evaluating the impact of IFRS 9 on its financial statements. 

Related Party Disclosures – Revised Definition of Related Parties 

On November 4, 2009 the IASB issued a revised version of IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures (“IAS 24”).
IAS 24 requires entities to disclose in their financial statements information about transactions with related parties. 
Generally, two parties are related to each other if one party controls, or significantly influences, the other party. IAS 
24 has simplified the definition of a related party and removed certain of the disclosures required by the predecessor 
standard. The revised standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2011. The Company is 
currently evaluating the impact of the change to IAS 24 on its financial statements. 

Financial Instruments 

The Company’s principal financial liabilities are comprised of trade and other payables, amounts due to 
related parties and bank loans. The main purpose of these financial instruments is to manage short-term cash flow 
and raise finances for the Company’s capital expenditure program. The Company has various financial assets such 
as trade and other receivables, cash, block deposits and dues from related parties which arise directly from its 
operations. The carrying value of these financial instruments is approximated by their fair value due to their short-
term nature. 

The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: interest rate risk, credit risk, foreign 
exchange risk, liquidity risk and market risk. The Company’s overall risk management program focuses on the 
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on the Company’s financial 
performance. 

Risk management is carried out by senior management and is overseen by the Board of Directors. 

Financial Risk Factors 

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will be affected by changes in market 
interest rates.  The Company is exposed to interest rate risk as its bank loans have a variable rate up to the point in 
time where the Company draws on its line of credit at which point the interest rate becomes fixed.  The Company 
does not consider there to be significant exposure to its cash and cash equivalents.  Based on the bank loans 
outstanding at September 30, 2010, a one percent change in average interest rates would increase or decrease net 
income by approximately $4,500 over a full year. The Company manages its interest rate risk by diversifying its 
sources of financing. 

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to financial 
instruments fails to meet its contractual obligations. Credit risk arises from the Company’s trade and other 
receivable balances. Because the Company deals with high credit-quality institutions, in accordance with established 
credit-approval practices, the Company does not expect any counterparties to fail to meet their obligations.  The 
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Company believes the counter-parties with which they have significant transactions are well rated entities. The 
Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk as at September 30, 2010 is $117,659 (December 31, 2009: $54,726). 

Foreign Exchange Risk

The Company enters into transactions denominated in currencies other than its U.S. dollar reporting 
currency.  Non U.S. dollar denominated balances, subject to exchange rate fluctuations, at period-end were as 
follows: 

September 30, 2010 
($)

December 31, 2009 
($)

Cash and cash equivalents: 
Canadian dollars 781,979 –
Colombian peso 150,622 8,849 
Strong bolivar (Venezuela) – 868 

Trade and other receivables: 
Colombian peso 252,957 3,933 

Value added tax receivable: 
Colombian peso 1,609,014 284,152 

Trade and other payables: 
          Canadian dollars 328,181 –
          Colombian peso 1,134,269 915,950 
Bank loans: 
         Colombian peso 455,770 –

The impact on the net loss and comprehensive loss for the period had the U.S. dollar to Canadian dollar 
exchange rate changed by 10% and the U.S. dollar to Colombian peso exchange rate changed by 10% would amount 
to approximately $80,000 (December 31, 2009: $56,000).  

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that, as a result of operational liquidity requirements, the Company will not have 
sufficient funds to settle an obligation on the due date, will be forced to sell financial assets at a price less than what 
they are worth, or will be unable to settle or recover a financial asset. 

The Company’s operating cash requirements are continuously monitored by management.  As factors 
impacting cash requirements change, liquidity risks may necessitate the need for the Company to issue equity or 
obtain additional debt financing. 

All of the Company’s financial liabilities are due within one year. 

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk or uncertainty arising from possible market price movements and their impact on the 
future performance of the business.  The market price movements that could adversely affect the value of the 
Company’s financial assets, liabilities and expected future cash flows include commodity price risk and foreign 
exchange risk.

Share Capital 

As at the date hereof, the Company has 112,981,302 Common Shares and 10,200,000 Warrants outstanding.  All 
Warrants outstanding carry the same characteristics, including exercise price and expiration date. 
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Subsequent Events 

On October 4, 2010, Cayman Opco established a credit facility with SwedenCo in the principal amount of 
$1,500,000 (the “Cayman Credit Facility”).  The Cayman Credit Facility has a term of 90 days, bears interest at 
the LIBOR rate plus 3% and as of November 30, 2010, has been fully drawn upon. 

On October 12, 2010, certain directors of the Company who were newly appointed acquired 200,000 Units 
at a price of Cdn$1.00 per Unit for gross proceeds of Cdn$200,000.  Each Unit was comprised of one Common 
Share and one Warrant.  Each Warrant entitles the holder to purchase one Common Share at Cdn$1.50 per share and 
expire June 29, 2013.  

Subsequent to September 30, 2010, the Company entered into an equipment lease agreement with a third 
party lessor over the next 24 months at a cost to the Company of $1,170 per month. 

On November 12, 2010, the Company entered into an office rental agreement for 60 months, commencing 
December 1, 2010 with payments beginning January 15, 2011.  The payments are as follows: 

(a) monthly rent at $15,834 per month for the first 12 months with payments increasing yearly by the 
consumer price index.  The Company will be responsible for the costs up to the 36 month period 
should the agreement be terminated by the Company prior to this time.  Should the owner 
terminate the agreement prior to the 36 months, the Company will not have to pay rent and will be 
expected to pay the remaining leasehold improvement costs described below.  After 36 months, 
either party may terminate the agreement without penalty, but must notify the other party 3 
months in advance; and 

(b) administration costs of $1,492 per month. 

As part of the agreement, the Company will incur leasehold improvement costs of $316,886 paid in 
monthly payments of $6,670 with interest at 0.8% monthly.  Should the Company terminate the agreement prior to 
the 60 month term, they will be responsible for paying the unpaid capital amount owing. 

CONSOLIDATED CAPITALIZATION 

The following table sets forth the Company’s consolidated capitalization as at September 30, 2010, prior to 
and after giving effect to the Offering. The table must be read with the financial statements and accompanying notes, 
which appear elsewhere in this prospectus. 

Description As at September 30, 2010 
As at September 30, 2010, after giving effect 

to the Offering(1)(2)

Debt
Bank Loan(3)(4)

$455,770 $455,770 

Share Capital 
Common Shares(5)

$29,575,234
(112,781,302 Common Shares) 

$88,646,107
(165,301,302 Common Shares) 

Notes:
(1) After deducting the Agents’ Commission of Cdn$3,924,000 ($3,810,448), assuming a cash commission of 6% of the gross proceeds of

the Offering is paid by the Company to the Agents, and the expenses of the Offering, estimated to be approximately Cdn$750,000 
($728,296). Amounts have been converted from Canadian dollars to U.S. dollars based on an exchange rate of Cdn$1.00 = $0.9711, 
being the noon spot rate of exchange posted by the Bank of Canada for the conversion of Canadian dollars into U.S. dollars on 
September 30, 2010.

(2) On October 12, 2010, an additional 200,000 Units were issued. See “Prior Sales”. 
(3) The Company has established a bank loan with Banco de Occidente in the principal amount of COL$800,000,000 ($417,327). The 

loan bears interest on a weekly basis at a variable rate (at the fixed term deposit rate plus 2%), is secured by a promissory note issued 
by SwedenCo and Cayman Opco CB and revolves every 180 days. See Note 10 to the consolidated financial statements of the 
Company as at and for the nine months ended September 30, 2010. As at November 30, 2010, COL$724,703,040 ($378,048.08) was 
owing under the bank loan and COL$75,296,960 ($39,279) was available. Amounts have been converted from COL$ to U.S. dollars 
based on an exchange rate of COL$1.00 = $0.000522, being the market representative  rate of exchange posted by the Banco de la 
Republica (Colombia) for the conversion of COL$ into U.S. dollars on November 30, 2010. 
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(4) The Company has established a revolving credit facility with Banco de Bogota in the principal amount of COL$1,000,000,000 
($521,659). The credit facility bears interest at a fixed term deposit rate plus 4%, is secured by a promissory note issued by Colombian 
Branch CB and revolves every 90 days. See Note 10 to the consolidated financial statements of the Company as at and for the nine
months ended September 30, 2010. As at November 30, 2010, COL$999,496,905 ($521,396) was owing under this credit facility and 
COL$503,095 ($262) was available.  Amounts have been converted from COL$ to U.S. dollars based on an exchange rate of 
COL$1.00 = $0.000522, being the market representative rate of exchange posted by the Banco de la Republica (Colombia) for the 
conversion of COL$ into U.S. dollars on November 30, 2010.  

(5) In addition, as at November 30, 2010, the Company had 10,200,000 Warrants issued and outstanding at an exercise price of Cdn$1.50 
per Common Share. Prior to completion of the Offering, the Company plans to issue approximately 5,130,000 Options to certain 
employees, officers and directors of the Company. See “The Company – General Development of the Business – Recent 
Developments”, “Options and Warrants to Purchase Securities”, “Prior Sales” and “Compensation of Executive Officers and 
Directors – Long-Term Incentive Plans – The Option Plan”. 

On October 4, 2010, Cayman Opco established the Cayman Credit Facility with SwedenCo in the principal 
amount of $1,500,000.  The Cayman Credit Facility has a term of 90 days and bears interest at the LIBOR rate plus 
3%.  As at November 30, 2010, the Cayman Credit Facility was fully drawn upon.  See “Management’s Discussion 
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations – Subsequent Events”. 

DESCRIPTION OF SHARE CAPITAL 

Common Shares 

The authorized capital of the Company currently consists of an unlimited number of Common Shares 
without par value. Holders of Common Shares are entitled to one vote for each Common Share held on all votes 
taken at meetings of holders of Common Shares. The holders of Common Shares are entitled to receive such 
dividends as the Company’s directors may from time to time declare. In the event of the winding up or dissolution of 
the Company, whether voluntary or involuntary or for the purpose of a reorganization or otherwise or upon any 
distribution of capital, the holders of Common Shares are entitled to the surplus assets of the Company and generally 
will be entitled to enjoy all of the rights attaching to shares of the Company. 

Preferred Shares 

The preferred shares will be issuable at any time and from time to time in one or more series. The Board of 
Directors will be authorized to fix before issue the number of, the consideration per share of, the designation of, and 
the provisions attaching to the preferred shares of each series, which may include voting rights, the whole subject to 
the issue of a certificate of amendment setting forth the designation and provisions attaching to the preferred shares 
or shares of the series. The preferred shares of each series will rank on a parity with the preferred shares of every 
other series and will be entitled to preference over the Common Shares and any other shares ranking junior to the 
preferred shares with respect to payment of dividends and distribution of any property or assets in the event of the 
Company’s liquidation, dissolution or winding-up, whether voluntary or involuntary. If any cumulative dividends 
(whether or not declared), non-cumulative dividends declared or amounts payable on a return of capital are not paid 
in full, the preferred shares of all series will participate rateably in accordance with the amounts that would be 
payable on such preferred shares if all such dividends were declared and paid in full or the sums that would be 
payable on such shares on the return of capital were paid in full, as the case may be. 

OPTIONS AND WARRANTS TO PURCHASE SECURITIES 

Options Outstanding 

The Company expects that the Board will authorize the issuance of approximately 1,050,000 Options to the 
directors of the Company (excluding executive officers), approximately 1,570,000 Options to the officers of the 
Company, approximately 300,000 Options to the officers of subsidiaries of the Company and approximately 
2,210,000 Options to other employees and consultants of the Company and its subsidiaries shortly prior to Closing. 
The Options will have an exercise price equal to the Offering Price. See “Compensation of Executive Officers and 
Directors – Long-Term Incentive Plans – The Option Plan”. 
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Group (Number in Group) Common Shares Under Option Expiration Dates 
Current and former executive officers of the Company 
(the “Company Executives”) (4) 

1,570,000 Five years from the date of grant 

   
Current and former directors of the Company, 
excluding Company Executives (“Company 
Directors”) (3)  

1,050,000 Five years from the date of grant 

   
Current and former executive officers of subsidiaries, 
excluding Company Executives and Company 
Directors (2) 

   300,000 Five years from the date of grant 

   
Current and former employees of subsidiaries (13) 1,060,000 Five years from the date of grant 
   
Consultants to the Company and its subsidiaries (6) 1,150,000 Five years from the date of grant 

Warrants Outstanding 

The Company has 10,200,000 Warrants issued and outstanding. All outstanding Warrants carry the same 
characteristics, including exercise price and expiration date.  Each whole Warrant, which is subject to adjustment in 
certain circumstances, entitles the holder thereof to purchase one Common Share at a price of Cdn$1.50 per 
Common Share on or before June 29, 2013.  Other than those warrants, the Company does not have any other 
warrants to purchase Common Shares outstanding. See “The Company – General Development of the Business – 
Recent Developments” and “Prior Sales”. 

MARKET FOR SECURITIES 

There is currently no published or public market through which the Common Shares may be sold and 
purchasers may not be able to resell the Offered Shares purchased under this prospectus.  The TSX-V has 
conditionally approved the listing of the Common Shares, subject to the Company fulfilling all of the listing 
requirements of the TSX-V.  See “Risk Factors – Risks Relating to the Offering – Absence of a Liquid, Public 
Market”.

PRIOR SALES 

The following table summarizes the issuances by the Company of Common Shares and securities 
convertible into Common Shares during the 12 month period prior to the date of this prospectus. 

Date Securities Price Per Security Number of Securities 
September 17, 2009(1) Common Shares     Cdn$1.00          1,000 
June 28, 2010(2) Common Shares Cdn$0.2067   4,120,258 
June 28, 2010(3) Common Shares Cdn$0.2067 22,500,000 
June 28, 2010(3) Common Shares Cdn$0.2067 76,160,044 
June 29, 2010(4) Units     Cdn$1.00 10,000,000 
October 12, 2010(4) Units     Cdn$1.00      200,000 

Notes:
(1) These represent the Common Shares that were issued to SwedenCo on incorporation.
(2) These Common Shares were issued to certain individuals, including certain directors and executive officers of the Company,  in 

consideration for past services rendered.
(3) See “The Company – General Development of the Business – The Reorganization Transactions”. 
(4) See “The Company – General Development of the Business – Recent Developments”.

Immediately prior to Closing, the Company expects that the Board will authorize the issuance of 
approximately 5,130,000 Options under the Option Plan to certain officers, directors, employees and consultants of 
the Company and its subsidiaries. The exercise price of such Options will be equal to the Offering Price. See 
“Options and Warrants to Purchase Securities” and “Compensation of Executive Officers and Directors – Long 
Term Incentive Plans – The Option Plan”. 
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ESCROWED SECURITIES 

No securities of the Company are expected to be subject to escrow upon completion of the Offering. 

USE OF PROCEEDS 

The Company expects to receive approximately Cdn$60,726,000 ($59,170,000) of Net Proceeds from the 
Offering.  

The Net Proceeds will be used by the Company to accomplish the Company’s stated business objectives. 
See “The Company’s Business – Business Objectives and Strategy”.  Based upon management’s current intentions, 
the Company expects to use the Net Proceeds to: (i) fund its exploration program, which includes the drilling of an 
Exploratory A-3 Well on the PUT 2 Block, the acquisition of 3D seismic data over the Tinigua prospect and the 
drilling of an Exploratory A-3 Well on the Tinigua prospect in the Tinigua Block and the drilling of three 
Exploratory A-3 Wells on the prospects in each of the Llanos Blocks; (ii) additional exploratory activities to further 
describe or delineate initial results; and (iii) general and administrative expenses, as more particularly described in 
the table below: 

Description of Activity 

Estimated Portion 
of Net Proceeds 

($)

Estimated Portion 
of Net Proceeds 

(Cdn$(1))

Base Exploratory Program 

PUT 2 Block (Phase 1) 8,800,000 9,031,440 
             Drill 10,000 ft Exploratory A-3 Well

Tinigua Block (Phase 1) 9,000,000 9,236,700 
 Acquire 109 km2 of 3D seismic data over the Tinigua prospect 

Tinigua Block (Phase 2) 
 Drill an Exploratory A-3 Well on the Tinigua prospect 7,700,000 7,902,510 

CPO 6 Block (Phase 1) 2,100,000 2,155,230 
Drill three Exploratory A-3 Wells

CPO 7 Block (Phase 1) 2,700,000 2,771,010 
Processing and interpretation of 2D seismic data and drill three 
Exploratory A-3 Wells

CPO 13 Block (Phase 1) 2,200,000 2,257,860 
Processing and interpretation of 2D seismic data and drill three 
Exploratory A-3 Wells

Additional Exploratory Program 

 Seismic Acquisition 8,500,000 8,723,550 
 Additional Exploratory Wells 13,100,000 13,444,330 

General and Administrative Expenses 4,800,000(2) 4,926,240(2)

Unallocated Working Capital 270,000(3) 276,930(3)

Total 59,170,000 60,726,000 

Notes:
(1) Amounts in this table have been converted from U.S. dollars to Canadian dollars based on an exchange rate of $1.00 = Cdn$1.0263, 

being the noon spot rate of exchange posted by the Bank of Canada for the conversion of U.S. dollars into Canadian dollars on 
November 30, 2010.

(2) Management’s estimate of the general and administrative expenses of the Company for the 18 month period following completion of
the Offering.
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(3) Unallocated working capital will be added to the Company’s general funds that may become available in the ordinary course of 
business, including funds from partial releases of performance guarantees. 

All proceeds other than general and administrative expenses and working capital, will be used by the 
Company to meet or exceed the Company’s minimum exploration commitments under the Company’s E&P 
Contracts. For a description of the Company’s minimum exploration commitments under the Company’s E&P 
Contracts, see “The Company’s Business – The Company’s Oil and Gas Properties”.  For a description of the 
Company’s exploration program, see “The Company’s Business – Exploration Program”.  

Due to the nature of the oil and gas industry, budgets are regularly reviewed with respect to the success of 
the expenditures and other opportunities which become available to the Company. The Company’s actual 
expenditures may vary depending on a variety of factors, including the availability of equipment and personnel, the 
assessment of seismic data, unexpected expenses, delays in the receipt of necessary regulatory approvals, permits 
and licences and the success of the Company’s business development activities. While it is currently intended by 
management of the Company that the Net Proceeds will be expended as set forth above, actual expenditures may in 
fact differ from these amounts and allocations. 

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND DIRECTORS 

Summary Information 

The following table provides the names and municipalities of residence of the executive officers and  
directors of the Company as well as their offices held with the Company, the date they were first appointed to the 
Board of Directors and their principal occupation for the previous five years. Each of the officers, other than the 
Corporate Secretary, are employed by the Company or Cayman Opco. Ms. Park, Corporate Secretary of the 
Company, is included in the table below but is not considered to be an executive officer of the Company.

Name and Municipality of 
Residence 

Current Positions and 
Offices Held 

Principal Occupation for Previous 
Five Years Director Since 

Antonio Vincentelli(3)

Ontario, Canada 
President, Chief Executive 
Officer and Director 

President and Chief Executive 
Officer of the Company and a 
director of VenezuelaCo and 
SwedenCo. Prior thereto, President 
and Chief Executive Officer of 
SwedenCo from August 2007 to 
August 2010 and President of 
VenezuelaCo from June 2004 to 
August 2010.

September 17, 2009 

Stelvio Di Cecco 
Caracas, Venezuela 

Chief Financial Officer 
and Director 

Chief Financial Officer of the 
Company. In addition, a director and 
Chair of the audit committee of 
Inelectra. Prior thereto, Chief 
Financial Officer of Inelectra from 
2002 to August 2010. 

July 21, 2010 

Ricardo Halfen(1)(2)

Florida, United States 
Director Director of Inelectra and 

VenezuelaCo and Vice President, 
Finance of Inelectra USA Inc. since 
March 2009. From 2007 to February 
2009, Vice President, Finance of 
Inelectra S.A.C.A. Prior thereto, 
Vice President, Finance and Vice 
President, New Ventures of 
Millenium P y C.C.A., a Venezuelan 
real estate and development 
company. 

May 12, 2010 
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Name and Municipality of 
Residence 

Current Positions and 
Offices Held 

Principal Occupation for Previous 
Five Years Director Since 

Anthony Lambert(1)(2)(3)

Alberta, Canada  
Director President and Chief Executive 

Officer of Daylight Energy Ltd. and 
its predecessors since November 
2004.

September 16, 2010 

Judith Stripling(1)(2)(3)

Alberta, Canada  
Director Executive Vice President and Chief 

Financial Officer of Pace Oil & Gas 
Ltd. Prior thereto, Executive Vice 
President and Chief Financial 
Officer of Midnight Oil Exploration 
Ltd. or its predecessors  and 
affiliates since July 2000.  

September 16, 2010 

José Paz 
Caracas, Venezuela 

Vice President, Operations Vice President, Operations of the 
Company since July 2010. Director 
of Petrolera Kaki from November 
2006 to July 2010 and Director of 
Petrolera Guiria from December 
2007 to July 2010. Vice President, 
Operations of Inepetrol S.A. and 
from December 1998 to October 
2006, Planning Coordinator of 
Inemaka. 

N/A

Eugenio Ochoa 
Caracas, Venezuela 

Vice President, 
Exploration and 
Production

Vice President, Exploration and 
Production of the Company. Prior 
thereto, Exploration and Production 
Manager of Inepetrol S.A. from 
August 2006 to July 2010 and 
Geology Coordinator from February 
2000 to August 2006.  

N/A

Melinda Park 
Alberta, Canada  

Corporate Secretary Partner at Borden Ladner Gervais 
LLP, a national law firm, and its 
predecessor since 1998.

N/A

Notes:
(1) Member of the Audit Committee. 
(2) Member of the Compensation Committee. 
(3) Member of the Reserves Committee. 

All of the Company’s directors’ terms of office will expire at the earliest of their resignation, the close of 
the next annual shareholder meeting called for the election of directors, or on such other date as they may be 
removed according to the ABCA. Each director will devote the amount of time as is required to fulfill their 
obligations to the Company. The Company’s officers are appointed by and serve at the discretion of the Board of 
Directors.

Biographies 

The following are brief profiles of the directors and executive officers of the Company, including a 
description of each individual’s principal occupation within the past five years. 

Antonio Vincentelli – President, Chief Executive Officer and Director  

Mr. Vincentelli, President, Chief Executive Officer and a director of the Company, is an Electrical 
Engineer with over 37 years of experience in the oil and gas and engineering and construction industries. Mr. 
Vincentelli was previously the President of VenezuelaCo from June 2004 until August 2010 and the President and 
Chairman of the board of directors of Inelectra and was actively involved in the expansion of VenezuelaCo into 
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South America.  In addition, Mr. Vincentelli was President of the Venezuelan Oil Chamber from 2004 to 2008. Mr. 
Vincentelli is a registered engineer and member of the Colegio de Ingenieros (College of Engineers) of Venezuela 
and a Senior Fellow of the Institute of Electrical and Electronic Engineering (United States). Mr. Vincentelli 
graduated from Harvard’s Advanced Management Program and received a MSc. (Electrical Engineering), a BSc. 
(Electrical Engineering) and a BSc. (Computer Engineering) from the University of Michigan.   

Stelvio Di Cecco – Chief Financial Officer and Director 

Mr. Di Cecco, Chief Financial Officer and a director of the Company, is an Electrical Engineer with over 
32 years experience in project management and finance. Mr. Di Cecco is also a director and the Chair of the audit 
committee of Inelectra. From 2002 until August 2010, Mr. Di Cecco was the Chief Financial Officer of Inelectra and 
from 1985 to 2000, was the Vice President, Finance of Inelectra. Mr. Di Cecco received his MBA from the 
University of Dallas, a Master of Finance from the Universidad Metropolitana in Caracas, Venezuela and an 
Engineering Degree from the Universidad Simon Bolivar in Caracas, Venezuela.

Ricardo Halfen – Director  

Mr. Halfen, a director of the Company, is currently a director of Inelectra and VenezuelaCo and the Vice 
President Finance of Inelectra USA Inc. Mr. Halfen was previously the Vice President, Finance of Inelectra and  
Vice President, Finance and Vice President, New Ventures of Millenium P y C.C.A., a Venezuelan real estate and 
development company. Mr. Halfen received an MBA from Columbia University, a MSc. (Engineering Economic 
Systems) from Stanford University and a BA (Economics) from the Universidad Catolica Andres Bello in Caracas, 
Venezuela.  

Anthony Lambert – Director  

Mr. Lambert, a director of the Company, is a Professional Engineer with over 30 years of oil and gas 
experience. He is currently President, Chief Executive Officer and a director of Daylight Energy Ltd. Prior thereto, 
from November 2004 to August 2005, he was Chief Operating Officer and Vice President Operations of Midnight 
Oil Exploration Ltd. Prior thereto, from July 2000 to November 2004, he was the Chief Operating Officer and Vice 
President Operations of Midnight Oil & Gas Ltd. Mr. Lambert is a current member of the Association of 
Professional Engineers, Geologists and Geophysicists of Alberta. He  has a BSc. (Petroleum Engineering) from 
Montana University. 

Judith Stripling – Director  

Ms. Stripling, a director of the Company, is a Chartered Accountant with over 25 years of experience 
working with oil and gas companies. Ms. Stripling is currently the Executive Vice President and Chief Financial 
Officer of Pace Oil & Gas Ltd., an intermediate TSX listed oil and gas exploration company located in Calgary, 
Alberta. Prior thereto, Ms. Stripling was the Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Midnight Oil 
Exploration Ltd. or its predecessors  and affiliates since July 2000. Ms. Stripling is a current member of the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of Alberta. Ms. Stripling has a BComm. and a BSc. from the University of Alberta. 

José Paz – Vice President, Operations 

Mr. Paz, Vice President, Operations of the Company, is an Industrial Engineer with 23 years experience in 
the hydrocarbon industry and has held management positions in several companies in Venezuela that have 
established partnerships with companies such as ARCO, BP, TOTAL and Petroleos de Venezuela S.A. (“PDVSA”).
Mr. Paz was previously Vice President, Operations of VenezuelaCo and Planning Coordinator of Inemeka, a 
subsidiary of VenezuelaCo.  Mr. Paz is registered engineer and member of the Colegio de Ingenieros (College of 
Engineers) of Venezuela and received a degree in Industrial Engineering from the Universidad Catolica Andres 
Bello in Caracas, Venezuela.  
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Eugenio Ochoa – Vice President, Exploration and Production 

Mr. Ochoa, Vice President, Exploration and Production of the Company, is a Geologist with 40 years 
experience in the oil and gas industry, having previously held managerial positions with Texas Petroleum Co., Shell 
and PDVSA and its affiliates, including Corporate Exploration Manager for PDVSA from 1987 to 1991. Mr. Ochoa 
was previously Exploration and Production Manager and prior thereto, Geology Coordinator, of VenezuelaCo.  Mr. 
Ochoa is a member of the Colegio de Ingenieros (College of Engineers) of Venezuela and received a MSc. 
(Geology) from the University of Wyoming and a degree in Geology from the Universidad Central de Venezuela.  

Melinda Park – Corporate Secretary 

Ms. Park, Corporate Secretary of the Company, has been practicing law in the Province of Alberta since 
1992 and has been an associate and subsequently a partner with the law firm of Borden Ladner Gervais LLP (and its 
predecessor) since 1993. In addition, Ms. Park is also currently a director and/or officer of various other public 
companies. Ms. Park received her LLB degree from the University of Toronto in 1991 concurrently with her 
BComm. from the University of Saskatchewan.  

Corporate Development and New Ventures 

In addition to the foregoing officers and directors, the following sets forth a brief profile of Juan Szabo, the 
Director of Corporate Development of the Company. Mr. Szabo will be primarily responsible for assisting 
management of the Company in the planning and execution of its business strategy in order to meet the Company’s 
stated business objectives. Mr. Szabo will provide advice to the management of the Company on new business 
opportunities and the acquisition and divestment activities of PetroNova. For a description of the Company’s 
business objectives and strategy, see “The Company’s Business – Business Objectives and Strategy”.  

Juan Szabo – Director of Corporate Development 

Mr. Szabo is a Mechanical Engineer with over 38 years of experience in operation, management and 
business development in several countries. Mr. Szabo was previously the General Manager of VenezuelaCo from 
2000 to 2006 and since 2007, has served as an advisor to various private and public entities, including P.T. Energi 
Mega Persada Tbk  and Alentar Holdings Inc. (an affiliate of Activalores S.A. , a Venezuelan Investment Bank) as 
well as for multilateral  organizations such as the Interamerican Development Bank and the Central Bank of 
Ecuador. In addition, Mr. Szabo  is currently a member of the board of directors of Suroco Energy Inc. and the 
Advisory Comitee of Stone Bond Corporation.  Prior thereto, he was Vice President of Exploration and Production 
and Chief Financial Officer at PDVSA, where he was responsible for the acquisition of most of PDVSA’s 
downstream assets in the United States, the first offshore exploration campaign in the Venezuelan Continental Shelf, 
and the opening of the petroleum industry to private investment during the mid 1990’s.  Mr. Szabo received a MSc. 
(Mechanical Engineering) and BSc. (Mechanical Engineering with a Petroleum Option) from the University of 
Houston.  

Committees of the Board of Directors 

The Company currently has an Audit Committee, a Compensation Committee and a Reserves Committee. 
See “Corporate Governance and Audit Committee” for a description of the roles and responsibilities of each of the 
committees.

Share Ownership by Directors and Officers 

As a group, the Company’s executive officers and directors beneficially own or exercise control or 
direction over, directly or indirectly, 1,872,238 Common Shares, representing approximately 1.7% of the issued and 
outstanding Common Shares prior to giving effect to the Offering. The Company has also been advised that the 
Company’s officers and directors will acquire up to 300,000 Common Shares pursuant to the Offering, representing 
approximately 0.2% of the issued and outstanding Common Shares of the Company following completion of the 
Offering. Upon completion of the Offering, the Company’s executive officers and directors are expected to 
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beneficially own, as a group, or exercise control or direction over, directly or indirectly, 2,172,238 Common Shares 
representing approximately 1.3% of the issued and outstanding Common Shares.

Cease Trade Orders, Bankruptcies, Penalties or Sanctions  

Cease Trade Orders 

To the knowledge of the Company, no director or executive officer of the Company (nor any personal 
holding company of any of such persons) is, as of the date of this prospectus, or was within ten years before the date 
of this prospectus, a director, chief executive officer or chief financial officer of any company (including the 
Company), that: (a) was subject to a cease trade order (including a management cease trade order), an order similar 
to a cease trade order or an order that denied the relevant company access to any exemption under securities 
legislation, in each case that was in effect for a period of more than 30 consecutive days (collectively, an “Order”),
that was issued while the director or executive officer was acting in the capacity as director, chief executive officer 
or chief financial officer; or (b) was subject to an Order that was issued after the director or executive officer ceased 
to be a director, chief executive officer or chief financial officer and which resulted from an event that occurred 
while that person was acting in the capacity as director, chief executive officer or chief financial officer. 

Bankruptcies

To the knowledge of the Company, no director or executive officer of the Company (nor any personal 
holding company of any of such persons), or shareholder holding a sufficient number of securities of the Company 
to affect materially the control of the Company: (a) is, as of the date of this prospectus, or has been within the ten 
years before the date of this prospectus, a director or executive officer of any company (including the Company) 
that, while that person was acting in that capacity, or within a year of that person ceasing to act in that capacity, 
became bankrupt, made a proposal under any legislation relating to bankruptcy or insolvency or was subject to or 
instituted any proceedings, arrangement or compromise with creditors or had a receiver, receiver manager or trustee 
appointed to hold its assets; or (b) has, within the ten years before the date of this prospectus, become bankrupt, 
made a proposal under any legislation relating to bankruptcy or insolvency, or become subject to or instituted any 
proceedings, arrangement or compromise with creditors, or had a receiver, receiver manager or trustee appointed to 
hold the assets of the director, executive officer or shareholder. 

Penalties or Sanctions 

To the knowledge of the Company, no director or executive officer of the Company (nor any personal 
holding company of any of such persons), or shareholder holding a sufficient number of securities of the Company 
to affect materially the control of the Company, has been subject to: (a) any penalties or sanctions imposed by a 
court relating to securities legislation or by a securities regulatory authority or has entered into a settlement 
agreement with a securities regulatory authority; or (b) any other penalties or sanctions imposed by a court or 
regulatory body that would likely be considered important to a reasonable investor in making an investment 
decision.

Conflicts of Interest 

Certain officers and directors of the Company are also officers and/or directors of other companies engaged 
in the oil and gas business generally. As a result, situations may arise where the interest of such directors and 
officers conflict with their interests as directors and officers of other companies. The resolution of such conflicts is 
governed by applicable corporate laws, which require that directors act honestly, in good faith and with a view to the 
best interests of the Company. Conflicts, if any, will be handled in a manner consistent with the procedures and 
remedies set forth in the ABCA. The ABCA provides that in the event that a director has an interest in a contract or 
proposed contract or agreement, the director shall disclose his interest in such contract or agreement and shall refrain 
from voting on any matter in respect of such contract or agreement unless otherwise provided by the ABCA. 
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Advisory Committee 

The Company has assembled an advisory committee to the Board (the “Advisory Committee”), consisting 
of individuals with wide ranging oil and gas exploration development experience and a track record of successful 
discoveries in South America. The Advisory Committee is available to provide advice to the Board and management 
of the Company on an as-needed basis with the objective of helping guide the Company’s oil and gas exploration 
and development efforts. The following are brief profiles of the members of the Advisory Committee: 

Luis Christiansen 

Mr. Christiansen is an Electrical Engineer and is currently the Chairman of the board of directors of 
SwedenCo. Mr. Christiansen served as the Chief Financial Officer of Inelectra from 1982 to 2002 and he has served 
on over 30 boards of directors including Inelectra and VenezuelaCo. Mr. Christiansen received his Electrical 
Engineering degree from the Central University of Venezuela in 1962.   

Rubén Halfen 

Mr. Halfen is an Electrical Engineer by training and was a member of the founding group of Inelectra in 
1968.   Very early in his career he also became a developer of major commercial and housing projects.   Mr. Halfen 
is an entrepreneur by nature and incorporates various business aspects in his work. He has significant experience in 
identifying upcoming business trends and growth opportunities in various industry sectors.   In addition, he has 
served on the board of directors of numerous public and private companies.   

COMPENSATION OF EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND DIRECTORS 

The following discussion describes the significant elements of the Company’s executive compensation 
program, with particular emphasis on the process for determining compensation payable to the President and Chief 
Executive Officer, the Chief Financial Officer, and each of the three most highly compensated executive officers 
other than the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer (collectively, the “Named Executive 
Officers” or “NEOs”). The NEOs, based on anticipated compensation levels, are as follows: 

Antonio Vincentelli, President and Chief Executive Officer;  

Stelvio Di Cecco, Chief Financial Officer;  

José Paz, Vice President, Operations; and 

Eugenio Ochoa, Vice President, Exploration and Production. 

The description contained herein represents the expectations of management with respect to the Company’s 
executive compensation program following the completion of the Offering. However, it is anticipated that following 
the Closing, the Compensation Committee of the Board (the “Compensation Committee”) will meet with 
management to review the Company’s executive compensation program and, if deemed appropriate, will make 
further recommendations to the Board regarding changes to the program in light of the Company’s status as a public 
company and other relevant factors.  

Compensation Discussion and Analysis  

General 

Based on recommendations made by the Compensation Committee, the Board will make decisions 
regarding salaries, annual bonuses and equity incentive compensation for the executive officers, and will approve 
corporate goals and objectives relevant to the compensation of the Chief Executive Officer and the other executive 
officers. The Board will solicit input from the Chief Executive Officer and the Compensation Committee regarding 
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the performance of the Company’s other executive officers. Finally, the Board will also administer the incentive 
compensation and benefit plans with the assistance of the Compensation Committee. 

Compensation Objectives and Principles 

The Board recognizes that the Company’s success depends greatly on its ability to attract, retain and 
motivate superior performing employees at all levels, which can only occur if the Company has an appropriately 
structured and executed compensation program. The Company’s compensation policies will be founded on the 
principle that executive and employee compensation should be consistent with shareholders’ interests and the 
Company’s compensation plans are therefore intended to encourage decisions and actions that will result in the 
Company’s growth and in the creation of long-term shareholder value. In determining the compensation to be paid 
to the NEOs, the Compensation Committee will take into account corporate achievements, comparative market data 
and information supplied by management of the Company. 

The principal objectives of the Company’s executive compensation program are expected to be as follows: 

to attract and retain qualified executive officers; 

to have a compensation package that is competitive within the marketplace; 

to align the executives’ interests with those of the Company’s shareholders; and 

to reward the demonstration of both leadership and performance. 

The Compensation Committee’s objective will be to ensure the compensation of the NEOs provides a 
competitive package that reflects both base expectations to attract and retain the appropriate level of individuals, as 
well as provide a link between discretionary short and long-term incentives with short and long-term corporate 
goals. The compensation package will be designed to reward performance based on the achievement of performance 
goals and objectives and to be competitive with comparable companies in the market in which the Company 
competes for talent. 

Components of Compensation 

The following components are currently intended to comprise the compensation package for NEOs 
following completion of the Offering: base salary; annual short-term incentives; and participation in the Company’s 
long-term compensation plan, namely the Option Plan. All salary increases, cash bonuses and stock-based 
compensation for the NEOs will be reviewed and approved by the Compensation Committee. For purposes of 
annual salary adjustments and bonuses, the Company expects to use a January to December cycle. 

Base Salary

The base salary of each NEO was negotiated by management and the Board of the Company and reflects 
the complexity of their role in addition to the amount of industry experience they possess. Salaries will be reviewed 
annually and compared to industry peers through publicly available documents and available compensation surveys 
prepared by compensation consultants. Consideration will be given to the growth plans of the Company and the 
objective to attract and retain highly talented individuals from the industry. 

The industry peers that were evaluated by the Company in determining base salary are comprised of 
companies operating in the oil exploration and development industry and are based principally in Colombia. 

Annual Short-Term Incentive Compensation

Annual short-term incentive compensation will provide for annual cash awards, which are intended to 
motivate and reward NEOs for achieving and surpassing annual corporate and individual goals. The amount of the 
cash award or “bonus” will be determined by reference to a target percentage of base salary. Bonus awards for the 
NEOs, excluding the Chief Executive Officer, will be recommended by the Chief Executive Officer and reviewed 



57

and approved by the Compensation Committee. Bonus awards for the Chief Executive Officer will be determined 
solely by the Compensation Committee. Peer performance and practices will also be considered each year in 
determining the final amounts to be awarded. 

Long-Term Compensation

The Company’s long-term compensation plan will initially be comprised of the Option Plan, which is 
intended to encourage participants to focus on creating and improving the Company’s long-term financial success by 
providing participants an opportunity to increase their ownership interests in the Company. The purpose of the long-
term compensation plans is to align shareholder and management interests.  Options grants will be based on 
individual performance and the number of outstanding options will be taken into consideration when granting new 
options.  Implementation of any new incentive plans and amendments to the Option Plan will be the responsibility of 
the Board with assistance from the Compensation Committee. 

Anticipated Compensation of Named Executive Officers 

Based on the information available at the date hereof, the following table sets forth information concerning 
the anticipated compensation that will be paid to the NEOs following the completion of the Offering: 

Name and Position Annual Base Salary 
Antonio Vincentelli
President and Chief Executive Officer 

$340,000

Stelvio Di Cecco 
Chief Financial Officer 

$250,000

José Paz 
Vice President, Operations 

$200,000

Eugenio Ochoa 
Vice President, Exploration and Production 

$200,000

In addition, it is expected that the NEOs will receive annual short-term incentives in the form of bonuses 
and will be granted Options, each as described in more detail under the heading “– Compensation Discussion and 
Analysis – Components of Compensation”. The Company expects that the Board will authorize the issuance of 
approximately 700,000 Options to Mr. Vincentelli,  350,000 Options to Mr. Di Cecco, 260,000 Options to Mr. Paz 
and 260,000 Options to Mr. Ochoa, in addition to other Options to be granted to the directors, employees and 
consultants of the Company, prior to Closing. The Options will have an exercise price equal to the Offering Price. 
See “Options and Warrants to Purchase Securities”.  

Termination and Change of Control Benefits 

Antonio Vincentelli, the President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, has entered into an 
executive employment agreement with the Company (the “CEO Executive Employment Contract”). It is 
anticipated that prior to the completion of the Offering, each of Messrs. Di Cecco, Paz and Ochoa will enter into an 
executive employment contract with Cayman Opco (the “NEO Executive Employment Contracts”). The terms of 
the Executive Employment Contracts are expected to be substantially similar and are summarized below. 

Each Executive Employment Contract will provide for a severance payment to be made to each of the 
Named Executive Officers in the event that (a) his employment with the Employer is terminated without cause, or 
(b) there is a “change of control” (as such term is defined in the Executive Employment Contract). In the event of a 
termination of the Named Executive Officer by the Employer without cause, the Employer will be entitled to 
terminate the Named Executive Officer’s employment by providing the Named Executive Officer with a written 
notice to that effect and a lump sum payment (the “Termination Payment”) equal to a multiplication of the Named 
Executive Officer’s base salary based on the Named Executive Officer’s length of service, plus an additional 10% 
gross up of this amount for lost benefits. The Termination Payment will be determined as follows: 
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(i) three (3) to six (6) months’ base salary depending on the Named Executive Officer if the Named 
Executive Officer has less than one (1) year of continuous service with the Employer from the date 
of execution of the Executive Employment Contract;  

(ii) four (4) to nine (9) months’ base salary depending on the Named Executive Officer if the Named 
Executive Officer has more than one (1) year of continuous service but less than two (2) years of 
continuous service from the date of execution of the Executive Employment Contract; or 

(iii) six (6) to twelve (12) months’ base salary depending on the Named Executive Officer if the 
Named Executive Officer has two (2) or more years of continuous service from the date of 
execution of the Executive Employment Contract. 

In the event of a change of control of the Employer or the Company, the Named Executive Officer will 
have the right, within a period of sixty (60) days following the occurrence of a change of control, to elect to 
terminate the Named Executive Officer’s employment with the Employer by providing written notice to the 
Employer and the Named Executive Officer will be entitled to receive a lump sum payment equal to the Termination 
Payment upon a termination without cause.  

In the event that the Named Executive Officer terminates his Executive Employment Contract, the Named 
Executive Officer shall provide thirty (30) days notice of his intent to terminate his employment (the “Resignation 
Notice”) and continue to perform all of the Named Executive Officer’s usual workplace duties up to the Resignation 
Notice date, unless expressly excused by the Employer from such duties, in which case the Employer shall continue 
to pay the Named Executive Officer the base salary that the Named Executive Officer would otherwise have earned 
during the Resignation Notice period. 

In the event that the Executive Employment Contract is terminated as a result of the death of the Named 
Executive Officer, the Employer will pay to the Named Executive Officer’s spouse or legal representative an 
amount equal to all accrued but unpaid base salary up to the date of the Named Executive Officer’s death, all 
accrued but unpaid vacation pay up to the date of the Named Executive Officer’s death, all business expenses 
properly incurred up to the date of termination, and a lump sum payment equal to two (2) months’ base salary. 

The Executive Employment Contract may also be terminated where the Named Executive Officer’s mental 
or physical state becomes such that he is to a substantial degree unable to fulfill his obligations as an employee for 
either a consecutive four (4) month period or for any period of six (6) months (whether or not consecutive) in any 
consecutive twelve (12) month period. In such a circumstance, the Employer may terminate the Named Executive 
Officer’s Executive Employment Agreement on thirty (30) days notice and, upon such termination, the Named 
Executive Officer will be entitled to an amount equal to one-quarter of the Named Executive Officer’s annual base 
salary and any portion of the Named Executive Officer’s base salary and vacation pay owing up to the date of 
termination. In addition, the Named Executive Officer will be entitled to any eligible bonus payments which shall be 
pro-rated and calculated based on time worked. 

The Employer may terminate the Named Executive Officer’s Executive Employment Agreement at any 
time for just cause. In such a circumstance, the Named Executive Officer will be entitled to an amount equal to any 
portion of his base salary due and owing up to the date of termination, all expenses properly incurred up to the date 
of termination and any accrued but unused vacation pay. 

Anticipated Director Compensation 

Following completion of the Offering, the Company intends to pay each of its directors, other than Messrs. 
Vincentelli and Di Cecco, each of whom is an executive officer of the Company and will receive no additional 
compensation for his role as a director, an annual retainer of $50,000. 

The Company expects that it will issue 350,000 Options to each of the directors immediately prior to the 
Closing of the Offering, with an exercise price equal to the Offering Price. See “Options and Warrants to Purchase 
Securities”.  
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Long-Term Incentive Plans – The Option Plan 

The Option Plan provides that the Board may from time to time, in its discretion, and in accordance with 
the requirements of the TSX-V, grant to directors, officers, employees and consultants to the Company or its 
subsidiaries, non-transferable Options to purchase Common Shares, provided that the number of Common Shares 
reserved for issuance will not exceed 10% of the issued and outstanding Common Shares.  Such Options will be 
exercisable for a period of up to 5 years from the date of grant. In connection with the foregoing, the number of 
Common Shares reserved for issuance to any individual participant will not exceed 5% of the issued and outstanding 
Common Shares and the number of Common Shares reserved for issuance to all consultants will not exceed 2% of 
the issued and outstanding Common Shares. 

The Option Plan provides that upon the participant’s death, such participant’s vested Options may be 
exercised to purchase the total number of Common Shares not previously purchased by the participant, provided 
such exercise occurs prior to the earlier of the expiry date of the Options and one year after the participant’s death.  
If a participant ceases to be a participant due to termination for cause, no Options held by such participant may be 
exercised following the date on which the participant was terminated. If a participant ceases to be a participant for 
any reason other than termination for cause or death, Options held by such participant may be exercised only for a 
period of up to 30 days after the date on which such participant ceases to be a participant or such longer period as 
determined by the Board of Directors and contained in the applicable option agreement, provided that any such 
longer period shall not exceed 90 days after the participant ceases to be a participant. If a participant who is an 
“Eligible Consultant” (as such term is defined under the Option Plan) ceases to be a participant by virtue of a breach 
of the applicable consulting agreement or the expiry thereof, no Options held by such participant may be exercised 
by such participant following such breach, expiry or termination, as the case may be.  

The exercise price of the Options granted under the Option Plan will be determined from time to time by 
the Board but, in any event, shall not be lower than the closing price of the Common Shares on the stock exchange 
on which the Common Shares are then trading. In addition, the Board may determine when an Option will become 
exercisable and may determine that the Options will be exercisable in instalments or pursuant to a vesting schedule.  

Pursuant to the policies of the TSX-V, stock option plans which reserve for issuance up to 10% of a listed 
corporation’s shares must be approved annually by the shareholders of the listed corporation.  

The Company expects that the Board will authorize the issuance of approximately 1,050,000 Options to the 
directors of the Company (excluding executive officers), approximately 1,570,000 Options to the executive officers 
of the Company, approximately 300,000 Options to the officers of subsidiaries of the Company and approximately 
2,210,000 Options to other employees and consultants of the Company and its subsidiaries shortly prior to Closing. 
The Options will have an exercise price equal to the Offering Price. See “Options and Warrants to Purchase 
Securities”.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE 

Corporate Governance 

In establishing its corporate governance practices, the Board has been guided by applicable Canadian 
securities legislation and the guidelines of the TSX-V for effective corporate governance, including NP 58-201. The 
Board is committed to a high standard of corporate governance practices. The Board believes that this commitment 
is not only in the best interests of its shareholders, but that it also promotes effective decision making at the Board 
level. 

Board of Directors 

The Board has overall responsibility for the business and affairs of the Company. The Board has adopted a 
written mandate that summarizes, among other things, the Board’s duties and responsibilities. 
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The Board is currently comprised of five directors, of which a majority are considered to be “independent” 
by the Board of Directors. Subject to certain exceptions, a director is “independent” within the meaning of NI 58-
101 if he or she has no direct or indirect material relationship with the Company. A “material relationship” is a 
relationship that could, in the view of the Board, be reasonably expected to interfere with the exercise of a director’s 
independent judgment. Anthony Lambert and Judith Stripling are considered to be “independent” within the 
meaning of NI 58-101. Ricardo Halfen is not considered to be “independent” within the meaning of NI 58-101 as he 
received more than $75,000 in direct compensation from the Company in the 12 month period prior to the date of 
this prospectus. However, the Board of Directors has determined that the receipt of such compensation is not 
reasonably expected to interfere with the exercise of Mr. Halfen’s independent judgment. Antonio Vincentelli and 
Stelvio Di Cecco are not considered to be “independent” as each is an executive officer of the Company.  

The Board facilitates its exercise of independent supervision over management by approving all significant 
decisions that affect the Company before they are implemented. The Board is actively involved in PetroNova’s 
strategic planning process and discusses and reviews all materials relating to strategic and operating plans with 
management. Management must seek the Board’s approval for any transaction that would have a significant impact 
on the strategic plan.  In addition, it is contemplated that following completion of the Offering, the directors will 
hold “in-camera” sessions of the independent directors without management present at each regularly scheduled 
meeting of the Board, if required, and in any event, not less than 4 times a year. 

Directorships 

The following table identifies those persons who are members of the Board who are presently directors of 
other issuers that are reporting issuers (or the equivalent) in a jurisdiction or a foreign jurisdiction: 

Director Reporting Issuer Stock Exchange 
Stelvio Di Cecco Inelectra S.A.C.A. N/A 

Ricardo Halfen Inelectra S.A.C.A. N/A

Anthony Lambert Daylight Energy Ltd. 
Pace Oil & Gas Ltd. 
Tamarack Valley Energy Ltd. 

TSX 
TSX 
TSX-V

Orientation and Continuing Education 

Given its early stage of development, PetroNova does not currently have any formal orientation and 
education programs. It is anticipated that any new members of the Board will receive an orientation package which 
includes reports and results on operations, a manual containing the policies of the Company and copies of all 
material public disclosure filings.  

Ethical Business Conduct 

The Board has found that the fiduciary duties placed on individual directors pursuant to corporate 
legislation and the common law, and the conflict of interest provisions under corporate legislation which restricts an 
individual director’s participation in decisions of the Board in which the director has an interest, have been sufficient 
to ensure that the Board operates independently of management and in the best interests of the Company. 

Additionally, in order to encourage and promote a culture of ethical business conduct, the Board has 
adopted a Code of Business Conduct and Ethics (the “Code”) and a “Whistleblower Policy” wherein directors, 
officers and employees of the Company and others are provided with a mechanism by which they can raise 
complaints regarding financial and regulatory reporting, internal accounting controls, auditing or health, safety and 
environmental matters or any other matters and raise concerns about any violations of the Code in a confidential 
and, if deemed necessary, anonymous process. 
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Nomination of Directors 

The Board is responsible for approving directors for nomination and election and filling vacancies among 
the directors. In connection with the nomination or appointment of individuals as directors, the Board will consider 
the competencies and skills required by the Board, the competencies and skills of the existing directors and the 
appropriate size of the Board. 

Compensation of Directors and Officers 

The Board has established a Compensation Committee which consists of Ricardo Halfen (Chair), Anthony 
Lambert and Judith Stripling, all of whom are considered to be “independent” by the Board of Directors. Anthony 
Lambert and Judith Stripling are considered to be “independent” within the meaning of NI 58-101. Ricardo Halfen 
is not considered to be “independent” within the meaning of NI 58-101 as he received more than $75,000 in direct 
compensation from the Company in the 12 month period prior to the date of this prospectus. However, the Board of 
Directors has determined that the receipt of such compensation is not reasonably expected to interfere with the 
exercise of Mr. Halfen’s independent judgment.  

The Compensation Committee will be responsible for reviewing and approving corporate goals and 
objectives relevant to Chief Executive Officer and director performance and evaluate performance to determine 
compensation. The Compensation Committee will also make recommendations to the Board regarding 
compensation including incentive and equity-based compensation plans and review director and executive officer 
compensation disclosure prior to public disclosure. See “Compensation of Executive Officers and Directors –
Compensation Discussion and Analysis” for further information regarding the role of the Compensation Committee. 

Further particulars of the process by which compensation for the Company’s directors and officers is 
determined can be found under the heading “Compensation of Executive Officers and Directors”. 

Other Board Committees  

The Board has established a Reserves Committee (the “Reserves Committee”) which consists of Antonio 
Vincentelli (Chair), Anthony Lambert and Judith Stripling, a majority of whom are considered to be “independent” 
by the Board of Directors. Anthony Lambert and Judith Stripling are considered to be “independent” within the 
meaning of NI 58-101. Antonio Vincentelli is not considered to be “independent” within the meaning of NI 58-101 
as he is an executive officer of the Company. 

The purpose of the Reserves Committee is to assist the Board in the discharge of the Board’s duties with 
respect to complying with the requirements contained in NI 51-101.  This includes: (a) review, with reasonable 
frequency, the Company’s procedures relating to the disclosure of information with respect to oil and gas activities; 
(b) review the appointment of the Independent Evaluator under NI 51-101 or any change in such appointment; (c) 
review the Company’s procedures for providing information to the Independent Evaluator with respect to the 
reserves data (oil and gas reserves and associated future net revenues) of the Company that will be made publicly 
available and filed with the applicable regulatory authorities; (d) meet with management and the Independent 
Evaluator to: (i) determine whether any restrictions affect the ability of the Independent Evaluator to report on the 
reserves data without reservation; and (ii) review the reserves data and the report of the Independent Evaluator; (e) 
review the annual filings required by NI 51-101 and recommend approval of the contents and the filing of the annual 
filings to the Board; and (f) review all disclosure made by or on behalf of the Company, that the Company knows or 
ought reasonably to know, is or will become available to the public and any document filed with a securities 
authority to ensure compliance with NI 51-101. 

Assessments

The Board is responsible for assessing the effectiveness of the Board and its committees. The Board and its 
committees will be assessed with reference to their respective mandates or charters, while individual directors will 
be assessed with reference to any applicable position descriptions, as well as the competencies and skills that each 
individual director is expected to bring to the Board. 
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Audit Committee 

Audit Committee Mandate 

The Audit Committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) is a committee of the Board established 
for the purpose of overseeing the accounting and financial reporting process of the Company and annual external 
audits of the consolidated financial statements.  The Audit Committee has set out, in a written mandate, its 
responsibilities and composition requirements in fulfilling its oversight in relation to the Company’s internal 
accounting standards and practices, financial information, accounting systems and procedures.  A copy of the 
mandate of the Audit Committee is attached to this prospectus as Appendix “A”. 

Composition of the Audit Committee and Relevant Education and Experience 

The Audit Committee consists of Judith Stripling (Chair), Ricardo Halfen and Anthony Lambert, each of 
whom is considered “financially literate” within the meaning of NI 52-110. Anthony Lambert and Judith Stripling 
are considered to be “independent” within the meaning of NI 52-110. Ricardo Halfen is not considered to be 
“independent” within the meaning of NI 52-110 as he received more than $75,000 in direct compensation from the 
Company in the 12 month period prior to the date of this prospectus. However, the Board of Directors has 
determined that the receipt of such compensation is not reasonably expected to interfere with the exercise of Mr. 
Halfen’s independent judgment.  

The Company believes that each of the members of the Audit Committee possess: (a) an understanding of 
the accounting principles used by the Company to prepare its financial statements; (b) the ability to assess the 
general application of such accounting principles in connection with the accounting for estimates, accruals and 
reserves; (c) experience preparing, auditing, analyzing or evaluating financial statements that present a breadth and 
level of complexity of accounting issues that are generally comparable to the breadth and complexity of issues that 
can reasonably be expected to be raised by the Company’s financial statements, or experience actively supervising 
one or more individuals engaged in such activities; and (d) an understanding of internal controls and procedures for 
financial reporting. For a summary of the education and experience of each member of the Audit Committee that is 
relevant to the performance of his responsibilities as a member of the Audit Committee, see “Executive Officers and 
Directors — Biographies”. 

Pre-Approval Polices and Procedures for the Engagement of Non-Audit Services 

The Audit Committee is expected to adopt specific policies and procedures for the engagement of non-audit 
services, as described in the proposed mandate of the Audit Committee. 

External Audit Service Fees 

The Company and its subsidiaries did not pay or incur any external auditor fees for the financial years 
ended December 31, 2009 and 2008.  

Reliance on Certain Exemptions 

As a “venture issuer” (as such term is defined under NI 51-102), the Company is relying upon the 
exemption provided for in section 6.1 of NI 52-110. 

INDEBTEDNESS OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

The Company is not aware of any individuals who are either current or former executive officers, directors 
or employees of the Company or any of its subsidiaries and who have indebtedness outstanding as at the date hereof 
(whether entered into in connection with the purchase of securities of the Company or otherwise) that is owing to: (i) 
the Company or any of its subsidiaries, or (ii) another entity where such indebtedness is the subject of a guarantee, 
support agreement, letter of credit or other similar arrangement or understanding provided by the Company or any of 
its subsidiaries. 
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Except for: (i) indebtedness that has been entirely repaid on or before the date of this prospectus, and (ii) 
“routine indebtedness” (as defined in Form 51-102F5 of the Canadian Securities Administrators), the Company is 
not aware of any individuals who are, or who at any time during 2009 were, a director or executive officer of the 
Company, a proposed nominee for election as a director or an associate of any of those directors, executive officers 
or proposed nominees who are, or have been at any time since January 1,2009, indebted to the Company or any of 
its subsidiaries, or whose indebtedness to another entity is, or at any time since January 1,2009 has been, the subject 
of a guarantee, support agreement, letter of credit or other similar arrangement or understanding provided by the 
Company or any of its subsidiaries. 

PRINCIPAL SECURITYHOLDERS 

To the knowledge of the Company, no person or entity beneficially owned, or had control or direction over, 
10% or more of the outstanding Common Shares of the Company as of the date of this prospectus other than IIL.  As 
of the date of this prospectus, IIL beneficially owned, or had control or direction over, 22,650,000 Common Shares, 
representing 20.1% of the issued and outstanding Common Shares.   

After giving effect to the Offering, assuming that IIL does not purchase any of the Offered Shares, it is 
expected that IIL will beneficially own, or control or direct, directly or indirectly, 13.7% of the issued and 
outstanding Common Shares.  The Company has been advised that IIL does not anticipate participating in the 
Offering.  

CERTAIN CANADIAN FEDERAL INCOME TAX CONSIDERATIONS 

In the opinion of Borden Ladner Gervais LLP, counsel to the Company, and McCarthy Tétrault LLP, 
counsel to the Agents, the following is a general summary, as of the date hereof, of the principal Canadian federal 
income tax considerations under the Tax Act generally applicable to a holder who acquires Common Shares 
pursuant to the Offering and who, for the purposes of the Tax Act and at all relevant times, beneficially owns 
Common Shares as capital property, and deals at arm’s length with, and is not affiliated with, the Company (a 
“Holder”). The Common Shares will generally be considered to be capital property for this purpose unless either the 
Holder holds (or will hold) such Common Shares in the course of carrying on a business, or the Holder has acquired 
(or will acquire) such Common Shares in a transaction or transactions considered to be an adventure or concern in 
the nature of trade. 

This summary is not applicable to: (a) a Holder that is a “financial institution”, as defined in the Tax Act 
for purposes of the mark-to-market rules; (b) a Holder, an interest in which would be a “tax shelter investment” as 
defined in the Tax Act; (c) a Holder that is a “specified financial institution” as defined in the Tax Act; (d) a Holder 
that is a partnership or a trust; (e) a Holder that is a corporation that has elected in the prescribed form and manner 
and has otherwise met the requirements to use functional currency tax reporting as set out in the Tax Act; or (f) a 
holder which is exempt from tax under Part I of the Tax Act. Any such Holder to which this summary does not 
apply should consult its own tax advisor. 

This summary is based upon the current provisions of the Tax Act and counsel’s understanding of the 
current published administrative and assessing policies and practices of the Canada Revenue Agency. The summary 
also takes into account all specific proposals to amend the Tax Act that have been publicly announced by or on 
behalf of the Minister of Finance (Canada) prior to the date hereof (the “Tax Proposals”), and assumes that all such 
Tax Proposals will be enacted in the form proposed. No assurance can be given that the Tax Proposals will be 
enacted in the form proposed or at all. This summary does not otherwise take into account or anticipate any changes 
in law, whether by way of legislative, judicial or administrative action or interpretation, nor does it address any 
provincial, territorial or foreign tax considerations, which may be materially different from those described herein. 

This summary is of a general nature only and is not intended to be, nor should it be construed to be, 
legal or tax advice to any particular Holder. Accordingly, Holders are urged to consult their own tax advisors 
about the specific tax consequences to them of acquiring, holding and disposing of Common Shares. 
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Holders Resident in Canada 

The following discussion applies to Holders who, for the purposes of the Tax Act and any applicable 
income tax treaty or convention, and at all relevant times, are resident in Canada (“Resident Holders”). Certain 
Resident Holders whose Common Shares might not otherwise qualify as capital property may, in certain 
circumstances, make an irrevocable election pursuant to subsection 39(4) of the Tax Act such that the Common 
Shares and every “Canadian security” (as defined in the Tax Act) owned by the Resident Holder in the taxation year 
of the election and in all subsequent taxation years are deemed to be capital property. Resident Holders should 
consult their own tax advisors concerning this election. 

Dividends on Common Shares 

Dividends received or deemed to be received on the Common Shares by a Resident Holder who is an 
individual (other than certain trusts) will be included in income and will be subject to the gross-up and dividend tax 
credit rules normally applicable under the Tax Act to taxable dividends received from taxable Canadian 
corporations. The Company may, upon notice to its shareholders, designate all or a portion of such dividends as 
“eligible dividends” that are entitled to the enhanced dividend tax credit. The amount of the dividend received by an 
individual but not the amount of the gross-up, may be subject to alternative minimum tax. 

Dividends received or deemed to be received on Common Shares by a Resident Holder that is a corporation 
will be included in its income and will generally also be deductible in computing its taxable income. A Resident 
Holder that is a “private corporation” or a “subject corporation”, each as defined in the Tax Act, may be liable under 
Part IV of the Tax Act to pay a refundable tax at a rate of 33 % on dividends received or deemed to be received on 
Common Shares to the extent such dividends are deductible in computing the Resident Holder’s taxable income.  

Dispositions of Common Shares 

A disposition, or a deemed disposition, of a Common Share (other than to the Company unless purchased 
by the Company in the open market in the manner in which shares are normally purchased by any member of the 
public in the open market) by a Resident Holder will generally give rise to a capital gain (or a capital loss) equal to 
the amount by which the proceeds of disposition of the Common Share, net of any reasonable costs of disposition, 
exceed (or are less than) the adjusted cost base of the Common Share to the Resident Holder. For this purpose, the 
adjusted cost base to a Resident Holder of a Common Share will be determined at any time by averaging the cost of 
such Common Share with the adjusted cost base of any other Common Shares owned by the holder as capital 
property at that time. Such capital gain (or capital loss) will be subject to the treatment described below under 
“Taxation of Capital Gains and Capital Losses”. 

Refundable Tax 

A Resident Holder that is throughout the year a “Canadian-controlled private corporation” (as defined in 
the Tax Act) may be liable to pay a refundable tax at a rate of 6 % on certain investment income, including taxable 
capital gains (as defined below), but excluding dividends or deemed dividends deductible in computing taxable 
income. 

Taxation of Capital Gains and Capital Losses 

Generally, one-half of any capital gain (a “taxable capital gain”) realized by a Resident Holder for a 
taxation year must be included in the Resident Holder’s income in the year. A Resident Holder is required to deduct 
one-half of any capital loss (an “allowable capital loss”) realized in the year from taxable capital gains realized in 
that year, and allowable capital losses in excess of taxable capital gains may be carried back and deducted in any of 
the three preceding taxation years, or in any subsequent year, from net taxable capital gains realized in such years 
(but not against other income) to the extent and under the circumstances described in the Tax Act. If the Resident 
Holder is a corporation, any such capital loss realized on the sale of a Common Share may in certain circumstances 
be reduced by the amount of any dividends which have been received or which are deemed to have been received on 
the Common Share. Similar rules may apply where a corporation is a member of a partnership or a beneficiary of a 
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trust that owns shares, directly or indirectly, through a partnership or a trust. Taxable capital gains realized by a 
Resident Holder who is an individual may give rise to alternative minimum tax depending on the Resident Holder’s 
circumstances. 

Non-Resident Holders 

The following discussion applies to a Holder who, for the purposes of the Tax Act and any applicable 
income tax treaty or convention, and at all relevant times, is not (and is not deemed to be) resident in Canada and 
will not use or hold (and will not be deemed to use or hold) the Common Shares in, or in the course of, carrying on a 
business or part of a business in Canada (a “Non-Resident Holder”). In addition, certain rules not discussed in this 
summary may apply to a non-resident insurer carrying on an insurance business in Canada and elsewhere; such 
insurers should consult their own tax advisors. 

Dividends on Common Shares 

Canadian withholding tax at a rate of 25% (subject to reduction under the provisions of any applicable 
income tax treaty or convention) will be payable on dividends paid or credited, or deemed to be paid or credited on 
the Common Shares, to a Non-Resident Holder. The rate of withholding tax applicable to a dividend paid on the 
Common Shares to a Non-Resident Holder who is a resident of the U.S. for purposes of the Canada-United States. 
Income Tax Convention (1980) (the “Convention”), beneficially owns the dividend and qualifies for the benefits of 
the Convention will generally be reduced to 15% or, if the Non-Resident Holder is a corporation that owns at least 
10% of the voting stock of the Company, to 5%. Not all persons who are residents of the U.S. for purposes of the 
Convention will qualify for the benefits of the Convention. A Non-Resident Holder who is a resident of the U.S. is 
advised to consult its tax advisor in this regard. The rate of withholding tax on dividends is also reduced under 
certain other bilateral income tax treaties or conventions to which Canada is a signatory. 

Dispositions of Common Shares 

A Non-Resident Holder will not be subject to tax under the Tax Act in respect of any capital gain realized 
by such Non-Resident Holder on a disposition of Common Shares unless the Common Shares constitute “taxable 
Canadian property” (as defined in the Tax Act) of the Non-Resident Holder at the time of disposition and the holder 
is not entitled to relief under an income tax treaty or convention. As long as the Common Shares are listed on a 
“designated stock exchange”, which currently includes the TSX-V, the Common Shares generally will not constitute 
taxable Canadian property of a Non-Resident Holder, unless, if at any time during the 60-month period immediately 
preceding the disposition, the Non-Resident Holder, persons with whom the Non-Resident Holder does not deal at 
arm’s length, or the Non-Resident Holder together with all such persons, owned 25% or more of the issued shares of 
any class or series of shares in the capital stock of the Company and at any time during such 60-month period the 
Common Shares derived (directly or indirectly) more than 50% of their fair market value from real or immovable 
property situated in Canada, Canadian resource properties, timber resource properties or options or interests in 
respect of any such property, all for the purposes of the Tax Act. 

If the Common Shares are considered taxable Canadian property to a Non-Resident Holder, an applicable 
income tax treaty or convention may exempt that Non-Resident Holder from tax under the Tax Act in respect of 
their disposition. Non-Resident Holders whose Common Shares may constitute taxable Canadian property should 
consult their own tax advisors. 

ELIGIBILITY FOR INVESTMENT 

In the opinion of Borden Ladner Gervais LLP, counsel to the Company, and McCarthy Tétrault LLP, 
counsel to the Agents, on the Closing Date, provided that the Common Shares are listed on a designated stock 
exchange (which includes the TSX-V), the Common Shares will on that date be a qualified investment under the 
Tax Act for trusts governed by registered retirement savings plans, registered retirement income funds, registered 
disability savings plans, deferred profit sharing plans, registered education savings plans and tax-free savings 
accounts as defined in the Tax Act. 
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Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the Common Shares are “prohibited investments” for purposes of the Tax 
Act, a holder will be subject to a penalty tax on Common Shares held in a tax-free savings account as set out in the 
Tax Act. A Common Share will generally not be a prohibited investment for a trust governed by at tax-free savings 
account held by a particular holder provided that the holder deals at arm’s length with the Company for purposes of 
the Tax Act, and does not have a “significant interest” (as defined in the Tax Act) in either the Company or a person 
or partnership that does not deal at arm’s length with the Company for the purposes of the Tax Act.  

Prospective purchasers who intend to hold Common Shares in their tax-free savings accounts should 
consult their own tax advisors regarding their particular circumstances. 

PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION 

Pursuant to the Agency Agreement, the Agents have agreed, subject to the terms and conditions contained 
therein, to offer, on a “commercially reasonable efforts” basis, 52,320,000 Offered Shares at the Offering Price for 
aggregate gross proceeds of Cdn$65,400,000.  In consideration of the services to be rendered by the Agents in 
connection with the Offering, the Company has agreed to pay the Agents the Agents’ Commission equal to 
Cdn$0.075 per Offered Share issued under the Offering, provided that the Agents will only receive a fee of 
Cdn$0.0375 per Offered Share in respect of subscriptions from Subscribers identified by the Company to the 
Agents. 

The obligations of the Agents are several and not joint under the Agency Agreement and may be terminated 
by the Agents at their discretion on the basis of their assessment of the state of the financial markets and may also be 
terminated upon the occurrence of certain stated events. The Agents are not obligated, directly or indirectly, to 
advance their own funds to purchase any of the Offered Shares. 

Subscriptions for Offered Shares will be received subject to rejection or allotment in whole or in part and 
the right is reserved to close the subscription books at any time without notice. Subscription funds received by the 
Agents will be held in trust by the Agents pending closing of the Offering and if the Offering has not been 
subscribed for or if the Offering does not occur within 90 days of the issuance of a receipt for the final prospectus, 
the funds will be returned to Subscribers without interest or deduction unless the Subscribers have otherwise 
instructed the Agents. Provided that the Offering has been achieved, it is expected that the Closing Date will occur 
on or about December 21, 2010, or such later date as the Company and the Agents may agree but in any event not 
later than January 15, 2011. 

The Offering is being made in each of the provinces of Canada, other than Québec. The Offered Shares will 
be offered in each of the provinces of Canada, other than Québec, through those Agents or their affiliates who are 
registered to offer the Common Shares for sale in such provinces and such other registered dealers as may be 
designated by the Agents. Subject to applicable laws, the Agents may offer the Offered Shares outside of Canada. 

The TSX-V has conditionally approved the listing of the Common Shares, subject to the Company 
fulfilling all of the listing requirements of the TSX-V. 

Prior to the Offering, there was no public market for the Common Shares. The Offering Price was 
determined by negotiation between the Company and the Lead Agent, on its own behalf and on behalf of the Agents. 
Among the factors considered in determining the Offering Price, were the Company’s future prospects and future 
prospects of the oil and gas industry in general, the Company’s financial information in recent periods, and the 
market prices of securities and financial and operating information of companies engaged in activities similar to the 
Company’s. 

Pursuant to the Agency Agreement, provided that the Offering has been completed, the Company has 
agreed, subject to certain specified exceptions, not to, without the consent of the Lead Agent (such consent not to be 
unreasonably withheld or delayed) issue, or announce any intention to issue, any Common Shares or any securities 
convertible into or exchangeable or exercisable for, Common Shares, for a period of 120 days following the Closing 
Date. The foregoing restrictions terminate after the close of trading of the Common Shares on the date that is 120 
days from the Closing Date.  
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The certificates representing the Offered Shares (other than the certificates representing Offered Shares 
sold pursuant to Regulation D under the U.S. Securities Act, which will be issued in individually certificated form) 
will be issued in book-entry only form and registered to CDS Clearing or its nominee and deposited with CDS on 
the same day. No certificates representing the Offered Shares will be issued to Subscribers (other than Subscribers 
who purchased Offered Shares pursuant to Regulation D under the U.S. Securities Act) and registration will be made 
through the depository services of CDS. Subject to the foregoing, holders of Offered Shares will receive only a 
customer confirmation from the Agents or other registered dealers who are CDS participants and from or through 
whom a beneficial interest in the Offered Shares is acquired.  

As at the date of the prospectus, the Company does not have any of its securities listed or quoted, has not 
applied to list or quote any of its securities, and does not intend to apply to list or quote any of its securities, on the 
TSX, a U.S. marketplace, or a marketplace outside of Canada and the United States of America. 

The Offered Shares have not been and will not be registered under the U.S. Securities Act, and, subject to 
certain exceptions, may not be offered or sold in the United States. The Agency Agreement permits the Agents to 
offer, through their U.S. registered broker-dealer affiliates, the Offered Shares to certain “accredited investors” (as 
such term is defined in Rule 501(a) of Regulation D under the U.S. Securities Act) in the United States, for sale 
directly by the Company in accordance with Rule 506 of Regulation D under the U.S. Securities Act and in 
compliance with applicable state securities laws. In addition, until 40 days after the commencement of the Offering, 
an offer or sale of Offered Shares within the United States by any dealer (whether or not participating in the 
Offering) may violate the registration requirements of the U.S. Securities Act if such offer or sale is made otherwise 
than in accordance with an exemption from the registration requirements of the U.S. Securities Act. 

RISK FACTORS 

An investment in Common Shares is speculative and involves a high degree of risk that should be 
considered by potential Subscribers. A potential Subscriber should carefully consider the following risk factors in 
addition to the other information contained in this prospectus before purchasing Common Shares. The risks and 
uncertainties below are not the only ones the Company is facing. There are additional risks and uncertainties that we 
do not presently know or that we currently consider immaterial which may also impair the Company’s business 
operations and cause the price of the Common Shares to decline.  

The following is a summary only of certain risk factors and is qualified in its entirety by reference to, and 
must be read in conjunction with, the detailed information appearing elsewhere in this prospectus. If any of the 
following risks actually occur, the Company’s business may be harmed and the Company’s financial condition and 
results of operations may suffer significantly. In that event, the trading price of the Common Shares could decline, 
and a Subscriber may lose all or part of his or her investment. 

Risks Related to the Company’s Business  

Exploration, Development and Production Risks 

Oil and natural gas operations involve many risks that even a combination of experience, knowledge and 
careful evaluation may not be able to overcome. The long-term commercial success of the Company depends on its 
ability to find, acquire, develop and commercially produce oil and natural gas reserves. No reserves have been 
assigned in connection with the Company’s interests given the early stage of development. The future value of the 
Company is therefore dependent on the success of the Company’s activities, which are directed toward the 
exploration, appraisal and development of its properties in Colombia. Exploration, appraisal and development of oil 
and natural gas properties is highly speculative and involves a significant degree of risk. Without the continual 
addition of new reserves, any existing reserves that the Company may discover or acquire at any particular time and 
the production therefrom will decline over time as such existing reserves are exploited. Any discovery of or future 
increase in the Company’s  reserves will depend not only on its ability to explore and develop any properties it may 
have from time to time, but also on its ability to select and acquire suitable producing properties or prospects. No 
assurance can be given that the Company will be able to continue to locate satisfactory properties for acquisition or 
participation. Moreover, if such acquisitions or participations are identified, the Company may determine that 
current markets, terms of acquisition and participation or pricing conditions make such acquisitions or participations 
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uneconomical. There is no assurance that commercial quantities of oil and natural gas will be discovered or acquired 
by the Company.  

Oil and natural gas exploration may involve unprofitable efforts, not only from dry wells, but from wells 
that are productive but do not produce sufficient revenues to return a profit after drilling, operating and other costs. 
Completion of a well does not assure a profit on the investment or recovery of drilling, completion and operating 
costs. In addition, fixing drilling hazards or environmental damage caused by operations could greatly increase the 
cost of those operations, and various field operating conditions may adversely affect the production from successful 
wells. These conditions include delays in obtaining governmental and other approvals or consents, insufficient 
storage or transportation capacity or other geological and mechanical conditions. While diligent well supervision 
and effective maintenance operations can contribute to maximizing production rates over time, production delays 
and declines from normal field operating conditions cannot be eliminated and can be expected to adversely affect 
revenue and cash flow levels to varying degrees. 

Early Stage of Development, Limited Operating and Earnings History 

The Company only recently commenced operations in Colombia and has no earnings history. Accordingly, 
the Company has no operating history in the oil and gas industry in Colombia and has no meaningful, historical 
financial information or record of performance. The Company’s business plan requires significant expenditure, 
particularly capital expenditure, in its oil and gas exploration phase. Any future profitability from the Company’s 
business will be dependent upon the successful exploration and development of the Company’s petroleum 
properties, and there can be no assurance that the Company will achieve profitability in the future. There are 
currently no known quantities of oil or natural gas reserves on the Company’s properties. Revenues, other than 
interest on unused funds, may not occur for some time, if at all. The timing and extent of such revenues is variable 
and uncertain and accordingly the Company is unable to predict when, if at all, profitability will be achieved. An 
investment in the Common Shares is highly speculative and should only be made by persons who can afford to risk 
a significant or total loss of their investment. 

Ability to Execute Exploration and Development Program 

It may not always be possible for the Company to execute its exploration and development strategies in the 
manner in which the Company considers optimal. The Company’s exploration and development programs in 
onshore Colombia involve the need to obtain certain approvals from the relevant authorities, which may require 
conditions to be satisfied or be contingent upon the exercise of discretion by the relevant authorities. It may not be 
possible for such conditions to be satisfied. 

Competition 

The oil and natural gas industry is intensely competitive. Competition is particularly intense in the 
acquisition of prospective oil and natural gas properties and oil and natural gas reserves. The Company’s 
competitive position depends on its geological, geophysical and engineering expertise, its financial resources, its 
ability to develop its properties and its ability to select, acquire and develop proved reserves. The Company 
competes with a substantial number of other companies having larger technical staffs and greater financial and 
operational resources. Many such companies not only engage in the acquisition, exploration, development and 
production of oil reserves, but also carry on refining operations and market refined products. The Company also 
competes with major and independent oil companies and other industries supplying energy and fuel in the marketing 
and sale of oil to transporters, distributors and end users, including industrial, commercial and individual consumers. 
The Company also competes with other oil companies in attempting to secure drilling rigs and other equipment 
necessary for drilling and completion of wells. Such equipment may be in short supply from time to time. In 
addition, equipment and other materials necessary to construct production and transmission facilities may be in short 
supply from time to time. Finally, companies not previously invested in oil may choose to acquire reserves to 
establish a firm supply or simply as an investment. Such companies may also provide competition for the Company. 
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Commodity Price Fluctuations 

Crude oil prices are unstable and are subject to fluctuation. Any material decline in prices could result in a 
reduction of the Company’s net production revenue and overall value and could result in ceiling test write downs. 
The economics of producing from some wells may change as a result of lower prices, which could result in a 
reduction in the volumes of the Company’s reserves. The Company might also elect not to produce from certain 
wells at lower prices. All of these factors could result in a material decrease in the Company’s net production 
revenue causing a reduction in its acquisition and development activities. A substantial material decline in prices 
from historical average prices could reduce the Company’s ability to borrow funds. 

Nature of the Business 

An investment in the Company should be considered speculative due to the nature of the Company’s 
involvement in the exploration for, and the acquisition, development and production of, crude oil in Colombia. Also, 
exploration and production operations involve many risks, which even a combination of experience and knowledge 
and careful evaluation may not be able to overcome. There is no assurance that further commercial quantities of 
crude oil will be discovered or acquired by the Company. 

Exploration and Development 

The exploration and development of crude oil deposits involve a number of uncertainties that even 
thorough evaluation, experience and knowledge of the industry cannot eliminate. It is impossible to guarantee that 
the exploration programs on the Company’s properties will generate economically recoverable reserves. The 
commercial viability of a new hydrocarbon pool is dependent upon a number of factors which are inherent to 
reserves, such as hydrocarbon composition, associated non-hydrocarbon fluids and proximity of infrastructure, as 
well as crude oil prices which are subject to considerable volatility, regulatory issues such as price regulation, taxes, 
royalties, land tax, import and export of crude oil, and environmental protection issues. The individual impact 
generated by these factors cannot be predicted with any certainty but, once combined, may result in non-economical 
reserves. The Company will remain subject to normal risks inherent to the crude oil industry such as unusual and 
unexpected geological changes in the parameters and variables of the petroleum system and operations. 

Operating Hazards and Risks 

Exploration for natural resources involves many risks, which even a combination of experience, knowledge 
and careful evaluation may not be able to overcome. Operations in which the Company has a direct or indirect 
interest will be subject to all the hazards and risks normally incidental to exploration, development and production 
of natural resources, including blow-outs, explosions, oil spills, cratering, pollution and natural disasters such as 
earthquakes. The occurrence of any such operating hazards could result in work stoppages, damage to persons, 
damage to or destruction of oil and natural gas wells, formations, facilities or other property and possible 
environmental damage. Although the Company may obtain liability insurance in an amount which is expected to be 
adequate, the nature of these risks is such that liabilities might exceed policy limits, the liabilities and hazards might 
not be insurable, or the Company might not elect to insure itself against such liabilities due to high premium costs or 
other reasons, in which event the Company could incur significant costs that could have a material adverse effect 
upon its financial condition. 

Disruptions in Production and Transportation 

Other factors affecting the production and sale of crude oil that could result in decreases in profitability 
include: (i) expiration or termination of leases, permits or licences, or sales price redeterminations or suspension of 
deliveries; (ii) future litigation; (iii) the timing and amount of insurance recoveries; (iv) work stoppages or other 
labour difficulties; (v) worker vacation schedules and related maintenance activities; (vi) limitations on access to 
pipeline capacity and (vii) changes in the market and general economic conditions. Weather conditions, equipment 
replacement or repair, fires, amounts of rock and other natural materials and other geological conditions can have a 
significant impact on operating results. Of particular concern has been the issue of access to pipeline capacity in the 
Llanos Basin. There have been disruptions to the Company’s production due to restricted pipeline capacity out of 
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the Llanos Basin in 2008 and 2009 and again for a few days in February 2010. In 2009, for much of the time the 
pipeline restriction was in effect, the Company was able to sell all of its production to Meta Petroleum, which 
required trucking the oil an additional 430 km. Another issue that affects the Company’s ability to produce and 
market crude oil arises from difficulty in accessing the Company’s properties during the rainy season in Colombia. 
Without all-weather roads, the Company’s properties in the Llanos Basin have only seasonal access due to heavy 
rains during the wet season of April through October. All of the Company’s producing properties have all-weather 
road access and locations constructed for year-round operation; however unusually severe rains could affect access 
to producing properties. There can be no assurance that this or similar issues may cause further disruptions to the 
Company’s ability to produce or sell crude oil in the future. 

Current Global Financial Conditions 

Current global financial conditions have been subject to increased volatility and numerous financial 
institutions have recently either gone into bankruptcy or have had to be rescued by governmental authorities. Access 
to financing has been negatively impacted by financial liquidity crises and the effect of these events on Canadian 
and global credit markets. These factors may impact the ability of the Company to obtain equity or debt financing in 
the future and, if obtained, on terms favourable to the Company. If these increased levels of volatility and market 
turmoil continue, the Company’s operations could be adversely impacted and the trading price of the Common 
Shares could continue to be adversely affected. 

Hedging Activities 

From time to time the Company may enter into agreements to receive fixed prices on its oil production to 
offset the risk of revenue losses if commodity prices decline; however, if commodity prices increase beyond the 
levels set in such agreements, the Company will not benefit from such increases. 

Financial Resources and Additional Funding Requirements 

The Company currently has limited financial resources and no cash flow from operations and therefore will 
likely require additional financing in order to carry out its oil and natural gas exploration, acquisition and 
development activities. There can be no assurance that additional funding will be available, or available under terms 
favourable to the Company. Failure to obtain such financing on a timely basis could cause the Company to have 
limited ability to expend the capital necessary to undertake or complete future drilling programs, forfeit its interest 
in certain properties, miss certain acquisition opportunities and reduce or terminate its operations. There can be no 
assurance that debt or equity financing or cash generated by operations will be available or sufficient to meet these 
requirements or for other corporate purposes or, if debt or equity financing is available, that it will be on terms 
acceptable to the Company. Moreover, future activities may require the Company to alter its capitalization 
significantly. Financing by issuing additional securities from the Company’s treasury may result in a change of 
control of the Company and dilution to holders of Common Shares. 

Foreign Currency and Fiscal Matters 

The Company’s operations and expenditures are to some extent paid in foreign currencies. As a result, the 
Company is exposed to market risks resulting from fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates. A material drop 
in the value of any such foreign currency could result in a material adverse effect on the Company’s cash flow and 
revenues. Currently, there are no significant restrictions on the repatriation of capital and distribution of earnings 
from Colombia to foreign entities. There can be no assurance, however, that restrictions on repatriation of capital or 
distributions of earnings from Colombia will not be imposed in the future. Amendments to current taxation laws and 
regulations which alter tax rates and/or capital allowances could have a material adverse impact on the Company. 
The Company also has subsidiaries that operate in different tax jurisdictions. 

To the extent revenues and expenditures denominated in or strongly linked to the U.S. dollar are not 
equivalent, the Company is exposed to exchange rate risk. The Company is exposed to the extent U.S. dollar 
revenues do not equal U.S. dollar expenditures. In addition, a portion of expenditures in Colombia are denominated 
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in pesos, which are difficult to hedge. The Company is not currently using exchange rate derivatives to manage 
exchange rate risks. 

Political and Regulatory 

The oil and gas industry in general is subject to extensive government policies and regulations, which result 
in additional cost and risk for industry participants. Environmental concerns relating to the oil and gas industry’s 
operating practices are expected to increasingly influence government regulation and consumption patterns which 
favour cleaner burning fuels such as natural gas. The Company is uncertain as to the amount of operating and capital 
expenses that will be required to comply with enhanced environmental regulation in the future. 

The Company’s projects are located in Colombia and consequently the Company will be subject to certain 
risks, including currency fluctuations and possible political or economic instability. Exploration and production 
activities may be affected in varying degrees by political stability and government regulations relating to the 
industry. Colombia is home to South America’s largest and longest running insurgency, and over the past two 
decades has experienced significant social upheaval and criminal activity relating to drug trafficking. While the 
situation has improved dramatically in recent years, security risks in the area (particularly in the regions adjacent to 
the borders with Ecuador and Venezuela) continue to be of concern. There can be no guarantee that the situation will 
not deteriorate. Any increase in kidnapping and/or terrorist activity in Colombia generally may disrupt supply chains 
and discourage qualified individuals from being involved with the Company’s operations. Additionally, the 
perception that matters have not improved in Colombia may hinder the Company’s ability to access capital in a 
timely or cost effective manner. Any changes in regulations or shifts in political attitudes are beyond the control of 
the Company and may adversely affect its business. Exploration may be affected in varying degrees by government 
regulations with respect to restrictions on future exploitation and production, price controls, export controls, foreign 
exchange controls, income taxes, expropriation of property, environmental legislation and site safety. 

The Company is conducting exploration and development activities in Colombia, and is dependent on 
receipt of government approvals or permits to develop its properties. Based on past performance, the Company 
believes that the government of Colombia supports the exploration and development of its oil and gas properties by 
foreign companies. Nevertheless, there is no assurance that future political conditions in Colombia will not result in 
the government adopting different policies respecting foreign development and ownership of oil, environmental 
protection and labour relations. This may affect the Company’s ability to undertake exploration and development 
activities in respect of present and future properties, as well as its ability to raise funds to further such activities. Any 
delays in receiving government approvals or permits or no objection certificates may delay the Company’s 
operations or may affect the status of the Company’s contractual arrangements or its ability to meet its contractual 
obligations. 

The Company’s operations may also be adversely affected by laws and policies of Canada affecting foreign 
trade, taxation and investment. In the event of a dispute arising in connection with the Company’s foreign 
operations, the Company may be subject to the exclusive jurisdiction of foreign courts or may not be successful in 
subjecting foreign persons to the jurisdictions of the courts of Canada or enforcing Canadian judgments in such 
other jurisdictions. The Company may also be hindered or prevented from enforcing its rights with respect to a 
governmental instrumentality because of the doctrine of sovereign immunity. Accordingly, the Company’s 
exploration, development and production activities in the foreign jurisdictions in which it operates could be 
substantially affected by factors beyond the Company’s control, any of which could have a material adverse effect 
on the Company. 

Repatriation of Earnings 

Currently there are no restrictions on the repatriation from Colombia of earnings to foreign entities. 
However, there can be no assurance that restrictions on repatriation of earnings from Colombia will not be imposed 
in the future. 
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Title Matters 

The acquisition of title to crude oil properties in Colombia is a detailed and time consuming process. 
Although all of the Company’s properties are a result of awards and subsequent transfers directly by the ANH, they 
may be subject to unforeseen title claims. While the Company will diligently investigate title to all of its properties 
and will follow standard industry practice in obtaining satisfactory title opinions and while, to the best of the 
Company’s knowledge, title to all of the Company’s properties is in good standing, this should not be construed as a 
guarantee of title. Title to the properties may be affected by undisclosed and undetected defects. 

No Assurance of Title 

In Colombia, legal title is not perfected until such time as the appropriate governmental authorities and the 
ANH approve the assignment of a Participating Interest and issues a decree. This process can take several months. 
As a result, it is common business practice for commercial parties to proceed with the completion of a purchase and 
sale transaction, notwithstanding the fact that governmental approval may take months to properly reflect these 
business dealings. In these cases, title review due diligence involves ensuring that the current title holder has started 
the different authorization procedures, and also involves an update as to the status of the required authorizations. 

International Operations 

International operations are subject to political, economic and other uncertainties, including but not limited 
to, risk of terrorist activities, revolution, border disputes, expropriation, renegotiations or modification of existing 
contracts, import, export and transportation regulations and tariffs, taxation policies, including royalty and tax 
increases and retroactive tax claims, exchange controls, limits on allowable levels of production, currency 
fluctuations, labour disputes and other uncertainties arising out of foreign government sovereignty over the 
Company’s international operations. The Company’s operations may also be adversely affected by changes in 
applicable laws and policies of Colombia, which could have a negative impact on the Company. 

Colombia’s federal government has, over recent years, implemented policies that management considers to 
have been successful in encouraging activity in the oil and gas industry in Colombia and in supporting a healthy 
business environment. Elected governments in Venezuela and Bolivia have in recent years taken steps that have had 
a material adverse effect on foreign resource companies operating in these countries. There can be no assurance that 
the current President of Colombia, Juan Manuel Santos, will continue to follow policies that are supportive of 
business or that continue to encourage foreign investment in Colombia. 

In the event of a dispute arising in connection with the Company’s operations in Colombia, the Company 
may be subject to the exclusive jurisdiction of foreign courts or may not be successful in subjecting foreign persons 
to the jurisdiction of such courts or enforcing Canadian judgements in such other jurisdictions. The Company may 
also be hindered or prevented from enforcing its rights with respect to a governmental instrumentality because of the 
doctrine of sovereign immunity. Accordingly, the Company’s exploration and development activities in Colombia 
could be substantially affected by factors beyond the Company’s control, any of which could have a material 
adverse effect on the Company. 

The Company may in the future acquire oil and natural gas properties and operations outside of Colombia, 
which expansion may present challenges and risks that the Company has not faced in the past, any of which could 
adversely affect the results of operations and/or financial condition of the Company. 

Legal Systems 

Colombia may have less of a developed legal system than jurisdictions with more established economies. 
This may result in risks such as: (i) effective legal redress in the courts of such jurisdictions, whether in respect of a 
breach of law or regulation or in an ownership dispute, being more difficult to obtain; (ii) a higher degree of 
discretion on the part of governmental authorities; (iii) the lack of judicial or administrative guidance on interpreting 
applicable rules and regulations; (iv) inconsistencies or conflicts between and within various laws, regulations, 
decrees, orders and resolutions; or (v) relative inexperience of the judiciary and courts in such matters. In certain 
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jurisdictions, the commitment of local business people, government officials and agencies and the judicial system to 
abide by legal requirements and negotiated agreements may be more uncertain, creating particular concerns with 
respect to licences and agreements for business. These may be susceptible to revision or cancellation and legal 
redress may be uncertain or delayed. There can be no assurance that joint ventures, licences, licence applications or 
other legal arrangements will not be adversely affected by the actions of government authorities or others and the 
effectiveness of and enforcement of such arrangements in these jurisdictions cannot be assured. 

Security and Guerrilla Activity in Colombia 

Colombia has had a publicized history of security problems associated with certain narcotics crime 
organizations and other terrorist groups. A 40-year armed conflict between the government forces of Colombia and 
anti-government insurgent groups and illegal paramilitary groups continues in Colombia. Insurgents continue to 
attack civilians and violent guerrilla activity continues in many parts of the country. The Caguan-Putumayo region 
has been prone to guerrilla activity in the past. Pipelines have also been targets, including the Trans-Andean export 
pipeline which transports oil from the Putumayo region. In March and April of 2008, sections of one of the 
Ecopetrol pipelines were blown up by guerrillas. Ecopetrol was able to restore deliveries within one to two weeks of 
these attacks. 

 The government of Colombia has increased its efforts to re-assert government control throughout the 
country and now has a presence in every one of its administrative departments. However, continuing attempts to 
reduce or prevent guerrilla activity may disrupt the Company’s operations in the future. The Company may not be 
able to establish or maintain the safety of its operations and personnel in Colombia and this violence may affect its 
operations in the future. Continued or heightened security concerns in Colombia could also result in a significant 
loss to the Company.  It is difficult to obtain insurance coverage to protect against terrorist incidents and as a result 
the Company’s insurance program excludes this coverage.

Failure to Realize Anticipated Benefits of Acquisitions and Dispositions 

The Company makes acquisitions and dispositions of businesses and assets in the ordinary course of 
business. Achieving the benefits of acquisitions depends in part on successfully consolidating functions and 
integrating operations and procedures in a timely and efficient manner as well as the Company’s ability to realize 
the anticipated growth opportunities and synergies from combining the acquired businesses and operations with 
those of the Company. The integration of acquired businesses may require substantial management effort, time and 
resources and may divert management’s focus from other strategic opportunities and operational matters. 
Management continually assesses the value and contribution of services provided and assets required to provide 
such services. In this regard, non-core assets are periodically disposed of, so that the Company can focus its efforts 
and resources more efficiently. Depending on the state of the market for such non-core assets, certain non-core 
assets of the Company, if disposed of, could be expected to realize less than their carrying value on the financial 
statements of the Company. 

Availability of Equipment and Access Restrictions 

Oil exploration and development activities are dependent on the availability of drilling and related 
equipment in the particular areas where such activities will be conducted. Demand for such limited equipment or 
access restrictions may affect the availability of such equipment to the Company and may delay exploration and 
development activities. To the extent the Company is not the operator of its oil and gas properties, the Company will 
be dependent on such operators for the timing of activities related to such properties and will be largely unable to 
direct or control the activities of the operators. There can be no guarantee that sufficient drilling and completion 
equipment, services and supplies will be available when needed. Shortages could delay the Company’s proposed 
exploration and development activities and could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial 
condition.  
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The Company Might Encounter Operating Hazards 

Oil exploration, development and production operations are subject to all the risks and hazards typically 
associated with such operations, including hazards such as fire, explosion, blowouts and oil spills, each of which 
could result in substantial damage to oil wells, production facilities, other property and the environment or in 
personal injury. In accordance with industry practice, the Company is not fully insured against all of these risks, nor 
are all such risks insurable. Although the Company maintains liability insurance in an amount that it considers 
adequate and consistent with industry practice, the nature of these risks is such that liabilities could exceed policy 
limits, in which event the Company could incur significant costs that could have a materially adverse effect upon its 
financial condition. Oil production operations are also subject to all the risks typically associated with such 
operations, including premature decline of reservoirs and the invasion of water into producing formations. 

Environmental 

All phases of the oil business present environmental risks and hazards and are subject to environmental 
regulation pursuant to a variety of international conventions and state and municipal laws and regulations. 
Environmental legislation provides for, among other things, restrictions and prohibitions on spills, releases or 
emissions of various substances produced in association with oil and gas operations. The legislation also requires 
that wells and facility sites be operated, maintained, abandoned and reclaimed to the satisfaction of applicable 
regulatory authorities. Compliance with such legislation can require significant expenditures and a breach may result 
in the imposition of fines and penalties, some of which may be material. Environmental legislation is evolving in a 
manner expected to result in stricter standards and enforcement, larger fines and liability and potentially increased 
capital expenditures and operating costs. The discharge of oil, natural gas or other pollutants into the air, soil or 
water may give rise to liabilities to foreign governments and third parties and may require the Company to incur 
costs to remedy such discharge. No assurance can be given that environmental laws will not result in a curtailment 
of production or a material increase in the costs of production, development or exploration activities or otherwise 
adversely affect the Company’s financial condition, results of operations or prospects. In addition, new regulations 
relating to greenhouse gas emissions in Colombia or elsewhere in the world may have an effect on the Company’s 
costs or on levels of future demand for hydrocarbon-based products. 

Permits and Licences 

The operations of the Company may require licenses and permits from various governmental authorities. 
There can be no assurance that the Company will be able to obtain all necessary licences and permits that may be 
required to carry out its exploration and development activities. 

Reliance on Third Party Operators and Key Personnel 

To the extent that the Company is not the operator of its properties, it will be dependent upon third party 
operators for the timing of activities and will be largely unable to control the activities of such operators. In addition, 
the Company’s success depends, to a significant extent, upon management and key employees.  The loss of the 
services of any of such persons could have a material adverse affect on the Company's business, financial condition, 
results of operations and prospects. The Company does not have key person insurance in effect for management. 
The contributions of these individuals to the immediate operations of the Company are likely to be of central 
importance. In addition, the competition for qualified personnel in the oil and natural gas industry is intense and 
there can be no assurance that the Company will be able to continue to attract and retain all personnel necessary for 
the development and operation of its business. Subscribers must rely upon the ability, expertise, judgment, 
discretion, integrity and good faith of the management of the Company. 

Markets and Marketing 

The marketability and price of oil and natural gas that may be discovered or acquired by the Company will 
be affected by numerous factors beyond its control. The Company’s ability to market oil and natural gas in the 
future, may depend upon its ability to acquire space on pipelines that deliver natural gas to commercial markets 
including availability of processing and refining facilities and transportation infrastructure, including access to 
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facilities, pipelines and pipeline capacity and economic tariff rates over which the Company may have limited or no 
control. The Company may also be affected by deliverability uncertainties related to the proximity of its reserves to 
pipelines and processing facilities, and related to operational and maintenance problems with such pipelines and 
facilities as well as extensive government regulation relating to price, taxes, royalties, land tenure, allowable 
production, the export of oil and natural gas and many other aspects of the oil and natural gas business. Any delay or 
failure to acquire access to, or improper operation or maintenance of, such pipelines and facilities could have a 
material adverse effect on the Company’s business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects. 

Estimate of Resources 

The resource estimates presented in the Petrotech Resource Report have been classified as prospective 
resources. The resource estimates in the Resources Report are estimates only. There is no certainty that any portion 
of the resources will be discovered. If discovered, there is no certainty that it will be commercially viable to produce 
any portion of the resources. Readers are cautioned that the volumes presented are estimates only and should not be 
construed as being exact quantities. The Company’s proposed exploration program must be considered as a high risk 
exploration play.  

Issuance of Debt 

From time to time, the Company may enter into transactions to acquire assets or the shares of other 
corporations. These transactions may be financed partially or wholly with debt, which may increase the Company’s 
debt levels above industry standards. Neither the Company’s articles nor its by-laws limit the amount of 
indebtedness that the Company may incur. The level of the Company’s indebtedness from time to time could impair 
the Company’s ability to obtain additional financing in the future on a timely basis to take advantage of business 
opportunities that may arise. 

Management of Growth 

The Company may be subject to growth-related risks including capacity constraints and pressure on its 
internal systems and controls. The ability of the Company to manage growth effectively will require it to continue to 
implement and improve its operations and financial systems and to expand, train and manage its employee base. The 
inability of the Company to deal with this growth could have a material adverse impact on its business, operations 
and prospects. 

Forward-Looking Information May Prove Inaccurate 

Subscribers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on forward-looking information. By its nature, 
forward- looking information involves numerous assumptions, known and unknown risks and uncertainties, of both 
a general and specific nature, that could cause actual results to differ materially from those suggested by the 
forward-looking information or contribute to the possibility that predictions, forecasts or projections will prove to be 
materially inaccurate. 

Additional information on the risks, assumptions and uncertainties are found in this prospectus under the 
heading “Notice to Investors – Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements”. 

Risks Related to the Offering  

Absence of a Liquid, Public Market 

Prior to the completion of the Offering, there has been no public market for the Common Shares and there 
can be no assurance that a liquid, public market will develop for the Common Shares. The Offering Price was 
determined through negotiations between the Company and the Agents. Among the factors to be considered in 
determining the Offering Price were the Company’s future prospects and the prospects of the industry in general, 
sales, the Company’s financial and operating information in recent periods, and the market prices of securities and 
certain financial and other operating information of companies engaged in activities similar to those of the 
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Company. The Offering Price may not be indicative of the market price for the Common Shares after the Offering, 
which price may decline below the Offering Price. See “Plan of Distribution”. 

Ability to Enforce Judgments 

The Company, through its subsidiaries, is engaged in the exploration for, and the acquisition and development of, oil 
and natural gas in South America, specifically in Colombia. Substantially all of the assets of the Company are 
owned by subsidiaries of the Company and are located outside Canada. In addition, the Company’s subsidiaries are 
incorporated and subsisting under jurisdictions outside of Canada and some of the directors and officers of the 
Company that have signed this prospectus reside outside of Canada. Although each of the officers and directors of 
the Company that have signed this prospectus and who reside outside of Canada has appointed Borden Ladner 
Gervais LLP, 1900, 520 – 3rd Avenue S.W., Calgary, Alberta  T2P 0R3, as his agent for service of process in 
Canada, it may not be possible for Subscribers to enforce judgements obtained in Canadian courts predicated upon 
civil liability provisions of applicable Canadian securities laws against the directors and officers referred to above. 
Moreover, it may not be possible for Subscribers to effect service of process within Canada upon the directors and 
officers referred to above.  

Share Price Volatility 

A number of factors could influence the volatility in the trading price of the Common Shares, including 
changes in the economy or in the financial markets, industry related developments and the impact of changes in the 
Company’s daily operations. Each of these factors could lead to increased volatility in the market price of the 
Common Shares. In addition, variations in earnings estimates by securities analysts and the market prices of the 
securities of the Company’s competitors may also lead to fluctuations in the trading price of the Common Shares. 

Discretion in the Use of Proceeds 

Management will have broad discretion concerning the use of the proceeds of the Offering, as well as the 
timing of their expenditure. As a result, Subscribers will be relying on the judgment of management for the 
application of the proceeds of the Offering. Management may use the Net Proceeds in ways that Subscribers may 
not consider desirable. The results and the effectiveness of the application of the proceeds are uncertain. If the 
proceeds are not applied effectively, the results of the Company’s operations may suffer. 

Dividends 

The Company has not declared or paid any cash dividends on the Common Shares to date. The payment of 
dividends in the future will be dependent on the Company’s earnings and financial condition and on such other 
factors as the Board of Directors considers appropriate. Unless and until the Company pays dividends, shareholders 
may not receive a return on their shares. 

Dilution and Further Sales  

The Offering Price of the Offered Shares exceeds the net tangible book value per share of the Common 
Shares. Accordingly, Subscribers who purchase Offered Shares will experience immediate and substantial dilution 
of their investment. Assuming completion of the Offering, the Company has agreed to refrain from issuing or selling 
further Common Shares for a period of 120 days after the Closing Date without the consent of the Lead Agent on 
behalf of the Agents (such consent not to be unreasonably withheld or delayed), subject to certain exceptions. 
However, at the end of that period, there will be no restrictions to the Company issuing or selling Common Shares 
other than those pursuant to applicable securities laws and stock exchange policies. The sale of a substantial number 
of the Common Shares in the public market or pursuant to the registration rights after the Offering, or the perception 
that such sales may occur, could adversely affect the prevailing market price of the Common Shares and negatively 
impact the Company’s ability to raise equity capital in the future. 
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DIVIDEND POLICY 

The Company has not declared or paid any dividends on the Common Shares to date. The payment of 
dividends in the future will be dependent on the Company’s earnings, financial condition and such other factors as 
the Board of Directors considers appropriate. 

LEGAL PROCEEDINGS AND REGULATORY ACTIONS 

The Company is not or was not a party to, nor are or were any of the Company’s assets subject to, any 
material legal proceedings since January 1, 2009, or regulatory actions in the last three years, nor to the Company’s 
knowledge are any such proceedings contemplated. 

Since incorporation, there have not been any penalties or sanctions imposed against the Company by a 
court relating to provincial and territorial securities legislation or by a securities regulatory authority, nor have there 
been any other penalties or sanctions imposed by a court or regulatory body against the Company, and the Company 
has not entered into any settlement agreements before a court relating to provincial and territorial securities 
legislation or with a securities regulatory authority. 

INTEREST OF MANAGEMENT AND OTHERS IN MATERIAL TRANSACTIONS 

Other than as disclosed in this prospectus, there are no material interests, direct or indirect, of directors, 
executive officers, any shareholders who beneficially own, directly or indirectly, more than 10% of the Company’s 
outstanding Common Shares, or any known associates or affiliates of such persons, in any transaction within the last 
three financial years or in any proposed transaction which has materially affected or would materially affect the 
Company, or any of its subsidiaries.  

PROMOTER 

Antonio Vincentelli, the President, Chief Executive Officer and a director of the Company, may be 
considered to be the promoter of the Company, in that he took the initiative in founding and organizing the 
Company. As of the date of this prospectus, Mr. Vincentelli beneficially owns or exercises control or direction over, 
directly or indirectly, 750,000 Common Shares, representing 0.7% of the issued and outstanding Common Shares. 
After giving effect to Offering, Mr. Vincentelli is expected to beneficially own or exercise control or direction over, 
directly or indirectly, 1,050,000 Common Shares, representing 0.6% of the issued and outstanding Common Shares. 

MATERIAL CONTRACTS 

Except for contracts entered into in the ordinary course of business, the only material contracts the 
Company has entered into prior to the date of this prospectus which can reasonably be regarded as presently material 
are:

1. the Agency Agreement, described under the heading “Plan of Distribution”; and 

2. the Share Purchase Agreement, described under the heading “The Company – General Development of the 
Business – The Reorganization Transactions”.

Copies of the foregoing, once executed, and the articles of the Company may be inspected during ordinary 
office business hours at the offices of Borden Ladner Gervais LLP, 1900, 520 – 3rd Avenue S.W., Calgary, Alberta, 
during the period of the distribution of the Common Shares or may be viewed at the website maintained by the 
Canadian Securities Administrators at www.sedar.com. 

EXPERTS 

No person or company whose profession or business gives authority to a report, valuation, statement or 
opinion made by such person or company and who is named in this prospectus as having prepared or certified a part 
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of this prospectus, or a report, valuation, statement or opinion described in this prospectus, has received or shall 
receive a direct or indirect interest in any securities or other property of the Company or any associate or affiliate of 
the Company. 

Information relating to resources in this prospectus was prepared by Petrotech. The principals of Petrotech, 
individually or as a group, neither own nor expect to receive any of the Company’s securities, directly or indirectly. 

Ernst & Young LLP is independent in accordance with the Rules of Professional Conduct as outlined by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Alberta. 

Certain legal matters in connection with the Offering are being reviewed on behalf of the Company by 
Borden Ladner Gervais LLP and on behalf of the Agents by McCarthy Tétrault LLP. As at the date hereof, the 
partners and associates Borden Ladner Gervais LLP, as a group, and the partners and associates of McCarthy 
Tétrault LLP, as a group, beneficially own, directly or indirectly, none of the outstanding Common Shares prior to 
the completion of the Offering. Melinda Park, the Corporate Secretary of the Company, is a Partner at Borden 
Ladner Gervais LLP, a firm that provides legal services to the Company. 

AUDITORS, TRANSFER AGENT AND REGISTRAR 

The Company’s auditors are Ernst & Young LLP, Chartered Accountants, at its offices located at 1000, 
400 – 2nd Avenue S.W., Calgary, Alberta  T2P 5E9.  

The Company’s transfer agent and registrar is Computershare located at 600, 530 – 8th Avenue S.W., 
Calgary, Alberta  T2P 3S8. 

PURCHASERS’ STATUTORY RIGHTS OF WITHDRAWAL AND RESCISSION 

Securities legislation in certain of the provinces of Canada provides purchasers with the right to withdraw 
from an agreement to purchase securities within two business days after receipt or deemed receipt of a prospectus 
and any amendment. In several of the provinces, the securities legislation further provides a purchaser with remedies 
for rescission if the prospectus and any amendment contains a misrepresentation or is not delivered to the purchaser, 
provided that such remedies for rescission or damages are exercised by the purchaser within the time limit 
prescribed by the securities legislation of the applicable province. The purchaser should refer to any applicable 
provisions of the securities legislation of the province in which the purchaser resides for the particulars of these 
rights or consult with a legal advisor. 

EXEMPTIONS FROM THE INSTRUMENT 

The Company applied for and obtained exemptive relief from the Alberta Securities Commission and the 
Ontario Securities Commission from the requirement to include in this prospectus financial statements of the 
Company prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles as required by item 32 of 
Form 41-101F1 – Information Required in a Prospectus and section 3.1 of NI 52-107 – Acceptable Accounting
Principles, Auditing Standards and Reporting Currency and, in lieu thereof, allowing it to include financial 
statements prepared in accordance with IFRS. The relief was granted on the conditions that: 

the Company had carefully assessed the readiness of its staff, board of directors, audit committee, 
auditors, investors and other market participants for the immediate adoption by the Company of 
IFRS for the presentation of its financial statements in connection with the Offering and concluded 
that all parties were adequately prepared for the Company’s immediate adoption of IFRS; 

the Company had considered the implications of adopting IFRS before January 1, 2011 on its 
obligations under securities legislation including, but not limited to, those relating to CEO and 
CFO certifications, business acquisition reports, offering documents and material forward-looking 
information;  
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the Company consistently applied and disclosed its accounting policy choice with respect to how 
it accounted for the common control transaction, whereby it acquired the Colombian oil and gas 
concessions; and 

the financial statements included in this prospectus were audited in accordance with Canadian 
generally accepted auditing standards. 

The Company has also made a separate formal application to use IFRS for its ongoing continuous 
disclosure records.  



80

AUDITORS’ CONSENT 

We have read the prospectus (the “Prospectus”) of PetroNova Inc. (the “Company”) dated December 13, 
2010 qualifying the distribution of Common Shares of the Company. We have complied with Canadian generally 
accepted standards for an auditor’s involvement with offering documents. 

We consent to the use in the Prospectus of our report to the directors of the Company on the consolidated 
statement of financial position of the Company as at December 31, 2009 and 2008 and the consolidated statements 
of comprehensive income (loss), changes in equity and cash flows for each of the years in the three year period 
ended December 31, 2009. Our report is dated December 13, 2010. 

(signed) “Ernst & Young LLP” 
Chartered Accountants  
Calgary, Alberta 
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PetroNova Inc.
Consolidated Financial Statements

(in United States dollars)
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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PetroNova Inc.
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

(in United States dollars)

As at

September 30, 2010 December 31, 2009
(unaudited)

$ $
ASSETS

Current assets
Cash (Note 4) 1,044,379 56,681
Trade and other receivables (Note 5) 412,288 58,659
Deferred costs 162,212
Due from related parties (Note 13) 514,378 179,292

2,133,257 294,632
Non current assets

Value added tax receivable 1,609,014 284,152
Faci l i ties and equipment (Note 6) 42,519 40,444
Exploration and evaluation assets (Note 7) 17,763,844 3,447,351
Block depos i ts (Note 8) 7,792,350 7,728,800

27,207,727 11,500,747

Total assets 29,340,984 11,795,379

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Current liabilities
Bank loan (Note 10) 455,770 13,094
Trade and other payables (Note 11) 1,489,316 975,251
Due to related parties (Note 13) 36,892 11,387,233
Total liabilities 1,981,978 12,375,578

Shareholders' equity (deficiency)
Share capita l (Note 14) 29,575,234 1,000
Accumulated other comprehens ive income (Note 14) (39,063)
(Defici t) reta ined earnings (2,177,165) (581,199)
Total shareholders' equity (deficiency) 27,359,006 (580,199)

Total liabilities and shareholders' equity (deficiency) 29,340,984 11,795,379



The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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PetroNova Inc.
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Loss

(in United States dollars)

For the periods ended

(unaudited)

Nine month period
ended

Three month period
ended

Nine month period
ended

Three month period
ended

September 30, 2010 September 30, 2010 September 30, 2009 September 30, 2009
REVENUES

Interest income 144,832 56,032

EXPENSES
Interest and bank charges 10,627 9,935
Amortization 4,191 594 840 840
Adminis trative expenses 53,248 53,248
Profess ional fees 466,415 313,712
Sa laries and compensation (Notes 13 and 14) 1,168,732 209,309
Foreign exchange loss 37,585 105,152

Total expenses 1,740,798 691,950 840 840

(1,595,966) (635,918) (840) (840)

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Foreign currency trans lation (Note 14) (39,063) 30,244
Total other comprehensive income (39,063) 30,244

Total comprehensive loss (1,635,029) (605,674) (840) (840)

Bas ic and di luted loss per share (Note 15) (0.04) (0.01)

Net loss



The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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PetroNova Inc.
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

(in United States dollars)

For the periods ended

(unaudited)

Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive
Loss

Retained
earnings (deficit)

# $ $ $

Balance at January 1, 2009 (630,716)
Earnings for the period January 1, 2009 to June 30, 2009
Earnings for the period July 1, 2009 to September 17, 2009 802

Deficit assumed by PetroNova upon incorporation September 17, 2009 (629,914)

Earnings for the period September 18, 2009 to December 31, 2009 48,715

Equity transactions:
Shares issued on incorporation September 17, 2009 1,000 1,000

Balance at December 31, 2009 1,000 1,000 (581,199)
Loss for the period (1,595,966)
Other comprehens ive loss (39,063)

Equity transactions:
Issuance of shares (note 14) 112,780,302 29,159,120
Fair value of warrants issued (note 14) 10,000,000 94,543
Debt forgiveness (note 13) 320,571

Balance at September 30, 2010 122,781,302 29,575,234 (39,063) (2,177,165)

Share capital



The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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PetroNova Inc.
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

(in United States dollars)

For the periods ended

(unaudited)

Nine month period
ended

Three month period
ended

Nine month period
ended

Three month period
ended

September 30, 2010 September 30, 2010 September 30, 2009 September 30, 2009

Net loss (1,595,966) (635,918) (840) (840)
Non cash items:
Remuneration shares (Notes 13 and 14) 823,797
Unrea l ized foreign exchange loss 36,733 104,300

Amortization expense 4,191 594 840 840

Operating activities
Changes in non cash working capi ta l :
Trade and other receivables (Note 5) (564,591) (407,434)
Trade and other payables (Note 11) (1,242,336) (1,797,623)
Value added tax receivable (767,560) (767,560)
Deferred costs (162,212) (162,212)

Tota l cash flows from operations (3,467,944) (3,665,853)

Investing activities
Purchase of faci l i ties and equipment (Note 6) (2,224) (2,224)
Purchase of exploration and development assets (Note 7) (3,753,113) (3,753,113)
Block depos i ts (Note 8) (63,550) (63,550)

(3,818,887) (3,818,887)
Financing activities

Bank indebtedness 79,592 79,592
Is suance of shares and warrants , net of share issue costs (Note 14) 8,697,857
Repayment of advances from related parties (Note 13) (482,562) (503,900)

8,294,887 (424,308)

Foreign exchange loss on cash held in foreign currency (20,358) (20,358)

Total changes in cash 987,698 (7,929,406)

Cash, beginning of the period 56,681 8,973,785

Cash, end of the period 1,044,379 1,044,379



PetroNova Inc.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial statements

Three and nine month periods ended September 30, 2010
(All amounts are expressed in US dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(unaudited)
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1 Basis of presentation

The unaudited consolidated interim financial statements of PetroNova Inc. (“PetroNova”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Company”) for the three and nine month periods ended September 30, 2010 were authorized for
issue in accordance with a resolution of the Directors on December 13, 2010. The registered office of the Company
is 1900, 520 Third Avenue S.W., Calgary, Canada. PetroNova was incorporated under the Business Corporations
Act (Alberta) on September 17, 2009 as a wholly owned subsidiary of Inepetrol Corp AB (“Inepetrol”). Prior to
incorporation, PetroNova’s business, being the exploration for oil in Colombia was carried on by other direct and
indirect wholly owned subsidiaries of Inepetrol (“Predecessor Subsidiaries”). In June 2010, the Predecessor
Subsidiaries transferred oil exploration assets and related liabilities to the Company’s Colombian branch.

For all periods presented, these consolidated interim financial statements include the historical financial position,
results of operations and cash flows of the Colombian oil assets and liabilities acquired based on the Predecessor
Subsidiaries’ historical costs in accordance with continuity of interest accounting.

Pre incorporation receipts and expenditures and changes in non cash working capital, pertaining to the
accumulation of the assets and liabilities acquired, as conducted by the Predecessor Subsidiaries are reflected in
these consolidated financial statements as amounts due to and from affiliates of Inepetrol (see Note 13).
Accordingly, these activities are not reported in the statement of cash flows.

For the pre incorporation period, the consolidated statement of changes in equity presents a continuity of the
Predecessor Subsidiaries’ collective net investment and results of operations for the assets and liabilities acquired.

Future Operations
These unaudited consolidated interim financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis which
contemplates the realization of assets and the payment of liabilities in the ordinary course of business. Should the
Company be unable to continue as a going concern, it may be unable to realize the carrying value of its assets and
meet its liabilities as they become due. For the nine month period ended September 30, 2010, the Company
incurred a loss of $1,595,966 and as at September 30, 2010 had an accumulated deficit of $2,177,165. There is
approximately $37 million in commitments relating to the activities in the interests in the Blocks, of which the
Company has spent $17,763,844.

The Company raised Cdn$10 million in capital by way of a private placement in June 2010 and had approximately
$1 million in cash and cash equivalents at September 30, 2010 to fund exploration activities and meet its
contractual obligations.

The Company’s ability to continue as a going concern is dependent upon its ability to attain profitable operations
and generate funds therefrom, and to obtain borrowings from third parties sufficient to meet current and future
obligations. Management expects that the Company will be able to secure the necessary financing to meet the
Company’s requirements on an ongoing basis. These consolidated financial statements do not reflect the
adjustments or reclassification of assets and liabilities which would be necessary if the Company were unable to
continue its operations.

Statement of compliance
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS”) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”).
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
The accounting policies applied by the Company in these unaudited consolidated financial statements are the
same as those applied by the Company in its consolidated financial statements as at and for the year ended
December 31, 2009.

3 Continuity of interest
In June 2010, the Company indirectly acquired, through its wholly owned subsidiary, PetroNova Colombia Inc., the
Colombian assets and assumed certain liabilities associated with the Colombian assets held by a predecessor
subsidiary at a purchase price of $12,003,209 in exchange for the issuance of 98,660,044 common shares. Since
there was no substantive change in control, the financial statements have been prepared using the “continuity of
interests” method, as though the companies had been combined since inception. As a result, the assets and
liabilities transferred have been recorded at historical carrying values as follows:

Cash $72,195
Trade and other receivables 5,006
Value added tax receivable 738,474
Facilities and equipment 44,486
Exploration and evaluation assets 14,010,730
Bank loan (392,559)
Trade and other payables (1,954,642)
Withholding tax payable (520,481)
Net assets $12,003,209

4 Cash
September 30,

2010
$

December 31,
2009

$

Cash at banks 1,044,379 56,681

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates.
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5 Trade and other receivables
September 30,

2010
$

December 31,
2009

$

Current
Trade receivables
Interest receivable

204,688
117,659 54,726

Joint venture receivables and prepayments 4,113 3,933
Other receivables 85,828

412,288 58,659

Included in other receivables is $34,392 relating to Canadian goods and services tax (GST) (December 31, 2009:
$nil).

The aging of gross trade receivables at each reporting date was as follows:

September 30,
2010

$

December 31,
2009

$

Current 8,856
Greater than 30 days 195,832

204,688

Trade receivables are non interest bearing and are generally due on demand.

As at September 30, 2010 and December 31, 2009 there was no indication that trade receivables were impaired
and therefore no provision was made for doubtful receivables.
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6 Facilities and equipment
Computer and

telecommunication
equipment

$

Furniture and
fixture

$
Total

$

Cost
December 31, 2008
Additions 15,447 31,380 46,827
At December 31, 2009 15,447 31,380 46,827
Additions 1,962 4,304 6,266
At September 30, 2010 17,409 35,684 53,093

Accumulated depreciation
December 31, 2008
Charge for the year (1,244) (5,139) (6,383)
At December 31, 2009 (1,244) (5,139) (6,383)
Charge for the period (4,097) (94) (4,191)
At September 30, 2010 (5,341) (5,233) (10,574)

Net book value
At December 31, 2009 14,203 26,241 40,444
At September 30, 2010 12,068 30,451 42,519

7 Exploration and evaluation assets
$

Cost as at January 1, 2009
Additions 3,447,351
Cost as at December 31, 2009 3,447,351
Additions 14,316,493
Cost as at September 30, 2010 $ 17,763,844

Net book value as at December 31, 2009 $ 3,447,351
Net book value as at September 30, 2010 $ 17,763,844

Of the total exploration and evaluation assets incurred, $32,300 (December 31, 2009: $28,377) relate to tangible
assets, while the remaining expenditures are intangible in nature.

In December 2008, the ANH awarded a number of exploration and production blocks to the Company as follows:
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7 Exploration and evaluation assets (continued)

Putumayo – PUT 2 Block (“PUT 2”)

On February 18, 2009, the Block Putumayo PUT 2 Exploration and Production Contract (the “PUT 2 E&P Contract”)
was signed by the ANH and a Predecessor Subsidiary. In March 2010, the ANH approved the transfer of 100% of
the interests, rights and obligations in the PUT 2 E&P Contract to the Company’s Colombian branch. The
assignment of the PUT 2 E&P Contract to the Company and assumption of related liabilities was completed on
June 28, 2010.

Tinigua Block (“Tinigua”)

On January 23, 2009, the Tinigua Exploration and Production Contract (the "Tinigua E&P Contract") was signed by
the ANH and a Predecessor Subsidiary. In March 2010, the ANH approved the transfer of 100% of the interests,
rights and obligations in the Tinigua E&P Contract to the Company's Colombian branch. The assignment of the
Tinigua E&P Contract to the Company and assumption of related liabilities was completed on June 28, 2010.

Pursuant to a private participation agreement dated May 10, 2010 (the "Tinigua Participation Agreement"), the
Predecessor Subsidiary assigned 10% of its rights to the Tinigua E&P Contract to a third party. Under the terms of
the Tinigua Participation Agreement, the Company is required to pay all costs and expenses until the completion of
perforation and testing of the first exploration well as prescribed in the Tinigua Phase 2 exploration period, at
which time the third party may elect to participate further in Tinigua. Should the third party elect to participate, it
is responsible for 10% of all future costs, is obligated to repay the Company its share of incurred costs and
expenses and is entitled to the formal assignment of a 10% interest in the Tinigua E&P Contract from the ANH.
Should the third party elect not to participate, its 10% interest reverts back to the Company without further
obligation.

Llanos Blocks

On January 14, 2009, the ANH, Tecpecol and a Predecessor Subsidiary entered into a series of exploration and
production contracts for each of the three Llanos blocks (collectively, the “Llanos E&P Contracts”) pursuant to
which the Predecessor Subsidiary acquired a 20% working interest. In March 2010, the ANH approved the transfer
of 20% of the interests, rights and obligations in the Llanos E&P Contracts to the Company’s Colombian branch.
The assignment of the Llanos E&P Contracts to the Company and assumption of related liabilities was completed
on June 28, 2010.

General

In respect of the PUT 2 and Tinigua blocks, where the Company is the operator, the Company will conduct the
activities and operations at its exclusive cost and risk, providing all resources necessary to prepare and carry out
the activities and operations of exploration, evaluation, development and production of the engaged area. In
respect of the non operated Llanos blocks, the Company is responsible for its 20% working interest share of all
costs. The exploration and production activities will last up to 30 years depending on whether a commercial
development exists.
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7 Exploration and evaluation assets (continued)

Management performed an assessment on its exploration and evaluation assets at September 30, 2010 and there
were no indications of impairment therefore, no impairment provision has been recognized in the unaudited
consolidated financial statements.

8 Block deposits
At September 30, 2010 and December 31, 2009, the Company maintained on deposit with the Banco de Bogota
and the Occidental Bank Barbados Ltd., certain amounts to guarantee the issue of guarantees, to the ANH. The
deposits bear interest at rates ranging between 1.00% 3.80% (December 31, 2009: 1.75% 3.8%) and have
maturities ranging from one to two years. The breakdown of the deposits for each Block is as follows:

September 30, 2010 December 31, 2009

PUT 2 2,201,150 2,137,600
Tinigua 371,200 371,200
Llanos:

CPO 6 1,868,000 1,868,000
CPO 7 1,636,000 1,636,000
CPO 13 1,716,000 1,716,000

Total $ 7,792,350 $ 7,728,800

9 Interest in joint ventures
Pursuant to the Llanos E&P Contracts, joint venture arrangements were established in respect of the Llanos blocks
between Tecpecol and a Predecessor Subsidiary. Under the terms of the Llanos E&P Contracts, Tecpecol holds an
80% working interest and the Predecessor Subsidiary held a 20% working interest. Tecpecol is the operator of the
Llanos blocks.

In March 2010, the ANH approved the transfer of the Predecessor Subsidiary’s 20% working interest in the Llanos
blocks to the Company’s Colombian branch. The assignment of the Llanos E&P Contracts and assumption of
related liabilities was completed in June 2010. The Company is responsible for 20% of the capital costs and is
entitled to 20% of all future production revenue.
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10 Bank Loan
September 30,

2010
$

December 31,
2009

$

Current
Bank loans 455,770
Bank overdraft 13,094

Bank Loans

The loan of Banco de Occidente bears interest on a weekly basis at a variable rate (at the fixed term deposit rate
plus 2%), is secured by a promissory note issued by Inepetrol Corporation AB and the Company’s Colombian
branch and has remaining credit available of $182,314. The term of the loan is 180 days. The loan with Banco de
Bogotá bears interest at a fixed term deposit rate plus 4%, is secured by a promissory note issued by the
Company´s Colombian branch and has remaining credit available of $361,977. The term of the loan is 90 days. The
interest rates on these loans are fixed at the time the funds are drawn upon.

11 Trade and other payables
September 30,

2010
$

December 31,
2009

$

Current

Joint venture payables 952,726 872,093
Accrued expenses 509,927
Withholding tax payable 16,136 103,158
Other payables 10,527

1,489,316 975,251

Joint venture payables for the Company include an amount payable of $952,726 (December 31, 2009: $872,093)
owing to third parties in relation to the joint venture agreement with Tecpecol (see note 9).

Withholding taxes payable of $16,136 (2009: $103,158) is a result of tax owing on services (the net assets in 2009)
acquired during the period, in accordance with Colombian tax laws.

12 Income taxes
The Company does not have any significant tax reconciling items for the period ended September 30, 2010.
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13 Related party disclosure
The consolidated financial statements of the Company involve transactions with related parties listed in the
following table:

Related party transactions

The following table provides a summary of all transactions that have been entered into with related parties
including the outstanding balances as at September 30, 2010 and December 31, 2009:

Amounts due from related parties: September 30,
2010

$

December 31,
2009

$

Inepetrol Corporation AB 1,000
Ineparia Inc. 140,947
Inepetrol S.A. 514,378 37,345

514,378 179,292

Amounts owed to related parties:
Inepetrol S.A. 36,892 11,357,497
Inelectra S.A.C.A. 29,736

36,892 11,387,233

During the quarter, the Company advanced $500,000 to Inepetrol S.A. which bears interest at the 12 month Libor
rate of 1.14% plus EMBI 1198 (Emerging Market Bond Index) annually and is repayable on July 12, 2013. The funds
were advanced to allow Inepetrol S.A. to repay an operating loan that was outstanding to Newton Investments
Company, a company under common control with Inelectra S.A.C.A. At September 30, 2010, $14,378 of interest
receivable is included in the balance owing from Inepetrol S.A. The remaining related party transactions are non
interest bearing and due on demand.

As disclosed in Note 10, the bank loan is secured by a promissory note issued by Inepetrol Corporation AB and the
Company’s Colombian branch.

Name Country of incorporation Relationship
PetroNova International Inc. Cayman Islands 100% owned subsidiary
PetroNova Colombia Inc. Cayman Islands 100% owned subsidiary
Inepetrol Corporation AB Sweden Subject to common control
Inepetrol S.A. Venezuela Subject to common control
Ineparia Inc. Cayman Islands Subject to common control
Inelectra S.A.C.A. Venezuela Common shareholders
Newton Investments Company Cayman Islands Common shareholders
Inepetrol Investments Ltd. British Virgin Islands Common shareholders
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13 Related party disclosure (continued)

On September 20, 2010, the Company was forgiven debt owed to Inepetrol S.A. of $320,571. The debt was a part
of the assets and liabilities of the Gulf of Paria East Operating Company (“GOPEOC”), a Predecessor Subsidiary
from which all assets and liabilities were acquired by the Company (see note 3). The debt owed by the Company
was forgiven by Inepetrol S.A. as part of the winding up of GOPEOC, and recorded as an adjustment to equity as
both the Company and Inepetrol S.A. are under common control. GOPEOC was an inactive Venezuelan entity with
residual balances, predating its acquisition by the Company.

Compensation of management personnel

Nine month
period ended

September 30,
2010

Three month
period ended

September 30,
2010

Nine month
period ended

September 30,
2009

Three month
period ended

September 30,
2009

$ $ $ $

Salary 188,760 62,257
Remuneration shares 823,797
Total compensation paid
to management personnel 1,012,557 62,257

14 Share capital and reserves
Authorized shares

Common shares Unlimited, no par value
Preferred shares Unlimited, no par value

During the nine month period ended September 30, 2010, the Articles of Incorporation were amended to revise
the share structure and to convert the Class “A” shares into common shares.

Issued common shares

Number of
shares

Amount
$

At December 31, 2008
Issued for cash (i) 1,000 1,000
At December 31, 2009 1,000 1,000
Issued as remuneration shares (ii) 4,120,258 823,797
Issued as part of a Debt Purchase and Sale agreement (iii) 76,160,044 15,232,009
Issued as part of a Debt Purchase and Sale agreement (iv) 22,500,000 4,500,000
Issued in a private placement (v) 10,000,000 9,396,631
Share issue costs (793,317)
Forgiveness of debt (vi) 320,571

At September 30, 2010 112,781,302 29,480,691
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14 Share capital and reserves (continued)
Number of

Shares
Amount

$
Issued Common Share Purchase Warrants
Issued through a private placement (v) 10,000,000 101,369
Share issue costs (6,826)
At September 30, 2010 10,000,000 94,543

Total Common Shares and Common Share Purchase Warrants 29,575,234

(i) On incorporation the Company issued 1,000 common shares for $1,000 to Inepetrol Corporation AB.

(ii) The Company issued 4,120,258 common shares to management personnel and others as consideration for
past services. The common shares were issued at a deemed fair value of $0.20. A related expense of
$823,797 was included in salaries and wages in the consolidated statement of comprehensive loss for the
nine month period ended September 30, 2010. No observable market price was available to determine
the fair value of the common shares issued as consideration for the past services received. The Company
determined the fair value of the common shares issued, using managements’ best estimate of fair value
giving consideration to facts known at the time of grant including the fair value of anticipated future
assets to be acquired. Neither expected dividends nor any other equity features were factored into the
determination of their fair value.

(iii) The Company entered into a Debt Purchase and Sale agreement with each of the Inepetrol Corporation
AB. shareholders to purchase promissory notes originally issued by Inepetrol S.A. The promissory notes
with a fair value of $15,232,009 were acquired by the Company in exchange for 76,160,044 common
shares at $0.20 per common share. The promissory notes were subsequently offset through a set off
agreement with Inepetrol, S.A.

(iv) The Company entered into a Debt Purchase and Sale agreement with Inepetrol Corporation AB to
purchase promissory notes originally issued by Inepetrol S.A. The promissory notes with a fair value of
$4,500,000 were acquired by the Company in exchange for 22,500,000 common shares at $0.20 per
common share. The promissory notes were subsequently offset through a set off agreement with
Inepetrol, S.A.

(v) The Company closed a private placement issuing 10,000,000 units for gross proceeds of $9,498,000 ($0.94
per unit) less issuance costs of $639,564. Each unit consists of one common share of the Company and
one common share purchase warrant of the Company. Each common share purchase warrant entitles the
holder to purchase one common share at a price of Cdn$1.50 per share for a period of thirty six months
following the closing date of the private placement. The Company has allocated the total proceeds of
$9,498,000 to common shares of $9,396,631 ($0.93 per common share) and warrants of $101,369 ($0.01
per warrant). The warrant fair value was determined based on a Black Scholes option pricing model. The
issue costs on the private placement totalling $639,564 were also allocated to common share issue costs
of $632,739 and warrant issue costs of $6,826.

(vi) On September 20, 2010, the Company was forgiven debt owed to Inepetrol S.A. of $320,571, which was
recorded through equity (see note 13).
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14 Share capital and reserves (continued)

Warrants
The warrant value was determined using a Black Scholes valuation model with the following weighted average
assumptions:

Risk free interest rate 2.5%
Expected dividend yield 0%
Expected stock price volatility 66%
Expected warrant life 3 years
Weighted average fair value of warrant granted $0.0108

Accumulated other comprehensive income

The foreign currency translation adjustment recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income arises on the
translation of the financial statements of PetroNova Inc. from its Canadian dollar functional currency to US dollar
reporting currency.

15 Basic and diluted loss per share
Basic loss per share amounts are calculated by dividing the net loss for the period attributable to common
shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period.

The Company’s dilutive instruments consist of common share purchase warrants.

The basic and diluted loss per share amounts are the same as the common share purchase warrants were excluded
from the dilution calculation, as they were anti dilutive.

Nine month
period ended
September

30, 2010

Three month
period ended

September 30,
2010

Nine month
period ended

September 30,
2009

Three month
period ended

September 30,
2009

$ $ $ $
Net loss (1,595,966) (635,918) (840) (840)
Weighted average shares outstanding 38,655,556 112,781,302
Basic and diluted loss per common share (0.04) (0.01)
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16 Commitments
At September 30, 2010, the Company has estimated the following disbursements for phase 1 of the exploratory
programs relating to its interest in the blocks outlined in Note 7.

Capital & Expenses (including those related to joint ventures)

2010

Actual 2009
(Actual Sep 30

plus estimated) 2011 2012 Total
$ $ $ $ $

Tinigua block (Phase 1) 239,120 2,636,000 8,217,064 11,092,184

PUT 2 block (Phase 1) 226,655 5,720,769 8,123,000 14,070,424

Llanos blocks (Phase 1) 2,981,576 8,390,000 3,804,660 2,225,000 17,401,236

Total 3,447,351 16,746,769 20,144,724 2,225,000 42,563,844

At September 30, 2010, $17,763,844 of commitments have been executed since the beginning of the Company´s
exploration program.

The E&P contracts with the ANH are subject to a sliding scale royalty rate on oil and gas production. Contracts for
PUT 2, CPO 6, CPO 7 and CPO 13 are also subject to additional rights payable to the ANH of 1%, 39%, 47%, and
32% respectively.

The expenditures provided in the above tables represent the estimated costs to complete contracted
requirements and no capital commitments extend beyond 2012. Actual expenditures to satisfy these
commitments may differ significantly from the estimates.

The Company estimates that additional costs (including General and Administrative) of $34,100,000 will be
required, above the minimum commitments summarized above in order to complete the planned exploration
programs. This amount is the result of the total estimated amount of planned expenditures less the Phase 1 Total
Capital & Expenses commitment indicated above.

Provided the Company has satisfied its obligations, the Company has the right at the end of each phase to
withdraw and not to proceed to the next phase of the Exploration Period. In those circumstances, the Company
forfeits its Participating Interest but is not obligated to make any further payments.

The Company has the following rental and professional service commitments over the next five years, including
the new office lease disclosed in Note 19.
2010 $73,082
2011 $354,958
2012 $314,120
2013 $298,728
2014 $90,816

The Company has additional commitments of $80,040 relating to the new office lease for 2015.
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17 Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise trade and other payables, due to related parties and bank
loans. The main purpose of these financial instruments is to manage short term cash flow and raise finances for
the Company’s capital expenditure program. The Company has various financial assets such as trade and other
receivables, cash, block deposits and due from related parties which arise directly from its operations. The
carrying value of these financial instruments is approximated by their fair value due to their short term nature.

The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The
Company’s overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimize potential adverse effects on the Company’s financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by senior management and is overseen by the Board of Directors.

Financial risk factors

a) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will be affected by changes in market interest
rates. The Company is exposed to interest rate risk as its bank loans have a variable rate up to the point in time
where the Company draws on the line of credit at which point the interest rate becomes fixed. The Company does
not consider there to be significant exposure to cash. Based on the bank loan outstanding at September 30, 2010,
a one percent change in average interest rates would increase or decrease net income by approximately $4,500
over a full year.

b) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparties to financial instruments fails
to meet its contractual obligations. Credit risk arises from the Company’s trade and other receivable balances.
Because the Company deals with high credit quality institutions, in accordance with established credit approval
practices, the Company does not expect any counterparties to fail to meet their obligations. The Company
believes the counterparties with which they have significant transactions are well rated entities. The maximum
exposure to credit risk as at September 30, 2010 is $117,659 (December 31, 2009: $54,726).



PetroNova Inc.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial statements

Three and nine month periods ended September 30, 2010
(All amounts are expressed in US dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(unaudited)

F-20

17 Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

c) Foreign exchange risk

The Company enters into transactions denominated in currencies other than its US dollar reporting currency. Non
US dollar denominated balances, subject to exchange rate fluctuations, at period end were as follows:

September 30, 2010 December 31, 2009
$ $

Cash:
Canadian dollars 781,979
Colombian peso 150,622 8,849
Strong bolivar (Venezuela) 868

Trade and other receivables:
Colombian peso 252,957 3,933

Value added tax receivable:
Colombian peso 1,609,014 284,152

Trade and other payables:
Canadian dollars 328,181
Colombian peso 1,134,269 915,950

Bank loans:
Colombian peso 455,770

The impact on comprehensive loss for the period had the US dollar to Canadian dollar rate exchange changed by
10% and the US dollar to Colombian peso rate exchange changed by 10% would amount to approximately $80,000
(December 31, 2009: $56,000).

d) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that, as a result of operational liquidity requirements, the Company will not have sufficient
funds to settle an obligation on the due date, will be forced to sell financial assets at a price less than what they
are worth, or will be unable to settle or recover a financial asset.

The Company’s operating cash requirements are continuously monitored by management. As factors impacting
cash requirements change, liquidity risks may necessitate the need for the Company to issue equity or obtain
additional debt financing.

All of the Company’s financial liabilities are due within one year.



PetroNova Inc.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial statements

Three and nine month periods ended September 30, 2010
(All amounts are expressed in US dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(unaudited)

F-21

17 Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

e) Market risk

Market risk is the risk or uncertainty arising from possible market price movements and their impact on the future
performance of the business. The market price movements that could adversely affect the value of the Company’s
financial assets, liabilities and expected future cash flows include commodity price risk and foreign exchange risk.

18 Capital disclosures
The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can explore and develop its oil properties for the benefit of its shareholders. The capital
structure of the Company currently consists of cash, block deposits, common shares and common share purchase
warrants. The Company manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets, being oil properties. As the Company is in the
exploration stage, its principal source of funds for its operations is from the issuance of common shares.
Management reviews its capital management approach on a regular basis. The Company is not subject to
externally imposed capital requirements.

19 Subsequent events

On October 4, 2010, PetroNova Colombia Inc. established a credit facility with Inepetrol Corporation AB in the
principal amount of $1,500,000 (the “Cayman Credit Facility”). The Cayman Credit Facility has a term of 90 days,
bears interest at the LIBOR rate plus 3% and as of November 30, 2010 has been fully drawn upon.

On October 12, 2010, certain directors of the Company who were newly appointed, acquired 200,000 units at a
price of Cdn$1.00 per unit for gross proceeds of Cdn$200,000. Each unit consists of one common share of the
Company and one common share purchase warrant of the Company. Each common share purchase warrant
entitles the holder to purchase one common share at a price of Cdn$1.50 per share, and expires June 29, 2013.

Subsequent to September 30, 2010, the Company entered into an equipment lease agreement over the next 24
months at a cost of $1,170 per month.

On November 12, 2010 the Company entered into an office rental agreement for 60 months, commencing
December 1, 2010 with payments beginning January 15, 2011. The payments are as follows:

a) Monthly rent at $15,834 per month for the first 12 months, with payments increasing yearly by the
consumer price index. The Company will be responsible for the costs up to the 36 month period should
the agreement be terminated by the Company prior to this time. The monthly rent paid for months 28
through 36 will be applied against the leasehold improvement costs below. Should the owner
terminate the agreement prior to the 36 months, the Company will not have to pay rent and will be
expected to pay the remaining leasehold improvement costs below. After 36 months, either party may
terminate the agreement without penalty, but must notify the other party 3 months in advance; and

b) Administration costs of $1,492 per month.

As part of the agreement, the Company will incur leasehold improvement costs of $316,886 paid in monthly
payments of $6,670 with interest at 0.8% monthly. Should the Company terminate the agreement prior to the 60
months, they will be responsible for paying the unpaid capital amount owing.
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19 Subsequent events (continued)

The Company filed a long form prospectus on December 13, 2010, to issue 52,320,000 common shares for total
gross proceeds of Cdn$65,400,000. Pursuant to the terms of the Agency Agreement, the Company has agreed to
pay to the Agents a cash commission equal to 6% of the gross proceeds of the Offering, provided that the Agents
will only receive a commission of 3% in respect of subscriptions received from persons referred by the Company.
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AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Directors of
PetroNova Inc.

We have audited the consolidated statement of financial position of PetroNova Inc. as at
December 31, 2009 and 2008 and the consolidated statements of comprehensive income (loss),
changes in equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the three year period ended
December 31, 2009. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the
Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards.
Those standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance
whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation.

In our opinion, these consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of the Company as at December 31, 2009 and 2008 and the results of its
operations, changes in equity and its cash flows for each of the years in the three year period
ended December 31, 2009 in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

Calgary, Canada
December 13, 2010 Chartered Accountants
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PetroNova Inc.
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

(in United States dollars)
As at December 31

2009 2008
$ $

ASSETS

Current assets
Cash (Note 3) 56,681 978
Trade and other receivables (Note 4) 58,659
Due from related parties (Note 10) 179,292 3,486,646

294,632 3,487,624

Non current assets
Value added tax receivable 284,152
Faci l i ties and equipment (Note 5) 40,444
Exploration and eva luation assets (Note 6) 3,447,351
Block depos its (Note 7) 7,728,800

11,500,747
Total assets 11,795,379 3,487,624

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Current liabilities
Bank overdraft 13,094
Trade and other payables (Note 9) 975,251
Due to related parties (Note 10) 11,387,233 4,118,340
Total liabilities 12,375,578 4,118,340

Shareholders' Equity
Share capi ta l (Note 12) 1,000
Defici t (581,199) (630,716)
Total shareholders' equity (580,199) (630,716)

Total liabilities and shareholders' equity 11,795,379 3,487,624

Approved on behalf of the Company's board of directors on December 13, 2010.

(signed) “Antonio Vincentelli” (signed) “Stelvio Di Cecco”

Antonio Vincentelli, Director Stelvio Di Cecco, Director

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



F-26

PetroNova Inc.
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income (Loss)

(in United States dollars)
For the years ended December 31

2009 2008 2007

$ $ $

REVENUES

Interest income 55,900

EXPENSES
Amortization 6,383
Adminis trative expenses 10,295 129
Write off of va lue added tax 706 613,222
Write off of withholding tax 6,364
Tota l expenses 6,383 11,001 619,715

Net income (loss) 49,517 (11,001) (619,715)

49,517 (11,001) (619,715)

Bas ic and di luted earnings (loss ) per share (note 13) 171.93

Total comprehensive income (loss)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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PetroNova Inc.
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

(in United States dollars)
For the years ended December 31

Retained earnings
(deficit)

# $ $

Balance January 1, 2007
Loss for the year (619,715)

Balance at December 31, 2007 (619,715)
Loss for the year (11,001)

Balance at December 31, 2008 (630,716)
Earnings for the period January 1, 2009 to September 17, 2009 802

Deficit assumed by PetroNova upon incorporation September 17, 2009 (629,914)
Shares issued on incorporation September 17, 2009 1,000 1,000
Earnings for the period September 18, 2009 to December 31, 2009 48,715

Balance at December 31, 2009 1,000 1,000 (581,199)

Share capital

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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PetroNova Inc.
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the years ended December 31

2009 2008 2007
$ $ $

Operating activities

Net income (loss ) 49,517 (11,001) (619,715)

Amortization 6,383
Changes in non cash working capi ta l :
Trade and other receivables (note 4) (55,900)

(11,001) (619,715)

Investing activities
Advances to related parties (note 10) (4,782) (3,481,764)

(4,782) (3,481,764)

Financing activities
Cash on acquis i tion of Colombian assets and l iabi l i ties (note 10) 55,813
Issuance of shares (note 12) 1,000
Advances from related parties (note 10) 10,698 4,107,542
Repayment of advances from related parties (note 10) (1,110)

55,703 10,698 4,107,542

55,703 (5,085) 6,063

Cash, beginning of year 978 6,063

Cash, end of year 56,681 978 6,063

Total change in cash

(in United States dollars)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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1 Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements of PetroNova Inc. (“PetroNova”) and its subsidiaries (together the
“Company”) for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008 and the consolidated statements of comprehensive
income, cash flows and changes in equity for the year ended December 31, 2007 was authorized for issue in
accordance with a resolution of the Directors on December 13, 2010. The registered office of the Company is
1900, 520 Third Avenue S.W., Calgary, Canada.

PetroNova was incorporated under the Business Corporations Act (Alberta) on September 17, 2009 as a wholly
owned subsidiary of Inepetrol Corporation AB (“Inepetrol”). Prior to incorporation, PetroNova’s business being the
exploration for oil in Colombia was carried on by other direct and indirect wholly owned subsidiaries of Inepetrol
(“Predecessor Subsidiaries”). In June 2010, the Predecessor Subsidiaries transferred oil exploration assets and
related liabilities to the Company’s Colombian branch.

For all periods presented, these consolidated financial statements include the historical financial position, results
of operations and cash flows of the Colombian oil assets and liabilities acquired based on the Predecessor
Subsidiaries’ historical costs.

Pre incorporation receipts and expenditures and changes in non cash working capital, pertaining to the
accumulation of the assets and liabilities acquired, as conducted by the Predecessor Subsidiaries are reflected in
these consolidated financial statements as amounts due to and from affiliates of Inepetrol (see note 10).
Accordingly, these activities are not reported in the statement of cash flows.

For the pre incorporation period, the statement of shareholders’ equity presents a continuity of the Predecessor
Subsidiaries’ collective net investment and results of operations for the assets and liabilities acquired.

Future operations

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis which contemplates the
realization of assets and the payment of liabilities in the ordinary course of business. Should the Company be
unable to continue as a going concern, it may be unable to realize the carrying value of its assets and meet its
liabilities as they become due. For the year ended December 31, 2009, the Company had income of $49,517 and
as at December 31, 2009 had an accumulated deficit of $581,199. There is approximately $36 million in
commitments relating to the activities in the interests in the Blocks.

The Company’s ability to continue as a going concern is dependent upon its ability to attain profitable operations
and generate funds therefrom, and to obtain borrowings from third parties sufficient to meet current and future
obligations. Management expects that the Company will be able to secure the necessary financing to meet the
Company’s requirements on an ongoing basis. These consolidated financial statements do not reflect the
adjustments or reclassification of assets and liabilities which would be necessary if the Company were unable to
continue its operations.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies

The consolidated financial statements are stated in United States dollars (“US dollars”) and have been prepared on
a going concern basis, under the historical cost convention.

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of PetroNova Inc., the Parent Company,
and its subsidiaries PetroNova International Inc., PetroNova Colombia Inc. and its Colombian branch, as at
December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date
on which PetroNova obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases. The
financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as PetroNova, using consistent
accounting policies.

All intra company balances, income and expenses and unrealised gains and losses resulting from intra company
transactions are eliminated in full.

Statement of compliance
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS”) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”).

2.1 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

Estimates and assumptions
The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities at the
date of the consolidated financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Estimates and judgments are continuously evaluated and are based on management’s
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. However, actual outcomes can differ from these estimates.

The key sources of estimation uncertainty that have a significant risk of causing material adjustment to the
amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements are: the assessment of commercial reserves, the
impairment of the Company’s assets (including development and production assets and exploration and evaluation
(“E&E”) assets), capital commitments and decommissioning provisions.

Judgements
In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgements,
apart from those involving estimates, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements:
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2.1 Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions (continued)

Assessment of commercial reserves

Management is required to assess the level of the Company’s commercial reserves together with the future
expenditures to access those reserves, which are utilized in determining the amortization and depletion charge for
the period and assessing whether any impairment charge is required. The Company employs independent reserve
specialists who periodically assess the Company’s level of commercial reserves by reference to data sets including
geological, geophysical and engineering data together with reports, presentation and financial information
pertaining to the contractual and fiscal terms applicable to the Company’s assets. In addition, the Company
undertakes its own assessment of commercial reserves and related future capital expenditures by reference to the
same datasets using its own internal expertise. As the Company is in the exploration phase of development, there
are presently no identifiable commercial reserves.

Impairment

At each reporting date, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its facilities and equipment and exploration
and evaluation assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. Individual assets are grouped together as a cash generating unit for impairment assessment purposes at the
lowest level at which there are identifiable cash inflows that are independent from other group assets. In the case
of exploration and evaluation assets, this will normally be at the Company’s field level. If any such indication of
impairment exists, the Company makes an estimate of its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. Where the carrying amount of a cash generating unit exceeds
its recoverable amount, the cash generating unit is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable
amount. In assessing the value in use, the estimated future cash flows are adjusted for the risks specific to the cash
generating unit and are discounted to their present value with a discount rate that reflects the current market
indicators. Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset cash generating unit
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the
cash generating unit in prior periods. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.

Decommissioning provisions

Management has determined, based on their understanding of the contractual agreements in Colombia to which
they are party, that the Company at its present stage of development, does not have any legal or constructive
obligation for future decommissioning costs as at December 31, 2009. However these assumptions involve
judgment, which may be subject to change, and therefore the position will be reviewed on an ongoing basis. A
change in circumstances may also result in a liability being recorded in future periods.
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2.1 Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions (continued)

Income taxes

The Company recognises the net future tax benefit related to deferred income tax assets to the extent that it is
probable that the deductible temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future. Assessing the
recoverability of deferred income tax assets requires the Company to make significant estimates related to
expectations of future taxable income. Estimates of future taxable income are based on forecast cash flows from
operations and the application of existing tax laws in each jurisdiction. To the extent that future cash flows and
taxable income differ significantly from estimates, the ability of the Company to realise the net deferred tax assets
recorded at the consolidated statement of financial position date could be impacted.

In addition, future changes in tax laws in the jurisdictions in which the Company operates could limit the ability of
the Company to obtain tax deductions in future periods.

Contingencies

By their nature, contingencies will only be resolved when one or more future events occur or fail to occur. The
assessment of contingencies inherently involves the exercise of significant judgement and estimates of the
outcome of future events.

Fair value of financial instruments

The estimated fair value of financial assets and liabilities, by their very nature, are subject to measurement
uncertainty. Trade receivables are stated after evaluation as to their collectability and an appropriate allowance
for doubtful accounts is provided where considered necessary.

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies

Continuity of interest
Business combinations involving related parties under common control in which there is no substantive change in
the owner’s interest of the business transferred will be accounted for using the continuity of interest method of
accounting. Under this method the consolidated financial statements of the transferee should reflect the assets
and liabilities of the transferred business at their net book value as reported in the financial statements of the
transferred business.

Interests in joint ventures
The Company has joint venture arrangements with one or more unaffiliated entities, over jointly controlled assets.
The arrangements are accounted for using the proportionate consolidation method as follows:

The consolidated statement of financial position includes the Company’s share of the assets that it
controls jointly and the liabilities for which it is jointly responsible;
The consolidated statement of comprehensive income (loss) includes the Company’s share of the income
and expenses of the jointly controlled assets; and
Gains on transactions between the Company and its joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the
Company’s interest in the joint ventures, and losses are eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
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2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Foreign currency translation
The functional currencies of PetroNova and its subsidiaries are as follows:

PetroNova Inc. Canadian dollar
PetroNova International Inc. United States dollar
PetroNova Colombia Inc. United States dollar

The consolidated financial statements are presented in US dollars. Management selected the US dollar as the
reporting currency as it best facilitated comparability with industry peers.

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Company’s subsidiaries are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the “functional currency”). Non monetary
transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transaction. Monetary transactions are translated into the functional currency using the period end rate. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary
assets and liabilities not denominated in the functional currency of an entity are recognized in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income (loss).

Assets and liabilities of entities with functional currencies other than US dollars are translated at the period end
rates of exchange, and the results of their operations are translated at average rates of exchange for the period.
The resulting translation adjustments are included in accumulated other comprehensive income in shareholders’
equity. Additionally, foreign exchange gains and losses related to certain intercompany loans that are permanent
in nature are included in accumulated other comprehensive income.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings, cash and certain intercompany loans that are not
permanent in nature are presented in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income (loss) within “finance
costs, net”. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income (loss) within “operating expenses”. The Company currently does not have any items of this
nature.

Oil and natural gas exploration, evaluation and development expenditures
In accordance with IFRS 6, the Company has continued to apply the accounting policies of its Predecessor Entities
with respect to E&E activity, subject to the specific requirements of IFRS 6. The Company will continue to monitor
the application of these policies in light of expected future guidance on accounting for oil and gas activities.

Pre license costs

Costs incurred prior to the award of oil and gas licenses, concessions and other exploration rights are expensed in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income (loss).
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2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

E&E costs

The costs of exploring for and evaluating of oil and gas properties, including the costs of acquiring rights to explore,
geological and geophysical studies, exploratory drilling and directly related overhead costs, are capitalized.

E&E assets are not amortized prior to the conclusion of appraisal activities but are assessed for impairment at
either a cash generating unit (“CGU”) or segment level when facts and circumstances suggest that the carrying
amount of the CGU or segment may exceed its recoverable amount. Recoverable amounts are determined based
upon risked potential, and where relevant, discovered oil and gas reserves. When an impairment test indicates an
excess of carrying value compared to the recoverable amount, the carrying value of the CGU or segment is written
down to the recoverable amount in accordance with IAS 36. Such excess is expensed in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income (loss).

Proceeds received from the disposal of E&E assets are credited against capitalized costs. Any excess of proceeds
over capitalized costs are charged to earnings in the period.

The E&E phase is completed when the technical feasibility and commercial viability of extracting a mineral
resource are demonstrable. At that point, if commercial reserves have been discovered, the carrying value of the
relevant assets, net of any impairment write down, is classified as an oil and gas property within exporation and
development, and tested for impairment. If commercial reserves have not been discovered then the costs of such
assets will be retained within the relevant geographical E&E segment until subject to impairment or
relinquishment.

Oil and gas properties

Oil and gas properties are stated at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
Oil and gas properties are accumulated at a field level and represent the cost of developing the commercial
reserves and bringing them into production together with the E&E expenditures incurred in finding commercial
reserves previously transferred from E&E assets as outlined in the policy above. For qualifying assets, the cost will
include borrowing costs.

A review is performed for any indication that the value of the Company’s oil and gas properties may be impaired.
When there are such indications, an impairment test is carried out on the CGU. The Company’s CGU’s are those
assets which generate largely independent cash inflows and are normally, but not always, field or production
areas. If necessary, impairment is charged through the consolidated statement of comprehensive income (loss) if
the capitalised costs of the CGU exceed the associated estimated future discounted cash flows of the related
commercial oil and gas reserves.

Depreciation

Oil and gas properties are not depleted until production commences. Costs relating to each single field cost centre
are depleted on a unit of production method based on the commercial proved and probable reserves for that cost
centre. The depletion calculation takes account of the estimated future costs of development of recognized proved
and probable reserves. Changes in reserve quantities and cost estimates are recognized prospectively from the last
reporting date.
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2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Facilities and equipment
Facilities and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
Facilities and equipment are generally depreciated on a straight line basis over their estimated useful life of
between three and five years.

Share based payment transactions
Employees of the Company receive remuneration in the form of a share based payment transaction, whereby
employees render services as consideration for common shares issued at the prevailing market price (“equity
settled transactions”). In situations where equity instruments are issued and some or all of the goods or services
received by the entity as consideration cannot be specifically identified, the unidentified goods or services are
measured as the difference between the fair value of the share based payment transaction and the fair value of
any identifiable goods or services received at the grant date. This is then capitalized or expensed as appropriate.
The cost of equity settled transactions with employees is measured by reference to the fair value of the shares at
the date on which they are granted.

Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized on the Company’s consolidated statement of financial
position when the Company becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets are
de recognized when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire or when the
contractual rights to those assets are transferred. Financial liabilities are de recognized when the obligation
specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks and other short term highly
liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less. These are carried at fair value with gains or
losses recognized through the consolidated statement of comprehensive income (loss).

Trade and other receivables
Trade and other receivables and amounts due from related parties, which are non derivative financial assets that
have fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market, are classified as loans and
receivables. They are included in current assets, except for maturities greater than 12 months after the reporting
date, which are classified as non current assets.

Loans and receivables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest rate method, net of any impairment.

A provision for impairment of loans and receivables is established when there is objective evidence that the
Company will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of the receivables. Significant
financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganization and
default or delinquency in payments are considered indicators that the loans and receivables are impaired. The
amount of the provision is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced
through the use of an allowance account, and the amount of the loss is recognized in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income (loss). When a loan and receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account for loans and receivables.
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2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Block deposits
Held to maturity investments are non derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and a fixed
maturity date that the Company has the intent and ability to hold to maturity. These financial assets are measured
at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Any gains or losses arising from the sale of a held to
maturity investment are included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income (loss). The Company’s
block deposits are designated as held to maturity.

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities include interest bearing bank loans, amounts due to related parties and trade and other
payables. Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary
course of business from suppliers. Financial liabilities are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within
one year or less. If not, they are presented as non current liabilities.

Financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest rate method.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

2.3 Recent accounting pronouncements

Certain new standards, interpretations, amendments and improvements to existing standards were issued by the
IASB or International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (“IFRIC”) that are mandatory for accounting
periods beginning after January 1, 2010 or later periods. The standards impacted that are applicable to the
Company are as follows:

i) IFRS 2 “Share based payments” provides further guidance on determining the classification of share based
payment awards and is linked to the application of IFRS 3 (revised). The amendments are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2009. The amendment will not result in a material impact on the
Company’s consolidated financial statements.

ii) IFRS 3 “Business Combinations (Revised)” effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2009,
have been enhanced to, amongst other matters, specify the accounting treatments for acquisition costs,
contingent consideration, pre existing relationships and reacquired rights. The revised standards include
detailed guidance in respect of step acquisitions and partial disposals of subsidiaries and associates as well
as in respect of allocation of income to non controlling interests. Further, an option has been added to IFRS
3 to permit an entity to recognize 100 per cent of the goodwill of an acquired entity, not just the acquiring
entity’s portion of the goodwill. The impact of this standard on the Company will be assessed when a
business combination transaction occurs.

iii) IFRS 8 “Operating Segments” which provides further requirements for disclosure of information about
segment assets and is effective for periods beginning on or after January 1, 2010 has no impact on
disclosure of segment assets currently reported by the Company.
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2.3 Recent accounting pronouncements (continued)

iv) IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” was issued in November 2009 as the first step in its project to replace IAS 39
“Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”. IFRS 9 introduces new requirements for classifying
and measuring financial assets that must be applied starting January 1, 2013, with early adoption permitted.
The IASB intends to expand IFRS 9 during the intervening period to add new requirements for classifying and
measuring financial liabilities, de recognition of financial instruments, impairment and hedge accounting.
The Company is currently assessing the impact of this standard.

v) IAS 27 “Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements (Amendments)” effective for annual periods
beginning on or after July 1, 2009, prescribes accounting treatment in respect of change in ownership
interest in a subsidiary, allocation of losses incurred by a subsidiary between controlling and non controlling
interests and accounting for loss of interest in a subsidiary. This may affect the Company where a subsidiary
with non controlling interest becomes loss making or there is a change in ownership interest in any of its
subsidiaries. The Company is currently assessing the impact of this standard.

vi) IAS 38 (amendment), “Intangible Assets”. The amendment is part of the IASB’s annual improvements
project published in April 2009 and the Company will apply IAS 38 (amendment) from the date IFRS 3
(revised) is adopted. The amendment clarifies guidance in measuring fair value of an intangible asset
acquired in a business combination and it permits the grouping of intangible assets as a single asset if each
asset has similar useful economic lives. The amendment will not result in a material impact on the
Company’s consolidated financial statements.

vii) IFRIC 17 “Distributions of Non cash Assets to Owners”. This interpretation provides guidance in respect of
accounting for non cash asset distributions to shareholders and is effective for periods beginning on or after
July 1, 2009. Management will consider its impact on the financial position of the Company at the time of
any such transaction.

viii) Exposure Draft 9 ("ED 9"), ‘Joint Arrangements’ was issued September 2007 and is intended to replace IAS
31 Interest in Joint Ventures (IAS 31). The types of arrangements addressed by ED 9 are essentially the same
as those covered by IAS 31, although some of the terminology has been changed. The principal change to
IAS 31 is that proportionate consolidation of jointly controlled entities will no longer be allowed. The IASB
has not yet issued the final IFRS although it is expected to be issued during the fourth quarter of 2010. The
Company is currently assessing the impact of this proposed standard.

3 Cash

December 31,
2009

$

December 31,
2008

$

Cash at banks 56,681 978

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates.
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4 Trade and other receivables

December 31,
2009

$

December 31,
2008

$

Current
Interest receivable 54,726
Joint venture receivables and prepayments 3,933

58,659

Interest receivable is due at the maturity date of the block deposits.

Joint venture receivables and prepayments for the Company include an amount in respect of $3,933 (2008: $nil)
receivable from third parties.

5 Facilities and equipment

Computer and
telecommunication

equipment
$

Furniture
and fixture

$
Total

$

Cost
At December 31, 2008
Additions 15,447 31,380 46,827
At December 31, 2009 15,447 31,380 46,827

Accumulated depreciation
At December 31, 2008
Charge for the year (1,244) (5,139) (6,383)
At December 31, 2009 (1,244) (5,139) (6,383)

Net book value
At December 31, 2008
At December 31, 2009 14,203 26,241 40,444
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6 Exploration and evaluation assets

Cost as at December 31, 2008
Additions 3,447,351
Cost as at December 31, 2009 $ 3,447,351

Net book value as at December 31, 2008
Net book value as at December 31, 2009 $ 3,447,351

Of the total exploration and evaluation assets incurred, $28,377 relate to tangible assets, while the remaining
expenditures are intangible in nature.

In December 2008, the ANH awarded a number of exploration and production blocks to the Company as follows:

Putumayo – PUT 2 Block (“PUT 2”)

On February 18, 2009, the Block Putumayo PUT 2 Exploration and Production Contract (the “PUT 2 E&P Contract”)
was signed by the ANH and a Predecessor Subsidiary. In March 2010, the ANH approved the transfer of 100% of
the interests, rights and obligations in the PUT 2 E&P Contract to the Company’s Colombian branch. The
assignment of the PUT 2 E&P Contract to the Company and assumption of related liabilities was completed on
June 28, 2010.

Tinigua Block (“Tinigua”)

On January 23, 2009, the Tinigua Exploration and Production Contract (the "Tinigua E&P Contract") was signed by
the ANH and a Predecessor Subsidiary. In March 2010, the ANH approved the transfer of 100% of the interests,
rights and obligations in the Tinigua E&P Contract to the Company's Colombian branch. The assignment of the
Tinigua E&P Contract to the Company and assumption of related liabilities was completed on June 28, 2010.

Pursuant to a private participation agreement dated May 10, 2010 (the "Tinigua Participation Agreement"), the
Company assigned 10% of its rights to the Tinigua E&P Contract to a third party. Under the terms of the Tinigua
Participation Agreement, the Company is required to pay all costs and expenses until the completion of
perforation and testing of the first exploration well as prescribed in the Tinigua Phase 2 exploration period, at
which time the third party may elect to participate further in Tinigua. Should the third party elect to participate, it
is responsible for 10% of all future costs, is obligated to repay the Company its share of incurred costs and
expenses and is entitled to the formal assignment of a 10% interest in the Tinigua E&P Contract from the ANH.
Should the third party elect not to participate, its 10% interest reverts back to the Company without further
obligation.

Llanos Blocks
On January 14, 2009, the ANH, Tecpecol and a Predecessor Subsidiary entered into a series of exploration and
production contracts for each of the three Llanos blocks (collectively, the “Llanos E&P Contracts”) pursuant to
which the Predecessor Subsidiary acquired a 20% working interest. In March 2010, the ANH approved the transfer
of 20% of the interests, rights and obligations in the Llanos E&P Contracts to the Company’s Colombian branch.
The assignment of the Llanos E&P Contracts to the Company and assumption of related liabilities was completed
on June 28, 2010.
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6 Exploration and evaluation assets (continued)

General
In respect of the PUT 2 and Tinigua blocks, where the Company is operator, the Company will conduct the
activities and operations at its exclusive cost and risk, providing all resources necessary to prepare and carry out
the activities and operations of exploration, evaluation, development and production of the engaged area. In
respect of the non operated Llanos blocks, the Company is responsible for its 20% working interest share of all
costs. The exploration and production activities will last up to 30 years depending on whether a commercial
development exists.

Management performed an assessment on its exploration and evaluation assets at December 31, 2009 and there
were no indications of impairment therefore, no impairment provision has been recognized in the consolidated
financial statements.

7 Block deposits
At December 31, 2009, the Company maintained on deposit with the Banco de Bogota and the Occidental Bank
Barbados Ltd., certain amounts to guarantee the issuance of guarantees, to the ANH. The deposits bear interest at
rates ranging between 1.75% 3.80% and have maturities ranging from one to two years. The breakdown of the
deposits for each block is as follows:

December 31, 2009

PUT 2 2,137,600
Tinigua 371,200
Llanos block:

CPO 6 1,868,000
CPO 7 1,636,000
CPO 13 1,716,000

Total $ 7,728,800

8 Interest in joint ventures
Pursuant to the Llanos E&P Contracts, joint venture arrangements were established in respect of the Llanos blocks
between Tecpecol and a Predecessor Subsidiary. Under the terms of the Llanos E&P Contracts, Tecpecol holds an
80% working interest and the Predecessor Subsidiary held a 20% working interest. Tecpecol is the operator of the
Llanos blocks.

In March 2010, the ANH approved the transfer of the Predecessor Subsidiary’s 20% working interest in the Llanos
blocks to the Company’s Colombian branch. The assignment of the Llanos E&P Contracts and assumption of
related liabilities was completed in June 2010. The Company is responsible for 20% of the capital costs and is
entitled to 20% of all future production revenue.
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9 Trade and other payables
December 31,

2009
$

December 31,
2008

$

Current
Withholding taxes payable 103,158
Joint venture payables 872,093

975,251

Withholding taxes payable of $103,158 (2008: $nil) is a result of estimated tax owing on the net assets acquired
during the period, in accordance with Colombian tax laws.

10 Related party disclosure

The consolidated financial statements of the Company involve transactions with related parties listed in the
following table:

Name
Country of

incorporation Relationship
PetroNova International Inc. Cayman Islands 100% owned subsidiary
PetroNova Colombia Inc. Cayman Islands 100% owned subsidiary
Inepetrol Corporation AB Sweden Subject to Common control
Inepetrol S.A. Venezuela Subject to Common control
Ineparia Inc. Cayman Islands Subject to Common control
Inepetrol Investments Ltd. British Virgin Islands Common shareholders
Newton Investments Company Cayman Islands Common shareholders
Inelectra S.A.C.A. Venezuela Common shareholders
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10 Related party disclosure (continued)

Related party transactions
The following table provides the total amount of transactions that have been entered into with related parties
including the outstanding balances as at December 31:

Amounts owed by related parties:
December 31,

2009
$

December 31,
2008

$

Inepetrol Corporation AB 1,000
Ineparia Inc. 140,947 3,449,301
Inepetrol S.A. 37,345 37,345

179,292 3,486,646

Amounts owed to related parties:
Inepetrol S.A. 11,357,497 4,088,705
Inelectra S.A.C.A. 29,736 29,635

11,387,233 4,118,340

Included in the amount owing to Inepetrol S.A. at December 31, 2009 is $10,572,146 owing as a result of an Asset
Purchase and Liability Assumption Agreement entered into in June 2010 (see note 1 and note 17). This agreement
was a non cash transaction. Since there was no substantive change in control, the financial statements have been
prepared using the “continuity of interests” method, as though the companies had been combined since inception.
As a result, the assets and liabilities transferred have been recorded at historical carrying values as follows:

Cash $ 55,813
Trade and other receivables 3,933
Value added tax receivable 284,152
Facilities and equipment 40,444
Exploration and evaluation assets 3,447,351
Block deposits 7,728,800
Bank loan (13,094)
Trade and other payables (872,095)
Withholding tax payable (103,158)
Net assets $ 10,572,146

The related party transactions are non interest bearing and due on demand. These transactions occurred in the
normal course of operations and are recorded at the exchange amounts.
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11 Income taxes

The Company does not have any significant tax reconciling items for the years ended December 31, 2009 or 2008.

12 Share capital and reserves

Authorized shares

Class A common shares Unlimited, no par value
Preferred shares Unlimited, no par value

Issued common shares

Number of
shares

Amount
$

At December 31, 2008
Issued on September 17, 2009 for cash (i) 1,000 1,000
At December 31, 2009 1,000 1,000

(i) On incorporation the Company issued 1,000 common shares for $1,000 to Inepetrol Corporation AB. The
shares remain unpaid at December 31, 2009.

Foreign currency translation reserve

No foreign currency translation adjustment was recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income.

13 Basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share

Basic income (loss) per share amounts are calculated by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to common
shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the year.

The Company does not have any dilutive instruments, accordingly, the basic and diluted earnings per share are the
same as there are no dilutive effects on earnings.

December 31,
2009

December 31,
2008

December 31,
2007

$ $ $
Net income (loss) 49,517 (11,001) (619,715)
Weighted average shares outstanding 288
Basic and diluted earnings (loss) per common share 171.93
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14 Commitments
At December 31, 2009, the Company has estimated the following disbursements for phase 1 of the exploratory
programs relating to its interest in the blocks outlined in Note 6.

Capital & Expenses (including those related to joint ventures)

Actual 2009 2010 2011 2012 Total
$ $ $ $ $

Tinigua block (Phase 1) 239,120 2,636,000 8,217,064 11,092,184

PUT 2 block (Phase 1) 226,655 5,720,769 8,123,000 14,070,424

Llanos blocks (Phase 1) 2,981,576 8,390,000 3,804,660 2,225,000 17,401,236

Total 3,447,351 16,746,769 20,144,724 2,225,000 42,563,844

At December 31, 2009, $3,447,351 of commitments have been executed since the beginning of the Company´s
exploration program.

The E&P contracts with the ANH are subject to a sliding scale royalty rate on oil and gas production. Contracts for
PUT 2, CPO 6, CPO 7 and CPO 13 are also subject to additional rights payable to the ANH of 1%, 39%, 47%, and
32% respectively.

The expenditures provided in the above tables represent the estimated costs to complete contracted
requirements and no capital commitments extend beyond 2012. Actual expenditures to satisfy these
commitments may differ significantly from the estimates.

The Company estimates that additional costs (including General and Administrative) of $34,100,000 will be
required, above the minimum commitments summarized above in order to complete the planned exploration
programs. This amount is the result of the total estimated amount of planned expenditures less the Phase 1 Total
Capital & Expenses commitment indicated above.

Provided the Company has satisfied its obligations, the Company has the right at the end of each phase to
withdraw and not to proceed to the next phase of the Exploration Period. In those circumstances, the Company
forfeits its Participating Interest but is not obligated to make any further payments.
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15 Financial risk management objectives and policies
The Company’s principal financial liabilities include trade and other payables and due to related parties. The main
purpose of these financial instruments is to manage short term cash flow and raise finances for the Company’s
capital expenditure program. The Company has various financial assets such as trade and other receivables, cash,
block deposits and due from related parties, which arise directly from its operations. The carrying value of these
financial instruments is approximated by their fair value due to their short term nature.

The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The
Company’s overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimize potential adverse effects on the Company’s financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by senior management and overseen by the Board of Directors.

Financial risk factors

a) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will be affected by changes in market interest
rates.

As at December 31, 2009 and 2008 the Company had no material exposure to changes in interest rates.

b) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to financial instruments fails to
meet its contractual obligations. Credit risk arises from the Company’s trade and other receivable balances.
Because the Company deals with high credit quality institutions, in accordance with established credit approval
practices, the Company does not expect any counterparties to fail to meet their obligations. The Company
believes the counter parties with which they have significant transactions are well rated entities. The maximum
exposure to credit risk as at December 31, 2009 is $54,726. (2008: nil).

c) Foreign exchange risk

The Company enters into transactions denominated in currencies other than its US dollar reporting currency. Non
US dollar denominated balances, subject to exchange rate fluctuations, at year end were as follows:

December 31, 2009 December 31, 2008
$ $

Trade and other receivables:
Colombian peso 3,933

Cash:
Colombian peso 8,849
Strong bolivar (Venezuela) 868 978

Value added tax receivable:
Colombian peso 284,152

Trade and other payables:
Colombian peso 915,950
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15 Financial risk management objectives and policies
The impact on the net loss and comprehensive loss for the year had the US dollar to Canadian dollar exchange rate
changed by 10% and the US dollar to Colombian peso exchange rate changed by 10% would amount to
approximately $56,000.

d) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that, as a result of operational liquidity requirements, the Company will not have sufficient
funds to settle an obligation on the due date, will be forced to sell financial assets at a price less than what they
are worth, or will be unable to settle or recover a financial asset.

The Company’s operating cash requirements are continuously monitored by management. As factors impacting
cash requirements change, liquidity risks may necessitate the need for the Company to issue equity or obtain
additional debt financing.

All of the Company’s financial liabilities are due within one year.

e) Market risk

Market risk is the risk or uncertainty arising from possible market price movements and their impact on the future
performance of the business. The market price movements that could adversely affect the value of the Company’s
financial assets, liabilities and expected future cash flows include commodity price risk and foreign exchange risk.

16 Capital disclosures
The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can explore and develop its oil properties for the benefit of its shareholders. The capital
structure of the Company currently consists of its cash and cash equivalents, block deposits, common shares and
common share purchase warrants. The Company manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in
light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets, being oil properties.
As the Company is in the exploration stage, its principal source of funds for its operations is from the issuance of
common shares. Management reviews its capital management approach on a regular basis. The Company is not
subject to externally imposed capital requirements.
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17 Subsequent events
Share capital

In June 2010, the Articles of Incorporation were amended to revise the share structure and to convert the Class
“A” Shares into Common Shares.

Private placement

The Company closed a private placement issuing 10,000,000 units for gross proceeds of $9,498,000 ($0.94 per
unit) less issuance costs of $639,564. Each unit consists of one common share ($0.93 per common share) of the
Company and one common share purchase warrant ($0.01 per warrant) of the Company. Each common share
purchase warrant entitles the holder to purchase one common share at a price of Cdn$1.50 per share for a period
of thirty six months following the closing date of the private placement.

Remuneration shares

The Company issued 4,120,258 common shares to management personnel and others as consideration for past
services. The common shares were issued at a deemed fair value of $0.20. A related expense of $823,797 was
included in salaries and wages in the consolidated statement of comprehensive loss for the nine month period
ended September 30, 2010. No observable market price was available to determine the fair value of the common
shares issued as consideration for the past services received. The Company determined the fair value of the
common shares issued, using managements’ best estimate of fair value giving consideration to facts known at the
time of grant including the fair value of anticipated future assets to be acquired. Neither expected dividends nor
any other equity features were factored into the determination of their fair value.

Reorganization Transactions

On June 28, 2010, the Company completed a series of transactions pursuant to which PetroNova Inc. indirectly
acquired the Colombian assets, the rights to $8,728,000 of performance guarantees (including the cash collateral
of $7,728,000 million posted there fore) issued in favour of the ANH and assumed approximately $2.3 million in
liabilities associated with the Colombian assets and issued 98,660,044 common shares at a deemed price of $0.2
per common share for aggregate consideration of $19,732,009.

In November 2009, Inepetrol S.A. borrowed $15,232,008 from approximately 160 Inepetrol Corporation AB
shareholders. This indebtedness was evidenced by the issuance of the shareholders’ promissory notes. Pursuant to
individual debt purchase and sale agreements between the Company and the Inepetrol Corporation AB
shareholders dated June 28, 2010, the Company acquired the shareholders’ promissory notes in exchange for an
aggregate of 76,160,044 common shares.

On June 3, 2010, Inepetrol S.A. authorized a dividend of $4,500,000 to Inepetrol Corporation AB. The dividend was
satisfied through the issuance by Inepetrol S.A. of the Inepetrol S.A. promissory note. Pursuant to a debt purchase
and sale agreement between the Company and Inepetrol Corporation AB dated June 28, 2010, the Company
acquired the Inepetrol S.A. promissory note from Inepetrol Corporation AB in exchange for the issuance of
22,500,000 common shares to Inepetrol Corporation AB.

Pursuant to the Asset Purchase Agreement, Petronova Colombia Inc. acquired the Colombian assets from Inepetrol
S.A. for a purchase price of approximately $14.8 million. The purchase price was satisfied through the payment of
approximately $0.5 million in cash, the assumption by Petronova Colombia Inc. of approximately $2.3 million in
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liabilities associated with the Colombian assets and the issuance by Petronova Colombia Inc. to Inepetrol S.A. of a
demand promissory note of approximately $12.0 million.

17 Subsequent events (continued)

Following the acquisition of the promissory notes by the Company, the Company assigned the promissory notes to
Petronova International Inc. for Petronova International Inc. shares.

Subsequent to the acquisition of the Colombian assets by Petronova Colombia Inc. for the consideration set out
above, the shares of Petronova Colombia Inc. were acquired by Petronova International Inc. pursuant to the terms
of the Share Purchase Agreement for consideration of $100, being the difference between the value of the
Petronova Colombia Inc. assets and amount of the outstanding Petronova Colombia Inc. liabilities.

Subsequent to the acquisition of the shares of Petronova Colombia Inc. by Petronova International Inc., Petronova
International Inc. assigned the promissory notes to Petronova Colombia Inc. for Petronova Colombia Inc. shares.
Pursuant to a set off agreement dated June 28, 2010, Petronova Colombia Inc. fully satisfied its obligations to
Inepetrol S.A. under the $12.0 million demand promissory notes issued for the Colombian Assets and acquired the
rights to $8.7 million of performance guarantees (including the cash collateral of $7.7 million posted therefore) in
exchange for the surrender of the promissory notes.

Block deposits

Effective July 16, 2010, the block deposit in Occidental Bank Barbados of $2,137,500, and effective July 28, 2010,
the block deposits in Banco de Bogotá of $5,591,300, previously held by a Predecessor Subsidiary were transferred
to the Company. These funds are maintained on deposit as collateral for certain performance guarantees (see
note 8).

Debt forgiveness
On September 20, 2010, the Company recognized debt forgiveness from Inepetrol S.A. of $320,571 as a result of
the Company winding up the Gulf of Paria East Operating Company (“GOPEOC”), one of the predecessor entities
acquired by the Company. GOPEOC was an inactive Venezuelan entity with residual balances, predating its
acquisition by the Company.

Inepetrol S.A. loan
During the nine month period ended September 30, 2010, the Company advanced $500,000 to Inepetrol S.A.
which bears interest at the 12 month Libor rate of 1.14% plus EMBI 1198 (Emerging Market Bond Index) annually
and is repayable on July 12, 2013. The funds were advanced to allow Inepetrol S.A. to repay an operating loan that
was outstanding to a company under common control with Inelectra S.A.C.A., Newton Investments Company. At
September 30, 2010, $14,378 of interest receivable is included in the balance owing from Inepetrol S.A. The
remaining related party transactions are non interest bearing and due on demand. These transactions occurred in
the normal course of operations and are recorded at the exchange amount.

Credit facility
On October 4, 2010, PetroNova Colombia Inc. established a credit facility with Inepetrol Corporation AB in the
principal amount of $1,500,000 (the “Cayman Credit Facility”). The Cayman Credit Facility has a term of 90 days,
bears interest at the LIBOR rate plus 3% and as of November 30, 2010 has been fully drawn upon.
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17 Subsequent events (continued)

Bank loans
During the nine month period ended September 30, 2010, the Company received two credit lines, one through the
Banco de Occidente which bears interest on a weekly basis at a variable rate (at the fixed term deposit rate plus
2%) and is secured by a promissory note issued by Inepetrol Corporation AB and the Company’s Colombian branch
and has maximum credit available of $391,345. The term of the loan is 180 days. The second loan is with Banco de
Bogotá and bears interest at a fixed term deposit rate plus 4%, is secured by a promissory note issued by the
Company´s Colombian branch and has maximum credit available of $489,181. The term of the loan is 90 days. The
interest rates on these loans are fixed at the time the funds are drawn upon.

Rental agreement
On November 12, 2010 the Company entered into an office rental agreement for 60 months, commencing
December 1, 2010 with payments beginning January 15, 2011. The payments are as follows:

a) Monthly rent at $15,834 per month for the first 12 months, with payments increasing yearly by the
consumer price index. The Company will be responsible for the costs up to the 36 month period should
the agreement be terminated by the Company prior to this time. The monthly rent paid for months 28
through 36 will be applied against the leasehold improvement costs below. Should the owner
terminate the agreement prior to the 36 months, the Company will not have to pay rent and will be
expected to pay the remaining leasehold improvement costs below. After 36 months, either party may
terminate the agreement without penalty, but must notify the other party 3 months in advance; and

b) Administration costs of $1,492 per month.

As part of the agreement, the Company will incur leasehold improvement costs of $316,886 paid in monthly
payments of $6,670 with interest at 0.8% monthly. Should the Company terminate the agreement prior to the 60
months, they will be responsible for paying the unpaid capital amount owing.

Equipment lease
Subsequent to September 30, 2010, the Company entered into an equipment lease agreement over the next 24
months at a cost of $1,170 per month.

Long form prospectus
The Company filed a long form prospectus on December 13, 2010, to issue 52,320,000 common shares for total
gross proceeds of Cdn$65,400,000. Pursuant to the terms of the Agency Agreement, the Company has agreed to
pay to the Agents a cash commission equal to 6% of the gross proceeds of the Offering, provided that the Agents
will only receive a commission of 3% in respect of subscriptions received from persons referred by the Company.
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APPENDIX A – AUDIT COMMITTEE MANDATE 

Purpose 

1. The purpose of the Audit Committee is to assist the board of directors (the “Board”) of PetroNova Inc. (the 
“Corporation”) in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities by reviewing the financial information which will 
be provided to shareholders of the Corporation and others, the systems of corporate financial controls 
which management and the Board have established and the audit process.  More specifically the purpose of 
the Audit Committee is to satisfy itself that: 

(a) The Corporation’s annual financial statements are fairly presented in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles and to recommend to the Board whether the annual financial 
statements should be approved. 

(b) The information contained in the Corporation’s quarterly financial statements, annual report to 
shareholders and other financial publications, such as management’s discussion and analysis, is 
complete and accurate in all material respects and to approve these materials. 

(c) The Corporation has appropriate systems of internal control over the safeguarding of assets and 
financial reporting to ensure compliance with legal and regulatory requirements. 

(d) The external audit functions have been effectively carried out and that any matter which the 
independent auditors wish to bring to the attention of the Board has been addressed. The Audit 
Committee will also recommend to the Board the re-appointment or appointment of auditors and 
their remuneration. 

Composition and Process 

2. Following each annual meeting of shareholders of the Corporation, the Board shall appoint not less than 
three directors to serve on the Audit Committee, each of whom shall be financially literate as such term is 
defined in then current laws applicable to the Corporation, and a majority of whom shall be independent as 
that term is defined in then current laws applicable to the Corporation. 

3. The Chairman of the Audit Committee shall be appointed by the Board, or if it does not do so, the members 
of the Audit Committee may elect a Chairman by vote of a majority of the full Audit Committee 
membership and the Chairman of the Audit Committee shall be independent as that term is defined in then 
current laws applicable to the Corporation.

4. Any member of the Audit Committee may be removed or replaced at any time by the Board and shall cease 
to be a member upon ceasing to be a director of the Corporation. Each member of the Audit Committee 
shall hold office until the close of the next annual meeting of shareholders of the Corporation or until the 
member resigns or is replaced, whichever first occurs. 

5. The Audit Committee will meet at least four times per year. The meetings will be scheduled to permit 
timely review of the interim and annual financial statements.  Additional meetings may be held as deemed 
necessary by the Chairman of the Audit Committee or as requested by any member of the Audit Committee 
or by the internal or external auditors. 

6. If all members consent, and proper notice has been given or waived, a member or members of the Audit 
Committee may participate in a meeting of the Audit Committee by means of such telephonic, electronic or 
other communication facilities as permit all persons participating in the meeting to communicate 
adequately with each other, and a member participating in such a meeting by any such means is deemed to 
be present at that meeting. 



A-2

7. The Chairman of the Audit Committee will, in consultation with management, the members of the Audit 
Committee and external auditors, determine the schedule, time and place of meetings, establish the agenda 
for the meetings and ensure that properly prepared agenda materials are circulated to the members and 
other attendees with sufficient time for study prior to the meeting. 

8. A quorum for the transaction of business at all meetings of the Audit Committee shall be a majority of the 
members of the Audit Committee.  Questions arising at any meeting shall be determined by a majority of 
votes of the members of the Audit Committee present.  

9. The Audit Committee may invite such directors, officers, employees and consultants of the Corporation as 
it may see fit from time to time to attend meetings of the Audit Committee and assist in the discussion and 
consideration of the business of the Audit Committee, but without voting rights. 

10. The Audit Committee shall keep regular minutes of proceedings and shall cause them to be recorded in 
books kept for that purpose, and shall report the same to the Board at such times as the Board may, from 
time to time, require. 

11. Supporting schedules and information reviewed by the Audit Committee will be available for examination 
by any director upon request to the Secretary of the Audit Committee. 

12. The Audit Committee shall choose as its secretary such person as it deems appropriate. 

13. The external auditors shall be given notice of, on a yearly basis and have the right to appear before and to 
be heard at, the four regularly scheduled meetings of the Audit Committee, one to be held each quarter, and 
shall appear before the Audit Committee when requested to do so by the Audit Committee.

Duties and Responsibilities 

14. Subject to the powers and duties of the Board, the Board hereby delegates to the Audit Committee the 
following powers and duties to be performed by the Audit Committee on behalf of and for the Board: 

(a) Financial Reporting Control Systems 

The Audit Committee shall: 

(i) review reports from senior officers of the Corporation outlining any significant changes 
in financial risks facing the Corporation; 

(ii) review the management letter of the external auditors and the Corporation’s responses to 
suggestions made; 

(iii) annually review the Audit Committee Mandate;  

(iv) review any new appointments to senior positions of the Corporation with financial 
reporting responsibilities; and 

(v) discuss with the external auditors the overall control environment and the adequacy of 
accounting system controls. 

(b) Interim Financial Statements  

The Audit Committee shall: 
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(i) review interim financial statements with officers of the Corporation and provide to the 
Board a recommendation as to whether the interim financial statements should be 
approved; this will include a detailed review of quarterly and year-to-date results;  

(ii) review and provide to the Board a recommendation approving any narrative comment 
accompanying interim financial statements; and 

(iii) review and provide to the Board a recommendation regarding approval of any interim 
earnings press release before it is publicly disclosed.

(c) Annual Financial Statements and Other Financial Information 

The Audit Committee shall: 

(i) review any changes in accounting policies or financial reporting requirements that may 
affect the current year’s financial statements; 

(ii) obtain summaries of significant transactions, and other potentially difficult matters whose 
treatment in the annual financial statements merits advance consideration; 

(iii) obtain draft annual financial statements in advance of the Audit Committee meeting and 
assess, on a preliminary basis, the reasonableness of the financial statements in light of 
the analyses provided by officers of the Corporation; 

(iv) review a summary provided by the Corporation’s legal counsel of the status of any 
material pending or threatened litigation, claims and assessments; 

(v) discuss the annual financial statements and the auditors’ report thereon in detail with 
officers of the Corporation and the auditors; 

(vi) review the annual report and other annual financial reporting documents including 
management’s discussion and analysis; 

(vii) provide to the Board a recommendation as to whether the annual financial statements 
should be approved;  

(viii) review any annual earnings press release before it is publicly disclosed; and 

(ix) review insurance coverage including directors’ and officers’ liability coverage; 

(d) Public Disclosure of Financial Information 

 The Audit Committee shall: 

(i) ensure that adequate procedures are in place for the review of the Corporation’s public 
disclosure of financial information extracted or derived from the Corporation’s financial 
statements, other than the public disclosure referred to in sections 14(b) and 14(c) above; 
and

(ii) periodically assess the adequacy of such procedures.

(e) External Audit Terms of Reference, Reports, Planning and Appointment 

To preserve the independence of the external auditor responsible for issuing an auditor’s report or 
performing other audit review or attest services for the Corporation, the Audit Committee shall: 
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(i) review the audit plan with the external auditors; 

(ii) discuss with the external auditors, without management present, matters affecting the 
conduct of their audit and other corporate matters; 

(iii) recommend to the Board each year the retention or replacement of the external auditors; if 
there is a plan to change auditors, review all issues related to the change and the steps 
planned for an orderly transition; and evaluate the external auditor’s qualifications, 
performance and independence; 

(iv) review and pre-approve any engagements for non-audit services to be provided by the 
external auditor and its affiliates in light of the estimated fees and impact on the external 
auditor’s independence, subject to any de minimus exception allowed by applicable law, 
provided that the Audit Committee may delegate to one or more designated members of 
the Audit Committee the authority to pre-approve non-audit services, however, any non-
audit services that have been pre-approved by any such delegate of the Audit Committee 
must be presented to the Audit Committee at its first scheduled meeting following such 
pre-approval; 

(v) review with management and with the external auditor: 

(1) any proposed changes in major accounting policies; 

(2) the presentation and impact of significant risks and uncertainties; 

(3) key estimates and judgements of management that may be material to financial 
reporting; and 

(4) budgets, major expenditures and cash flow forecasts; 

(vi) review and approve the Corporation’s hiring policies regarding partners, employees and 
former partners and employees of the present and former external auditor of the 
Corporation in compliance with current laws applicable to the Corporation; 

(vii) ensure that the external auditor reports directly to the Audit Committee, as representatives 
of the shareholders, rather than to the executive officers and management; 

(viii) be directly responsible for overseeing the work of the external auditor engaged for the 
purposes of preparing or issuing an auditor’s report or performing other audit, review or 
attest services for the Corporation, including the resolution of disagreements between 
management and the external auditor regarding financial reporting; and 

(ix) annually review and recommend for approval to the Board the terms of engagement and 
the remuneration of the external auditor. 

(f) Procedure for Complaints regarding Accounting, Internal Controls or Auditing Matters 

The Audit Committee shall: 

(i) establish procedures for the receipt, retention and treatment of complaints received by the 
Corporation regarding accounting, internal controls or auditing matters; and  

(ii) establish procedures for the confidential, anonymous submission by employees of the 
Corporation of concerns regarding questionable accounting or auditing matters.
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Reporting and Authority 

15. The Audit Committee shall report to the Board at its next regular meeting all such action it has taken since 
the previous report. 

16. The Audit Committee is empowered to investigate any activity of the Corporation and all employees are to 
co-operate as requested by the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee may retain persons having special 
expertise to assist it in fulfilling its responsibilities. 

17.  The Audit Committee is authorized to request the presence at any meeting, but without voting rights, of a 
representative from the external auditors, senior management, internal audit, legal counsel or anyone else 
who could contribute substantively to the subject of the meeting and assist in the discussion and 
consideration of the business of the Audit Committee, including directors, officers and employees of the 
Corporation. 

Governance 

18. The Audit Committee is responsible to review on a regular basis, and in its discretion make 
recommendations to the Board regarding confirmation of or changes to be made to its Mandate and the 
position description of its Chairman. 

Advisors

19. The Audit Committee has the power, at the expense of the Corporation, to retain, instruct, compensate and 
terminate independent advisors to assist the Audit Committee in the discharge of its duties.

Audit Committee Timetable 

20. The timetable on the following page outlines the Audit Committee’s schedule of activities during the year.

Meeting Timing Mar. May Aug. Nov. 

Agenda Item     

A. Financial Reporting Control Systems     

(1) Review reports from senior officers outlining changes in 
financial risks. 

X X X X 

(2) Review management letter of external auditors and 
Corporation’s responses to suggestions made. 

X    

(3) Review the Audit Committee Mandate  X    

(4) Review any new appointments to senior positions with 
financial reporting responsibilities 

X X X X 

(5) Obtain assurance from both internal and external auditors 
regarding the overall control environment and the adequacy of 
account system controls. 

X X X X 

B. Interim Financial Statements   

(1) Review Interim financial statements with officers of the 
Corporation and approve prior to their release.  

 X X X 

(2) Review narrative comment accompanying interim financial 
statements.  

 X X X 

(3) Review interim earnings press release, if any  X X X 
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C. Annual Financial Statements and Other Financial Information     

(1) Review any changes in accounting policies or financial 
reporting requirements that may affect the current year’s 
financial statements 

X X X X 

(2) Obtain summaries of significant transactions, and other 
potentially difficult matters whose treatment in the annual 
financial statements merits advance consideration. 

X X X X 

(3) Obtain draft annual financial statements in advance of the 
Audit Committee meeting and assess, on a preliminary basis, 
the reasonableness of the financial statements in light of the 
analyses provided by officers of the Corporation. 

X    

(4) Review summary of the status of any material pending or 
threatened litigation, claims and assessments. 

X X X X 

(5) Discuss the annual financial statements and the auditors’ 
report thereon in detail with officers of the Corporation and the 
auditors. 

X    

(6) Review the annual report and other annual financial reporting 
documents. 

X    

(7) Provide to the Board a recommendation as to whether the 
annual financial statements should be approved. 

X    

(8) Review annual earnings press release, if any X    

(9) Review insurance coverage.    X 

D. External Audit Terms of Reference, Reports, Planning and 
Appointment 

   

(1) Review the audit plan with the external auditors. X    

(2) Discuss in private with the external auditors matters affecting 
the conduct of their audit and other corporate matters. 

X    

(3) Recommend to the Board the retention or replacement of the 
external auditors. If there is a plan to change auditors, review 
all issues related to the change and the steps planned for an 
orderly transition. 

X    

(4) Review and recommend for approval to the Board the terms of 
engagement and the remuneration of the external auditor. 

 X   

Adopted and approved by the Board:  _______________, 2010 
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APPENDIX B – FORM 51-101F3 –  
REPORT OF MANAGEMENT AND DIRECTORS ON OIL AND GAS DISCLOSURE 

Management of PetroNova Inc. (the “Company”) are responsible for the preparation and disclosure of information 
with respect to the Company’s oil and gas activities in accordance with securities regulatory requirements. This 
information includes reserves data, which are estimates of proved reserves and probable reserves and related future 
net revenue as at December 31, 2009, estimated using forecast prices and costs. 

The reserves committee of the board of directors of the Company (the “Reserves Committee”) has reviewed the 
assets, data and position of the Company as of  December 31, 2009 and has determined that, as of the last day of the 
Company’s most recently completed financial year, the Company had no reserves. 

An independent qualified reserves evaluator has not been retained to evaluate the Company’s reserves data as the 
Company has no reserves as of the last day of the Company’s most recently completed financial year and no report 
of an independent qualified reserves evaluator will be disclosed by the Company for the period from January 1, 2009 
to December 31, 2009. 

The Reserves Committee has reviewed the Company’s procedures for assembling and reporting other information 
associated with oil and gas activities and has reviewed that information with management of the Company. The 
board of directors has, on the recommendation of the Reserves Committee, approved 

(a) the content and filing with securities regulatory authorities of Form 51-101F1 containing 
information detailing the Company’s oil and gas activities;  

(b) the Company not filing form 51-101F2, which is the report of the independent qualified reserves 
evaluator on reserves data because the Company has no reserves; and 

(c) the content and filing of this report. 

Because reserves data are based on judgments regarding future events, actual results will vary and the variations 
may be material. However, any variations should be consistent with the fact that reserves are categorized according 
to the probability of their recovery.  Therefore, based on information available at December 31, 2009, the Reserves 
Committee has determined that the Company had no reserves at that time. 

“Antonio Vincentelli” 
President and Chief Executive Officer  

“Stelvio Di Cecco” 
Chief Financial Officer  

“Anthony Lambert” 
Director

“Judith Stripling” 
Director

December 13, 2010
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CERTIFICATES OF THE COMPANY AND THE PROMOTER 

Dated: December 13, 2010 

This prospectus constitutes full, true and plain disclosure of all material facts relating to the securities 
offered by this prospectus as required by the securities legislation of each of the provinces of Canada, other than 
Québec. 

(signed) “Antonio Vincentelli”   (signed) “Stelvio Di Cecco”
President and Chief Executive Officer   Chief Financial Officer 

On Behalf of the Board of Directors 

(signed) “Ricardo Halfen”   (signed) “Judith Stripling”
Director   Director 

On Behalf of the Promoter 

(signed) “Antonio Vincentelli”
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CERTIFICATE OF THE AGENTS 

Dated: December 13, 2010 

To the best of our knowledge, information and belief, this prospectus constitutes full, true and plain 
disclosure of all material facts relating to the securities offered by this prospectus as required by the securities 
legislation of each of the provinces of Canada, other than Québec. 

RAYMOND JAMES LTD. 

By: (signed) “Jason Holtby”

CANACCORD GENUITY CORP. FIRSTENERGY CAPITAL CORP. 
    
    
    
 By:  (signed) “Bruce McDonald”  By:  (signed) “Erik B. Bakke”
    
    
    

GMP SECURITIES L.P. TD SECURITIES INC.
    
    
    
 By:  (signed) “Wade R. Felesky”  By:  (signed) “Robi Contrada”
    
    
    
    
    


